MANNINGHAM

Council Meeting

AGENDA

Date: Tuesday, 15 September 2020
Time: 7:00pm
Location: held via Zoom video conferencing

in accordance with section 394 of the
Local Government Act 2020

This meeting is convened to transact the business listed below.

Andrew Day
Chief Executive Officer

This meeting will be livestreamed. Members of the public who address Council will be heard on the live
audio stream, and audio of them speaking will be recorded. All reasonable efforts will be made to avoid
capturing live or recorded video footage of public attendees however there might be incidental capture.
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1 OPENING PRAYER AND STATEMENTS OF
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

2 APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

3 PRIOR NOTIFICATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Confirmation of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 25 August
2020.

5 PRESENTATIONS

6 PETITIONS

7 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

8 ADMISSION OF URGENT BUSINESS

9 PLANNING PERMIT APPLICATIONS

There are no Planning Permit Applications.
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10 CITY PLANNING & COMMUNITY
10.1 Community Relief Grants

File Number: IN20/566
Responsible Director:  Director City Planning and Community

Attachments: 1 2020 Community Recovery Panel Recommendation
Report for Council Report
2 2020 Neighbourhood Recovery Recommendation Report
for Council Report I
3 Grass Roots Recovery Grants 2020 §

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks Council’s consideration of the proposed recommendations for the
2020 Community Relief Grants Program.

Council’s Community Relief Grant Program (the Program) provides funding to not-for-
profit community groups and organisations that deliver programs and activities to
directly respond to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent lock
downs.

The Program includes the following three categories:
¢ Community Recovery;
¢ Neighbourhood Recovery; and
e Grass Roots Recovery,

Grass Root Recovery grants are allocated under delegation and this report focusses on
the recommended funding allocations for the Community Recovery and Neighbourhood
Recovery grant applications.

Applications for the Community Recovery, Neighbourhood Recovery and Grass Root
Recovery grants opened on Monday 6 July. Neighbourhood Recovery and Grass
Roots Recovery closed on Monday 3 August 2020. The Community Recovery grants
closed on Monday 10 August 2020.

A total of 26 applications were received in the Community Recovery and
Neighbourhood Recovery grants, requesting funding of $631,152.

All applications were assessed and scored by officers against the assessment criteria
and reviewed by the Grant Assessment Panel. The Assessment Panel has
recommended 10 grant applications to Council for funding totalling $281,217. In
addition 5 grant applications were recommended to be funded through the Grass Roots
Recovery grant.

1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

A. Notes and acknowledges the contribution of the independent panel
members and thanks them for their time;

B. Endorses funding allocation for the Community Recovery Grants totalling
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$150,000 as per the assessment panel’s recommendations (Attachment 1);

Endorses the funding allocations for the Neighbourhood Recovery Grants
totalling $131,217 as per the assessment panel’s recommendations
(Attachment 2);

Notes the funding allocations for the Grass Roots Recovery Grants totalling
$273,732 as per the officer’'s recommendations (Attachment 3); and

Notes that $145,051 remains unallocated under the Community Relief Fund
and that may be considered as part of Council’s overall budget response to
the COVID-19 pandemic.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1

2.2

2.3

Council’'s Community Grant Program provides funding to not-for-profit community
groups and organisations to deliver activities that strengthen and support
communities that live, work, study and recreate in Manningham.

In April 2020, Council endorsed a Community Relief Package which included an
allocation of $1million for a Community Relief Fund.

In May 2020 Council endorsed an allocation of $300,000 for immediate relief to
community not-for-profit organisations to deliver support to high risk and
vulnerable members of the community, to be approved by the CEO under
delegated authority from Council. See full list in Table 1 below.

ORGANISATION Allocation

St Vincent de Paul Society Victoria $11,000
Women's Friendship Group Incorporated $8,420
Kevin Heinze Grow Incorporated $20,000
Living and Learning at Ajani $30,000
Haven Home Safe $12,500
Park Orchards Community House and $5,000
Learning Centre

Eastern Community Legal Centre $10,000
Women's Health East $18,180
VP Community Holdings Ltd $30,000
The Onemda Association $25,000
Access Health and Community $6,500
EACH $30,000
Eastern Volunteers $17,000
Manningham Uniting Church $3,000
Doncare* $120,000
Total $346,600

Table 1: Immediate relief funding
*Note this includes an allocation from 2020/2021 Small Grants budget.

Item 10.1
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2.4 Council continues to work with the organisations funded under the immediate
relief allocation and many of these initiatives are continuing as is the need in the
community.

2.5 The Community Relief Grant Program was established to distribute the remaining
funds ($700,000) and included three categories:

2.5.1 Community Recovery Grants: Support post COVID-19 pandemic
community wide activities and initiatives, between $25,001 and $75,000

that:

. Strengthen community through partnerships;

o Provide relief services;

. Enhance quality of life;

) Improve resilience;

° Provide access to creative based programs that hasten community

recovery; and
° Provide sustainable health and wellbeing outcomes.

2.5.2 Neighbourhood Recovery Grants: Support post COVID-19 pandemic
neighbourhood based activities and initiatives, between $10,001 and
$25,000 that:

Provide support;

Celebrate community;

Build resilience;

Improve quality of life;

Encourage patrticipation;

Improve access to arts, culture and heritage; and
Strengthen neighbourhood connections.

2.5.3 Grass Roots Recovery Grants: Supports activities and initiatives,
between $3,000 and $10,000, that focus on assisting small groups
recover from the effects from the COVID-19 pandemic.

2.6 All applications where asked to demonstrate their need against identified grant
objectives. All applicants were require to indicate which objectives where being
met and to provide supporting evidence against those objectives. The objectives
were:

2.6.1 Community Recovery Grants applicants must demonstrate how the
activity will achieve at least two of the following grant objectives:

. Provide projects that strengthen community through partnerships;

. Provide urgent and necessary relief services to those most affected
by the pandemic;

o Enhance the quality of life of those most at risk due to effects from the
pandemic;
Improve resilience across the whole community;

. Provides access to creative based programs that hasten community
recovery; and

. Provide sustainable health and wellbeing initiatives for those most
affected by the pandemic.
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2.6.2 Neighbourhood Recovery Grant applicants must demonstrate how
the activity will achieve at least two of the following grant objectives:

Provide immediate support for affected cohorts with an identified
need at the neighbourhood level,

Celebrate community resilience and outcomes of the pandemic using
local artists (visual, performing and/or literary artists) and unique
locations;

Strengthen community resilience through structured programs and
activities that build on experience from the pandemic;

Provide improved quality of life for those most affected by the
pandemic;

Provide improved access to arts, culture and heritage post pandemic;

Strengthen neighbourhood connections with long-term outcomes.

2.6.3 Grass Roots Recovery Grants applicants must demonstrate how the
initiative or equipment purchase will achieve at least one of the
following grant objectives:

Respond to a clearly identified community need resulting from the
pandemic;

Facilitate participation in a range of local initiative and enhance
access for all members of the community, including responses that
target vulnerable individuals and groups affected by the pandemic;

Celebrate and gather together as restrictions allow;

Enhance local network development and partnerships in response to
the pandemic; and

Provide capacity building opportunities including resilience, skills
development and life-long learning.

2.7 Applications for the Community Relief Grant Program opened on 6 July 2020.
Neighbourhood Recovery and Grass Roots Recovery grants closed on Monday 3
August 2020, and the Community Recovery grants closed on Monday 10 August
2020. The program was advertised across Council’s social media platforms and
the Council website. In addition, officers directly notified almost 500 community
groups and individuals of the fund via direct email databases.

2.8

29

Throughout the process, Council officers provided advice and assistance to
applicants via phone, email and video calls. Applicants for Community Recovery
and Neighbourhood Recovery grants were required to discuss their proposed
projects and activities with the grants team. This is to ensure that the projects
aligned with Council’s grant priorities and assessment criteria and to provide
assistance with project development.

Applicants could also access grant writing advice from a pool of grant mentors.
These were sourced through the Business Excellence Award mentors via the
business support team. These mentors provided assistance to first time
applicants and those who required additional support to complete the application.
The mentors have had no bearing on the assessment or panel recommendation.

Item 10.1
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3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

Applications received and assessment process

3.1 The applications recommended for funding represent a diverse range of
disciplines including community services, disability, health, multicultural services,
disability, gender equity, arts and culture, and sport and recreation with an even
spread across the municipality, with 22 community organisations submitting
applications for the first time.

3.2 The Grant Assessment Panel was approved by the CEO under delegation as per
the resolution of Council on 26 May 2020. Membership of the panel included:

o Aaron Farr, Captain, Wonga Park CFA/Bendigo Bank Warrandyte,
o Irene Goonan, Community Representative, and
o Tim Sligo, Executive Director Heide Museum of Modern Art.

3.3 The panel met on 2 September 2020 and was supported by officers from the
Business, Events and Grants team.

3.4 Table 2 below provides an overview of the Community Relief Grant applications
received:

Applications  Funding Amount
Category received Requested
Community Recovery 8 $ 499,935.00
Neighbourhood Recovery 18 $ 316,858.07
Grass Roots Recovery 48 $ 320,508.65
TOTAL 74 $1,137,301.72
Table 2: Grant application received

3.5 The Community Relief Grant program was oversubscribed, with Council receiving
74 applications requesting funding of $1,137,301.72 against the budget of
$700,000.

3.6 While 26 applications were received across the Community Recovery and
Neighbourhood Recovery categories, the nature and scale of 5 applications were
such that the Grant Assessment Panel recommended these applications be
transferred to the Grass Roots Recovery category for consideration.

3.7 Where an application was not recommended for funding the panel made a
decision based on the basis that the application failed to:

o Address the priorities of the Community Recovery and Neighbourhood
Recovery categories;
o Comply with the funding criteria; or
o Clearly demonstrate a need in relation to recovery post COVID-19.
ltem 10.1 Page 7
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3.8 Due to the quantum of funding requested, the assessment panel gave
consideration to supporting some organisations with less funding than the figure
requested in their applications. In the event that partial funding was
recommended, the viability of the activity being delivered successfully with
reduced funding was confirmed with the applicant.

3.9 The Assessment Panel has recommended 10 grant applications to Council for
funding totalling $281,217 (refer Table 3 below).

Proposed Community Recovery grant Proposed Neighbourhood
allocations Recovery grant allocations
EACH — Manningham Youth $75,000 | Manningham Christian $14,939
Services Centre
Eastern Volunteers $75,000 | SS Peter and Paul's $15,280
Doncaster East Parish
Living and Learning at $24,290
Ajani Inc
REAL Inc $15,500
Pines Learning $18,158
The Pottery Expo $13,200
Rotary Club of $10,850
Templestowe Inc
VP Community $19,000
Holdings Ltd
Total $150,000 Total $131,217

Table 3: Proposed Community Recovery and Neighbourhood Recovery grant allocations

3.10 In addition to Council’s contributions, the applicants are contributing more than
$460,000 of financial and in-kind support towards the projects, with the estimated
value of the recommended projects being in excess of $744,247.

3.11 The third tier of grants that were assessed were received as part of the Grass
Roots Recovery. Council received 48 grant applications valued at $320,508.65.
The panel recommended that a further five applications received as part of the
Community Recovery or Neighbourhood Recovery grants should be transferred
to the Grass roots program.

3.12 A total of 47 Grants were approved under the Grass Roots Recovery category
totally $272,732. The successful applications will be published on Council’s
website and all applicants informed of the outcomes of their application.

3.13 Across the streams of the Community Relief Grant Program, Council will be
supporting 57 organisations who will deliver support to the community as it
recovers from the immediate and medium term impacts of the pandemic.

3.14 Applications were received from a wide and diverse range of community-based
organisations. The projects, initiatives and activities included in the applications
showed are being led by the community and reflect a view that our community
will recover from the impacts of the pandemic in a variety of ways across many
months, as restrictions allow.
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3.15 Subject to endorsement of the Community Recovery and Neighbourhood
Recovery grants by Council, the funding will enable community-based
organisations who service a variety of community needs, including:

e Sporting clubs (22 applications) e Older adults (10)
e Community/church groups (10) e Young people (5)
e Arts and Learning (5) e Recreation/health (5)

3.16 Within the recommended applications, the recommended applications broadly
address the following initiatives:

e Physical activity and sport (22 e COVID-safe activities and spaces (6)
applications)

¢ Mental health and wellbeing (12) e Arts and events (5)

e Transition to online activities (6) e Food support (6)

3.17 In considering the applications Council acknowledges the changing nature of the
pandemic and subsequent restrictions and will continue to work with the
successful applicants to ensure they can deliver the initiative and activities in
accordance to the latest advice and within the current restrictions and any
variations in the timelines will be documented through Council’s grant process.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

4.1 The Community Grant Program Policy is aligned with the key priorities of the
Council Plan 2017-2021, the Generation 2030 Community Plan and the Healthy
City Strategy 2017-2021.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Community Relief Grant Program seeks to improve the quality of life of
Manningham residents by supporting initiatives and activities that directly
respond to the impact of COVID-19 and subsequent lockdowns. The
recommended applications are driven by community needs identified by the
applicants and supported with evidence and local knowledge by those affected.

5.2 Council’'s endorsement of the panel’s recommendation for the Community Relief
Grant program will maximise the number of community organisations receiving
grant funding and will increase the diversity of stakeholders and participants in
these activities.

5.3 Applications reflect and respond to unique community needs and by supporting
the community through this grant program, Council is acknowledging:

a) Our most vulnerable community members have been made more
vulnerable during the pandemic;

b) Community and peer support is vital, especially for young people, through
the crisis;
C) Volunteering provides both an employment pathway and a sense of

connection to the community;
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d) Increased opportunities to access sport, recreation and the arts in
everyday life result in better health outcomes;

e) The community has identified initiatives that seek to reduce social
isolation through community connections and participation and by
providing a sense of belonging;

f) The community wants to support community sport, the arts, the creative
sectors — all of which are among the hardest hit during the pandemic;

0) Young people transitioning from education to entry-level employment are
made more difficult after economic crises, and the same is expected post-
COVID;

h) Young people with little to no work experience find it difficult to enter the
work force;

i) The mental health and wellbeing of young LGBTIQ people is at higher risk

than their heterosexual peers;

) The Manningham community has the knowledge, the will and the desire
to support one another.

6. IMPLEMENTATION

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Finance / Resource Implications

The Community Relief Grant program budget has $700,000 allocated for the
Community Recovery, Neighbourhood Recovery and Grass Root Recovery
grants. (refer Table 4 below).

Proaram | 2019/20  Recommended  Unallocated
J budget allocations funding

Community Relief

Program $700,000 $554,949 $145,051

Total $700,000 $554,949 $145,051

Table 4: Proposed grant allocations against Budget

Subject to Council endorsing the panel’s recommended grant allocations in Table
2, would leave $145,051 unallocated that may be considered as part of Council’s
overall budget response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Communication and Engagement

Promotion of the Community Relief Grant Program to community groups and
organisations was undertaken through a targeted promotion campaign including,
referrals, direct email, Council’'s website and promotion at Council events (virtual
meetings).

Officers consulted with community groups and organisations throughout the
application and assessment stages, including virtual one-to-one pre-application
meetings. During the assessment process, officers and Managers from four
Departments across Council provided relevant subject matter expertise.

Item 10.1
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6.5 Officers will contact all unsuccessful applicants to provide feedback on their
application.

Timelines
6.6 Applicants will be notified of the outcomes of their applications following the

Council meeting. Subject to Council’'s endorsement, a list of successful applicants
from all categories will be published on Council’s website in October 2020.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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App Il Organisstion
narme

FiR001E Wanningham
Christian Centre

[MROOZO 55 Pater and
Paul's Dancaster
East Parish

MR0O1S Living and
Learning at djani
Ine

MADIZ2 REAL Inc

NROO1A Fines Learning

Project Title:

Fighting hunger in
Manningharm « Addressing
Faod Insecurity
Challenge: Together

Community Mental Health
First Aid Initiative

Connecting community @

Ajani

REAL Recavary

Let's get together

Neighbourhood Recovery 2020 Recommendation Report

Brif Project Dezeription

CareNet provices families wha ars experiencing harcship with food reiief and
Eommunity connection.

With the purchaze of an enclosed, 3 door trailer, CarsNet sims to combat the
transpart B isolstion barrier by creating 3 Mabile Fasd Pantry and imprave
current operational functioning regarding faed arder transpartation

Partnered with The Foad Collestive, CareNet aims 1o build new netwarks and
strengthen existing netwearks Betwesn cammunity graups and services,
conation gartners and individusls to wark tgether to address faod security
challenges for vulnerable and disavartaged community members in the
Manringham area

Te provide Mentsl Health First Al Training to the eemmunity to sssist in
coping with and recovering fram the cavid-18 trauma and restrictions. The
sister parishes of 5t Peter and 5t Paul, Doncaster East and Our Lady of the
Pines, Danvale, (s seaking 1o host a number of Mantal Health First A1d (MHFA|
seminars accessible ua to 100 participants] within the lecal cammuniy of
Manningham. This applicatian is fozused on individuals, community graups
and families whe. due to the impact of mental iiness, experience socisl
isolation and diadvantage The proposal alse sesks ta increase community
capadity bullding, bath current and past COVID 1, where
eenfidently (threugh the skills pravided through MHEA|
wha demanstrate behavieurs suggesting an ind
cevelaging = mental health eaisode, and supgort them to seek prafessianal
support and/ar treatment
Connesting Community @ Ajani will pravide the oppartunity for local
community members to cannect with each cther in 3 safe and distanced
external environment an the forecourt at &jani sutside the Hub Cafe. Cuer
complimentary morning ar afterncon tea, cammunity members will be able ta
and enjoy fight refreshments from the Hub Cafe in 3 safe, take sway methad
and have the e 9t comf while g
requirements and catch up with thers. During this time 2 marquee will
house an entertsiner (employed only from within Manningham), hear about
sarvices available in Manningham ts asist them, enjoy 2 aaking
cemanstration using products fram the gantry and fridge, leam ta graw their
own vegetasles st name and a wide variety of bath informative and enjoyable
entertainment. Small butiness ewners will slse have the sppertunity 1
demanstrate their praducts nd services and engage with their lacal

i staft hart each session
and ensure spprapriste referrals are made far ssiitance by sther services as
required.
REAL Recavery is 3 program that add resses fssues of isslation, lack of
community invalvement and fragmented support thraugh the estblishment
of interest bazed virtual communities dexigned far Manningnam aduks with
intellectusl disability. Thraugh regular 200N sessians participants can
remornect with friends. be inuolued in 3ge 3paropriste on-line group scthitier,
be ancouraged to access courzes and infermation to attain new tkils 3nd be
prepared for the return to the pest Covin-16 everyday warld. This will be.
achieved thraugh emplaying a coardinatar for 10 hours per week ta contact
individuals and community groups 1o determine what sessions should be
astablishad, The caardinatar will be able to creativaly invelve the ZGGM
participants to enzure sacial connecticn and apportunities for skill
develogment
Ta address the mental heatth crisis we will establish a facilitated COVID-18
=upport group with sccess ta current professianal self care information. In
addition we plan to offer 3 suite of sctivitier including art therapy, laughter
and ather health and well being warkshops. A lunch will be arganized ta
farzwell the COVID-1E pandemic and provide 3 guest speaker to insaire and
ke s laugh a5 wa losk farward ta the future

widuals can

ual is experiencing ar

Activity
<atagary

Community
Deveiapment

[Heaith and
Wellbeing

|community
Deveiapment

Special Neads
/ Disability

[Heaith and
Wl

Target age
group mult
choice

Al figes

(Women,
Ner, Han
Binary,
Older
Adultz, All
ages

| Chikdran
avers
years, Girls
1218, Boy:
12418, Girls
18-24, Beys
1524,
Women,
Iar, Non

Adults, Al
Ages

Women,
hien, Non
Binary

[Wemen,
Nan

Expected number
participants

Estimated foos
relief wil reach
cammunity
members on 2000
times, Mobile
Feed Pantry could
reach community
members 4200
tmes

100

|Over 1800 i the:

praposed activity
s affered twice
par wask across
oneyear s
plarned
\Additicnal
sessions can be
added 33 the
demand increases.

|ss0

Location Project Total Project Total
Start Oate  Cost Amaunt

Requested

Manningnam | 01/10/2020 $151,356.50] $14,938.00
Christian Centre,

Temglestawe

|85 Peterand  01/10/2020
Paul's Hall,

Dancaster East

[Living and
Learning 3t Ajani
Foreeount and
Hub Café, Lower
Templestowe

05/10/2020

Panel recommendation

314,233.00(Ie iz il fund

Christian Centre the amaunt of 514,939 to deliver the
Fighting hunger in Manringham - Addressing Faad
Inzacurity Challenges Tagathar initiztive, The initiative
aligne with the grant catagary bjectiver and will provide
mediate sugport te cammunity and build res
[theaugh 2 structured program af foad relief. Thisin turn
|will gravide the quality of life for the relief recipients and
strengthen connections with partner groups.

Funding Conditions

51688000 $15,280.00 S15,280.00| It 1+ recommended that Counal fund 55 Pater ard Paul +

Dancaster East Parish the amaunt of $15,280 ta deliver
[the Communizy Mental Health First &id Initiative. The
ragram sligns with the grant catagery objectives and will
strengthen the cammunity by training ug t 100 residents
and members of Iocal clubs, groups and anganisations in
tental Heatt First A

$41808.00| 52325000  524,230.00|It s recommended that Cauncil fung Lving and Leaming.

& fjani ta the amount of 524,290 to deliver Cannecting
Camemunity @ Ajanl, The pregram aligns with the grant
catezary objectives znd will provide an appertunity for
residents, users and visitors to ascess 3 location o gather
and sacialise. Tha pragram will alse slfer appertuniy ta
aceess zervice praviders, sntertsinment and far local

business ta engage with 3 wider range of people.

Wzt celrver 20 sessions
Full cammunication pkan to
be developed

Various ©1/10/2020  520.270.00 51550000

[The Pines
Learning znd
Actiity Cantre
520 Blackburn
Riasd, Dancaster
East, VIC, 3109

26102020

515,500,00(1t Is recommandad that Counsil fund REAL the smaunt of

515,500 to defiver REAL Recavery. The program sligns
[with the grant category objecsives and will benefit
partielpants in conneeting via dlgital platferm and
prepare them for intagration into 2 post Cavid warld.

[The apglicant indicated that the full extant of the
pragram (32 weeks) would zuppert the organizatian in
|getting ready for changes to aperations due ta new
raquirmants, This alia included education far volunteers
lwho support members.

[ipplicant to provids an
updated project plan and
evaluation framewark to
reflect the full extent of the
program

S20676.00) 51815900  S18.158.00|It s recommended that Caunal fund Fines Learning the

amount of 518158 to deliver the Lat's Get Tozether
initistive. The pragram aligns to the grant estegery
hjectives and wil respond ta an identified camemunity

nezd to addresz lonelinezs and secial izalation, whi
have became haightanad as key irues far the cammunity
a5 & direst result of gavernment restrictions due ta EOVID-
19

[This graject will suppart imaraved mental heaith
cutcomes, the developmert of new skills and
caportunities far community members ta recannect after
[the pandemic, The project has a fecus en community
resilience, which will be of sig
restrictians are essed and pesple are wanting to
reenzage with their i

Ficantimpartance as
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[App 1D Organisation Project Title
e

MAOOZL The Pottery Expo A Year of Wancers

Templestaws Ine

MRDIDE Retary Clubof  Connecting Manningham

Brief Project Description

An autdsar photograph exhibition of large farmat photos, t be exhibited at
Tatfy's Mut. Warrandyte an 3 phote prajection on the pillar of the
Warrandyte Bricge. alang the walking path. Frotes ta be taken by
Manningham residents of their respanse to Covid 15 and their reflactions and
reiponies in their community in 2020, The svert will ecoincide with the
opening of Lians Fark, creating an appartunity for the community to celebrate
life after Cowid in & new communal space

Connesting Manningham aims to strengthen neighbourhosd connection,
Pramets cemmunity kindness and encourage participation in lecal pragrams
and business by uze of communication platfarms including websita, sacial
mediz and traditional print with the Manningham Cammunity. The project
will wark in partnership with local business, trade asseciations and

ity arganizati in i o i grafile,
builé cammunity swareness and encaurage people ta suppert local, Funding
is being sought for Phase 2 of the activity which includes:

1. Neighbourhagd Connestion and Spreading Kindness - This will include
initiatives that cannect veluntesrs o servise previders and aesgle in need,
connest older people 1o pen pals in the community, connect peogle through
sacial activities oniine, connect pecqle through activation apportunities

2. Premeting and finking people to local Servics: and Jusinesses - Prajects will
centre an inviting esmmunity groups and businesses to sheweass their
services and programs, Thase groups will play 2 lead role and posting directly
on the page in the farm of social media pests or actusl programs within the
manthly “Connecting Manningham Programs”.

3. Connecting t Programs and Activities - Community will be invited thraugh
20 EO| process to deliver free ar low cost activities anline viz the Connecting
Manringham Gioup. This could be combinations of livs stresms, zasm
pre-recorded szminars etz

Activity
entegory

Arts and
Cultiral

Health and
Wellkging

Target age
group multi
chaice
Chikdren
overs
vears, Girls
12-18, Boys
12:12, Girls

Adults, All
Ages

Girls 1218,
Boys 128,
Girls 16-24,
Bays 16-24,
Wemen,
Men, Hon
Binary,

Older Adults

Total Project | Total
Cont Amaunt

Requested
515.200.00| 51520000

$31679.00) $15479.00

Panel recommendation

Funding Conditions

It is recommended that Cauncil fund The Pottery Expa
aunt of 515,200 te deliver the " Year of
|Wanders™ activity in Warrangyte, The activity aligns t
[the grant category objectives and is a great example of 2
community arts project. This type of svert will bevary
[well received in Warrandyte and will have a pasitive
impact en taurism, building the arts and the local
acenarmy bath Immediately and long tarm (with the
phata eahibitien lasting fer § manths)

[Ensure consultation with
Couneil parks tearn for Lisni
Park apening date.

Conultation with Caunsil
Arts and Culture team

[Ensura svant parmis for use
of public spacs is saught far
both iniatives including the
[prejection event an
[Warrandyte River Reserve
{under the bricge] - ensure
[spplication iz submitted ta
the Business, Events and
Grantz t=am and all
ecessary documantation is
submitted a3 gart ef the
event permit approval
process.

Euent parmit sppraval will
be subject to COVID-19
restrictions at the time and
date may nesd to be
postpenad

$10,850.00(1% s recammended that Counsil fund the Rotary Club of

[Temglestave far the reduced amaunt of 310,350 for the

project. The project aligns with
|the grant category objectives and has goad potential to
reach and connect with a wide cohart of Manningham
recidents, arganizations and burinescer.

Hard copy printing and
updating the website is nat
supported.
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[4pp 1D Organisation
e

MR0OZ5 VP Community
Haldings Ltd

Brief Project Description

The faocbank program apens access to graceries, fresh food and vegetables
for prople experiencing food (nsecurty. It pravides opportunities for
uulrerable graups and those experiencing solatian in areas of social cohesian
and esmmunity participation. We are seeking the suaport from Man ningham
councll for 3 targeted respanse while Vickarians are facing the pandemic. to
alleuiate the consequences of foed insecurity and pravide 3 sustainable
response beyond the recovery process.

Activity
entegory

Heahth and
Wellbaing

Targetage
group muli
chaice

&l ges

Expected number
participants

525

Location Project
Start Date

Vantage Paint
Church, Denvale

Total Project
Cont

Totsl
Amaunt
Requested

011172020 327730000 52500000

Panel recommendation

Funding Conditions

It iz recommended that Council fund VF Halgings Ltd the
ameunt of 519,000 to deliver the Enabling recevary from
(fand insecurity in the cameunity program The pragram

aligns with the grant categary abjectives and will support
thase most In need o access food

The funding will support:
Emglayment of an additianal
person {logistics) B he/week
38,000

Computer aquipment £3,000)

Incresse in demand

represented by increase in
foad corts §5,200
Manual forklift 52,800

MR0OL0 Australian-iranian Foundation building Cer the last 30 years AISOV has played a key rale in gramating iranian Community Al Azes 18 management | Online 01/10/2020 54154386 521,84511)% - ieis mer that Ceuncil fund th i
Society of Victaria COVIDLS and Beyand community's culture and presence in Victoria, in garticular within the Gity of | Develapment and health and Iranian Society of Victaria [AISOV] through the
(nisav) Iianningham. Manairgham & home to the [argest ranian esmmunity (IC) in well being Neighbourhaod Recovery Grants as 3 majar campanent
Wictsria cammittes of the initiative is the development of a strategic plan to
members of AISCY if i gh = new
The lranian Camemunity has grown in aumber and 35 sueh 15 aeads have alse [thareatinr the during and past COVID-18 pandemic. This s cansidered 3
become mare camplex, A3 with broader Australisn community, COVID 18 has brasder lranian care operational item and therefare ineligible far funding.
braught about sdditianal challenges which 150V has had 1o respand to. &3 Cammunity
these challenges are likely t= lnave a lasting impast on the community, A1SOY maember number |This application i ta be refarred to the Grass Roots
management has embarked an 3 strategic planning process te better assess, araund 10000] Recovery Grants at the reduced amount of §1256.38 1
understand and respond to the needs of the Community. AISOV has set up 3 suppart services from the Eastern Domestic Violence
warking Eroup ta support this systemic apprasch with represantatives from Centre to address the increased incidence of dameitic
MCE, the Esstern Community Legal Centre and Eastern Domestic Vialence luislence
Servicer Thiz proces: i an extencive procass which will include amarg otherz,
gavernanes and rlsk tialning, taining in relstion ta elder and domestic
violence a5 well 2 an extensive strategic glanning aracess
FROOD3 Dencaster Al Our cempetition has over 200 players with varying degrees of dissbilties and | Special Needs |All Ages 330 Mullem Mullum | 01/10/2020  $16.750.08 $11,500.00]§ = |Itis net recommended that Council fund the Dancaster
abilities the arganisation, which is now the largest basketaall competitian for chiliren |/ Disability stadium, Donvale |1l aiilizies Basketball Inc through the
Basketbal Ine with disailities in Vietoria. The cosrdination of the competitian has timaly Recovery Grants the [nitiative seeks ta suppart elub
become heyand the capabilities of the small band of uoluntaers on the members to participate in the campetition and fits within
cemmittee mainly comprising of parents. A1l the administrative work to date [the Grazs Roots Grant categary.
kas been dona an & velunteer basis
[This application is ta be referred to the Grass Raats
The grant will be used to assist us in emglaying a part time campetition Recovery Grants for the reduced amount of 53,500 ta
The will be far the lon of angage 2 sports aupport the
the twenty sight teams and will sversee fixturing, registration, grading of of new and existing memiers te the campesitin,
players and match night supervision. This administrator will ensure the
engeing tuceess of 3 elub that prevides 1perting epportunies for aver 200
yaung men and women with intellactual and physical disabiliies. We need ta
step up aur sdministrative wark in arder to camply with all the abligations
that sparting argarisstions new face
FiR0ozE Wanningham Ta grovide sguipment ta suppart the the oaeratizns of MBN including, |Other: [Wemen, 50 [Manningham  |01/10/2020  §7.806.00 57.906.00|5 = [Itiz net recommended that Council fund the
Business Network nesworking and business | manthly meetings, public access, professions| development sdvice etc from [ Business Men Funstion Centre Manningham Business Netwark for Praviding business
Inc. experts in chesen fiekds, Gur manthly member-saly meetings provide business Netwerking €98 Dancaster netwarking and business advisory services, as the
owners ity 10 exchange zeand grow Raad, Dancaster, initiative daes notalign tm the grant category objectives.
within our lacal community together. VIC, 3108
Due ta the funding amaunt requested this application Is
[ta be referred to the Grazs Roots categary for
consideration.
[MROGOL Lisns Club of Park Community Recovery Wall Censtructien of a wall 1o incarparate the reflections of the Park Orchards Health and | Children 200 Mellennium ©1/10/2020  S26.B58.00) $1483300|5 It i3 net recommanded that Councll fund The Lisns Club
Grehards Inc Community a they were impacted by the COVID 18 Pandemic The Community Wellbeing | under S Wall, Park of Park Orchards for the Community Recevery Wall While
Recovery Wall will incarparate bricks engraved with meszages from the years. Creharcs [the: program will create an apportunicy far the
residents of Park Grehards 3nd 3 time e3palle contalning details and Chikdren cammunlty ta celebrate 3nd come tagether, the Recovery
refiactions of the residents experiences during the Fandemic 4 local artist overs |Wall companent of the project raquirss further
will be engaged to update the mural on the thop wall and provide 3 new years, Girls inwartigation and approval from the City Decign team.
community indpired plece to be included an the new wall. & planned Street 1212, Boys
Party ta celebrate the dedication of the wall tagether with 2 Billy Cart Derby ta 1248, Girls [The celebration event will be 3 good way far the
bring the community together will now e planned st = date to be determined. 1824, Bayz come together past COVID. The project
18-24, requires further develepment to delivar the renewal of
Wemen, |the mural (engagement of an artist] and a street party
hen, Hon celebratian and is referred to the Grass Roots Recavery
Binary, Grants.
Older
Aduks, Al
Apes
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[AppID  Organisation Project Title. Brief Project Description Activity Targetage | Expected number | Location Project Total Project |Total Pansl recommendation Funding Conditions
namme ctegory  group multi | participants Start Date  Cost Amaunt
choice Requested
MR0I04 Danburn Primary  Denburn Primary Schaal  Denurn Primary Schaol is seeking funding to imglement a ditchen Garden  |Healthand | Chidren 545 Danburn Primary |19/01/2021  $32.526.61| $22,572.96) $0.001t is nat recommended that Counci fund Danburn
Scheal Kitchen Garden Fragram  Pregramin the scheal in 2021, The pragram weuld empley a Comdinater i Wellbsing | ever S students/teachers/ | Scheal, Frimary Schocl far the Kitchen Garden Pregram, while the
provide weekly caoking and garden classes ta students across the schaal, and years. 8l voluntesrs+upto | Dancaster East pragram has 3 ciear Benefit to the cammunity this
engage valunteers from the school community in the running of the program. Ages 105 Manningham application does not align with the grant category
residents wha objectives.
The pragram will give students, teachers, valurteers 2nd their families the recieve danzted
shills, knewledge and confidence ta graw and coak healthy foad, using fresh procuce [The apglicant is encouraged ta apply thraugh s Aiture.
resouress from the highly rsgarded Steghanic Mlexander Kitchen Garden |grant raund or apply threugh anather source of funding.

Claszraam Program.

Itweuld gravide sppertunities for the broader scheal cammunity to
connestireconnect with the school post COVID-A9 through volunteer
activities. Surplus Fresh produce grawn by studerts would e danated t
Living 3nd Learning & Ajani, ta be distributed ta Mannaingham cammunity
members in need.

LT ERETTTme— | Qlives to Ol Harvezt We will arganize & community harvesting sventof unused clive trees araund  Community Al Ages 500 [Varizus losatians 04/01,/2021 58168300 3$17,143.00 $0.00( 1t iz nt recommend e that Council fund 3000 Acres for
Festival Manringham and facilisate residents’ involverent from ind vidual streets | Dewslapment [the Clives to Oil Harvest Festival initiative.
threugh ta lecal neighkaurhaeds, Fruit will be pressed into deliciows alive il [White the initiativs has some merit in terms of utilising a
which is shared with all who participats as wel as supplying the Food Fantry natural resaurce, the demand is unclear especially in
atLiving and Learning at Ajani Inc. & Harvest Festival will be held to celebrate regards to demagraphics and potential lacal neighbour
the cultural heritage of olive trees in Melboure and bring peaple together to impact of harvesting street tress.
=hare focd, learn new zkills and gather 2= neighbours It iz alzo clmar that the Olives to Oil program, while a great

pragram, it 2 stable service program of the appicant
rganisation. Aside from the connection that community
iz turming to heme produce and harvesting during COVID,
it s difficult to see how this inisiative (s spesific to address
a neighiourheed resavery need dus COVID,

MR0O1L Wonga Park “Snapshat of Recow Ta angage a traines projest worker (pilot program) to provide immediate lastsand  |Gein12ae 300 [ianga Park 12/10/2020  556,965.00 52491500 50.00(1tis nat recommanded the Council fund Wonga Park
Community the Cottage support for these affectad coharts by praviding sppertunities with focus Cultural Bays 12-18, Cammunity Camenunity Cottage for the Snapshot of Recovery at the
Cottage groups 2nd bxsed setrities and t2 craste 2n y Far Girls 1824, Cateage, Wangs Cattage initiative, 32 the slignment to the grant category

Bt youth ta eapture thels axperienees past pandermic thraugh the arts Bays 1824, Fark s jactivas have not slearly benn desnanstrated,

medium of Phatagraghy and storytelling, Our youth and families have been Wamen, [The initiative requires furthar devalopment and the
significantly impacted within our neighbourhaad - additional activities, Men applicant should be encouraged to apply in a future grant
counsalling and drap in sessions te be affered and will provide suppert, reund,

encourage participation and build resifience,

[MROJDS Blame the Till We're Together Once  Begin 2 series of dialogue with Manningham's senior community, discuss the | Arts and Viomen, 500+ Manningham drt | 08/11/2020 $35.850.00) $24,960.00 50.%! is nat recommended that Council fund Blame the
Shadows More effects of the pandemic. the enforced isalatian, the immense loneliness felt Cuhwral Men, Qlder Gallery. 687 |Shadows Callective for the Till We're Together Once More
Collective due to the restrictions, past stories of avercaming immense difficulties in life Adults, All Doncaster Road, inttiative. While 3 baneficial initiatree, the applicant has

and hopas for the future—when we t2n be together once mars. Thete Ages Darcazter nat demanstrated connection with the target group given
eanversations will be recarded and uzed to craate a series of pedeasts az wall |the restrictionz and pravisian of supparts Fthe ssivity
22 maving-image installations ta be shared with the wider community via [triggars negati- i £ of
accessible onfine platforms and lacal venues. |the project have nat been addressed.

[The apglication requires further development and the
applicant should be encouraged to apply in the nestgrant

reund.
HR0007 Donvale Football Community Australisn  Funding recuired to meat the flxed costs of running the Donvale Featball Cluk, Heshthand | All Ages 350 |Denuale Ressrve | 01/10/2020  $1558200 $14,83200 0,001t s not racommeanded that Counell fund Donvale
Club Ine Rules Football Club bath seniars and juniors, far men, wamen, bays and girks, The grantwill be | Wellbsing Foathall Club Ing for the Community Australian Rules
applied ta meeting fixed costs enly and nat tawards seniar player payments. Foathall Club initistive. The application does not meet
Playars of all abilities are encouraged 1o pay at the Denvals Faatball, and the the grant categery object| It seaks to recovar
cluk has recently formed clese ties with Sports Inclusion Australia to promets caerational casts which iale.

3 abilities spars participation
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[4pp 1D Organization
e

Project Title:

Communizy ang  PROGRAM
Cultural Centre

MIROIDS House of Fersia  HOFE “ART FOR LIFE"

Brief Project Description Activity Targetage | Expected number | Location
cntegory  group multi | participants
choice
Offering a variety of arts and creative pragrams to engage interested drts and Al Ages  [350 HGPE
individuals with the 3t cammunity, 3nd ta enrich the life of peaple living in  |Cultiral Cammunity
Ianringham, fesling isoiated dus to Covid 18 restrictions. Each gragram will Centre,

be custamised Dancaster

dividusl and group interests and will be supparted by
gualified Instruetars ts schieve the best autcams,

schaals, anline
- Arts projects: Masaic mating, lewellery making, felt making, painting snd
crawings, card making, flower arrangemants, candle making, LED light
seulpture making, COVIDLS desigrer and reussble mashs making, st

- Callaberation with Manningham schosls: Te eonneer tudents with sider
Manningham citizens by making crestive 3ad persanalised cards/artwark for
the seriors in nursing homer/care centres, to promete community work and
earstaker respansibility

- Live musicalfdance perfarmancas: Organised sither 3t HOPE centre er endine
by the musicianparfermars fram scheals and the community graup.

- Weli-being programs: Mecitation, autdaor acivites. offering on-line home
based exerciies, helpline for social 1ervices

Art and cultural taurs: Visiting different cultural institutions with infarmed
tour guides whe speak in different languages.

Upan the success of aur applicstin, HOPE Art group is to continue the
Program past pardsmic imstrictions and for futare years ta come

nursing homeas,

Project
Start Date

111072020

Total Project Total Panel recommendation Funding Conditions
Cont Amaunt
Requested
525,000.00) $12,500.00) 50,05t is nat recommended that Council fund the House of
Persia Community and Cultural Cantre for the Hope “art
Fer Life” Program. The agplicant has nat demanstrated
[the programs slignment with the grant categary
objectivas to support community through the recovery
[framm the COVID-28 pandemic.
$315,858.07
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Community Grant Program

Grass Roots Recovery Grants

Successful Applications

1* Doncaster East Scout Group Youth Engagement $8,512.00

Australian Oriental Martial Arts Tai Chi Online Charity Tai Chi Fitness $5,000.00

Beverley Hills Junior Football Club Project 4000 $7,954.00

Beverley Hills Primary School Younger and Older — Together we Grow and Thrive $8,800.00

Combined Pensioners Association of Bulleen &  Social Isolation, Get Connected $6,280.00

Templestowe

Currawong Tennis Club Tennis $10,000.00

Doncaster Athletic Club Purchase of additional Athletic Equipment in $4,863.00
Response to Covid-19

Doncaster Baseball Club Back to Baseball $9,657.00

Doncaster Church of Christ Meals for School Families and the Disadvantaged $10,000.00
within Manningham

Doncaster Cricket Club Cricket Club $2,455.00

Doncaster Hockey Club Connect, Inspire, Empower: Implementing a $4,310.00
Wellbeing Strategy — Doncaster Hocket Club

Doncaster Masters” Athletics (DMA) Purchase Athletic Equipment / Sanitiser to Address $1,760.00
requirements of Covid-19

Donvale Netball Club Online Pilates to maintain and establish $4,800.00
Connection

East Doncaster Cricket Club Reconnecting with No Boundaries after Covid-19 $7,005.00

FC Bulleen Lions Miniroos Skills Program $9,500.00

Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Purchase of Equipment for Covid-Compliance $4,318.00

Koonung Bushwalking Club Upgrade Koonung Bushwalking Club Webpage $3,520.00

LinC Church Services Network (Trading as LinC ~ An Extra Hand in Extraordinary Times $5,000.00

Manningham)

Manningham Juventus Old Boys Social Club Expansion of the Veterans Cup/Coppa Italia 2020 $5,000.00
Tournament

Manningham Toy Library Covid-19 Encouraging Active and Creative Play and $7,422.00
Rebuilding Membership

Manningham Walking Group for Carers Developing Skills to Survive for Carers 54,141.00

Melbourne Men’s Group Melbourne Men's Group — Manningham Men's $6,930.00
Support and Development

Old Carey Cricket Club Thriving through cricket at Old Carey Cricket Club $4,690.00

Old Trinity Grammarians Soccer Club Community Try Out Event and Equipment Funding $4,090.78
for New Team

Park Orchards BMX Club Support to Retain and Attract Active Members post $3,000.00
Covid-19

Park Orchards Cricket Club Welcome Back to Community Sport through a $3,500.00
Social Community Event

Park Orchards North Ringwood Parish Junior Return to Football for Junior Player $9,557.50

Football Club
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Community Grant Program

Grass Roots Recovery Grants

Probus Club of Templestowe Valley Craft Group $3,600.00

Rotary Club of Manningham (Donvale) “Rotary Cares — Manningham Shares” Doncare $10,000.00
Food Drive Project

Serpell Tennis Club Welcome Back to the Serpell Tennis Club $4,190.00

Templestowe Bowling Club Rolling on after Covid-19 at Templestowe Bowling $2,800.00
Club

Templestowe Senior Football Club Rebooting Women's Football — Virtual Boot Camp $3,397.00

The Chinese Senior Citizens Club of Reconnecting the Community Online $7,927.00

Manningham

Warrandyte Basketball Association Promotion and Engagement of Children and Youth $5,857.00
in Basketball

Warrandyte Football Club Player Welfare Program $9,822.00

Warrandyte Mechanics Institute and Arts Warrandyte Arts Expo $9,850.00

Association

Warrandyte Neighbourhood House Adulting 101 $4,380.00

Warrandyte Scouts (re)Discover Scouting in Manningham $3,000.00

Warrandyte Sporting Group Providing Support for the Local Community $6,480.00

Waesterfoldians Inclusive Running Club Westerfoldians getting back Together $3,600.00

Waonga Park Scout Group Getting Out and About $4,500.00

Wonga Park Wizards Catch up Training and Games $3,000.00

Transfers from other Grant Categories

Australian-Iranian Society of Victoria Foundation Building Covid-19 and Beyond $1,257.00

Doncaster All Abilities Basketball Appointment of Sports Administrator $9,500.00

Doncaster RSL Sub-branch Health & Wellbeing $9,000.00

Manningham Business Network Providing Business Networking and Business $2,244.00
Advisory Services

Park Orchards Lions Club Community Recovery Wall $7,262.00

Anglican Church of 5t Mark
Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club

International Nature and Forest Therapy
Alliance (INFTA)

Manningham Chinese Association
Melbourne Chinese Soccer Association
Yarra Old Grammarians Football Club

TOTAL

Unsuccessful Applications
Equipment to allow Streaming of Services
Skill-Up for Season 2021

Forest Therapy
Neighbourhood online

Grass-Roots Football Recovery
Gym for the Football Club

$273,731.28

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
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10.2 Warrandyte River Reserve - change to off leash area

File Number: IN20/555
Responsible Director:  Director City Planning and Community
Attachments: 1 Map - off leash and on leash area §

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The upgrade to the facilities on the land commonly known as Lions Park will present
dog owners with challenges in ensuring compliance with the existing dog and cat
control order because of the increased number of barbeque facilities proposed, as well
as the upgrade to the children’s play equipment.

It is anticipated that the revitalisation works will have a significant impact on the usage
of this area of the reserve by members of Manningham’s community as well as visitors
from further afield, creating possible unintended conflict between differing user groups.

The upgrade to this area will also impact on Council officers’ ability to enforce the
provisions of the Order particularly with regards to the requirement for dogs to be on
leash within 15 metres of a permanent barbeque facility or within 15 metres of
children’s play equipment.

This report recommends that the existing Order (Order No. 3 Dog and Cat Control) that
identifies the Municipality’s on and off leash areas be revoked and replaced with a new
Order that removes the off leash area for a distance of approximately 260 metres,
extending west of Kangaroo Ground-Warrandyte Road bridge to the north eastern
boundary of 183 Yarra Street, excluding Federation Playground.

The remaining off leash area within the Warrandyte River Reserve is to remain off
leash.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

A. Revoke Order No. 3 Dog and Cat Control and endorses a new Order that
makes the necessary changes to remove the off leash provision within the
Warrandyte River Reserve in the area of land west of Kangaroo Ground-
Warrandyte Road bridge to the north eastern boundary of 183 Yarra Street
excluding Federation Playground as shown on Attachment 1.

B. Endorses the future children’s playground associated with Stage 2 to the
river reserve revitalisation works to be a dog prohibited area and supports
the introduction of a new Order to reflect this change upon the new
playground being publically accessible.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Domestic Animals Act 1994 allows Council by resolution to make an Order
that imposes conditions or prohibits dogs and cats in any public area of
Manningham. This includes identifying public areas where dogs are permitted to
be unrestraint.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Council’s current Order (Order No. 3 Dog and Cat Control) identifies Warrandyte
River Reserve among other public areas of the Municipality as a leash free area
with the exception of Federation Playground where dogs are prohibited. This
enables dogs to be off leash along the river reserve provided they are under
‘effective control’ and not within 15 metres of children’s play equipment, a
permanent barbeque facility or within 15 metres of a sporting event, function or
public meeting.

In lieu of the upgrade to the facilities on the land commonly known as Lions Park,
dog owners will face challenges in ensuring compliance with the existing Order
because of the increased number of barbeque facilities proposed, as well as the
upgrade to the children’s play equipment.

It is also anticipated that the upgrade works will have a significant impact on the
usage of this area of the reserve by members of Manningham’s community as
well as visitors from further afield, creating possible unintended conflict between
user groups.

The upgrade to this area will also impact on Council officers’ ability to enforce the
provisions of the Order particularly with regards to the requirement for dogs to be
on leash within 15 metres of a permanent barbeque facility or within 15 metres of
children’s play equipment.

The car park in this area and its anticipated increased usage as a result of the
revitalisation works will also increase the risk to dogs who can currently be
unrestraint in the car park.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Warrandyte River Reserve is a very popular shared space that runs parallel
with the southern bank of the Yarra. Though the river reserve is an off leash area
with the exception of Federation Playground, dog owners are still obliged to
ensure their dogs are under effective control at all times and not within 15 metres
of a children’s playground, permanent barbeque, sporting event, function or
public meeting.

The upgrade to the river reserve to the west of Kangaroo Ground-Warrandyte
Road in the area publically known as Lions Park will incorporate three permanent
barbeque facilities for the community to use. These together with the playground
will impact the ability of dog walkers to walk their dogs off leash which is currently
permitted.

It is anticipated that the upgrade will also result in increase in the usage of the
area by both dog owners exercising their pets as well as non-dog owners using
the upgraded facilities. Though it may be possible to provide fencing or other
barriers to prevent dogs entering these sensitive areas, these types of treatments
could have unintended consequences, including restricting human access,
impact on visual aesthetics and financial costs associated with ongoing
maintenance obligations of these barriers.

In response to the challenges facing compliance with the existing Order (Order
No. 3 Dog and Cat Control) once the new facilities are constructed and to reduce
potential conflict between user groups within the reserve, it is proposed to amend
the Order to require dogs to be on leash in the area of the reserve that extends
west of Kangaroo Ground-Warrandyte Road for a distance of approximately 260
metres. This area is shown in Attachment 1.
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It should be noted that the proposed change will not prohibit dogs in this area
(except within Federation Playground) but rather require dogs to be on leash and
under effective control.

3.5 To advise the community of the proposed change, community notification was
undertaken for a period of three weeks.

This was undertaken by:
e The erection of signage in key locations within the reserve;
e The provision of information on Manningham’s Your Say Website;

o Direct notification to a number of Warrandyte interest groups and the
Friends of Manningham Cats and Dogs (FOMDAC); and

e |nformation on Council’'s website.

3.6 Inresponse community notification, 105 responses were received from the
community. These responses are summarised in the graph below which identifies
location of where respondents reside as well as the respondent’s view on the
proposal to either support or oppose.

Location of Respondent & View (Oppose/Support)

Manningham Council

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

m Do Not Support Proposal = Support Proposal

3.7 As noted in the graph, of the respondents who reside in Manningham, 25
residents oppose the change while 37 residents support the proposed change.
Conversely 22 people who reside outside of the municipality oppose the
introduction of an on leash area with 21 people supporting the change. Of the
642 signatures on the petition that opposes the proposed change, 42 people
identified as living within Manningham with the remainder comprising of people
identifying their addresses within other Victorian municipalities, interstate and
overseas locations.

3.8 ltis clear from the data collected that that there is mixed views in the community
concerning the partial removal of the off leash area within the reserve.
Supplementary comments provided by the community also indicate that in
general, there is divergent views on the provision of on/off leash areas within
Manningham.
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The review of our on/off leash area will be part of a larger piece of work that will
be undertaken next year. However in the meantime, it is the view of officers that
the current Order be changed to introduce an on leash area within the
Warrandyte River Reserve extending west of the Kangaroo Ground-Warrandyte
Road bridge to the north eastern boundary of 183 Yarra Street.

3.9 lItis not the intention that the existing Federation Playground be changed from its
current status as a dog prohibited area. Additionally, to accommodate future
changes as part of Stage 2 to the revitalisation works associated with the
playground, it is also recommended that Council support future administrative
changes to the Order to ensure the future playground be a dog prohibited area.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

4.1 The report and action taken is in support of the Council Plan 2017-2021: Liveable
Places and Spaces specifically supports Goal 2.1 Inviting, places and spaces
Goal: 2.2 Enhanced parks, open space and streetscapes.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

The amendment to the Order will require dogs to be on leash within the public area
extending from the Kangaroo Ground-Warrandyte Road bridge to the north eastern
boundary of 183 Yarra Street, excluding Federation Playground which will remain a
dog prohibited area.

The remainder of Warrandyte River Reserve that is currently off leash will remain off
leash.

6. IMPLEMENTATION
6.1 Finance / Resource Implications

6.1.1 The amended Order will be funded through the existing operational
budget.

6.1.2 Additional funding may be required to provide additional surveillance of
the area to provide both educational and enforcement activity once the
upgraded park is completed and available for use by the public. This will
also be funded through operational expenditure.

6.2 Communication and Engagement

6.2.1 Community engagement has been undertaken by:
e The erection of signage in key locations within the reserve;
e The provision of information on Manningham’s Your Say Website;

o Direct notification to a number of Warrandyte interest groups and the
Friends of Manningham Cats and Dogs (FOMDAC); and

e Information on Council’s website.
6.2.2  If Council resolves to support the proposed change, notification of the

change will occur in the Government Gazette and via media, including
notification in the newspaper and on Council’'s website.
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6.3 Timelines

6.3.1 If approved by Council, notification of the change to the Order will be
given in the Government Gazette and other media. After which time the
change to the off leash area will become operational. It is anticipated that
is will occur in November to coincide with the completion of Stage 1 of the
upgrade to the reserve

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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Attachment 1 - Proposed changes to Off Leash area (Federation Playground to remain dog prohibited)
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10.3 Heritage Advisory Committee Terms of Reference - Minor rectification

File Number: IN20/554
Responsible Director:  Director City Planning and Community
Attachments: 1 Attachment 1 - Amended Terms of Reference I

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

At its meeting of 28 April 2020, Council adopted a revised Terms of Reference (ToR)
for the Heritage Advisory Committee (HAC). However, the adopted ToR inadvertently
included references and provisions relating to aboriginal heritage. As such, the
incorrect version of the ToR were adopted.

This report seeks to rectify this error and recommends that Council adopt the amended
ToR for the Committee (Attachment 1), which removes reference to or provisions
relating to aboriginal heritage.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
A. Supersede the Terms of Reference of the Heritage Advisory Committee that
were adopted by Council at its meeting on 28 April 2020, with the amended

Terms of Reference included in Attachment 1 of this report.

B. Advise Council’s Heritage Advisory Committee of Council’s resolution.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 At its meeting on 28 April 2020, Council adopted a revised Terms of Reference
(ToR) for the Heritage Advisory Committee (the Committee).

2.2 At this meeting, Council also considered a request to include Reconciliation
Manningham as a Committee Member and align the ToR with the requirements of
Council’s Advisory Committee Policy.

2.3 Council was advised that the Wurundjeri Woi Wurrung Cultural Heritage Aboriginal
Corporation (the Wurundjeri Corporation) is the sole Registered Aboriginal Party
for Manningham under the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006. This registration provides
the Wurundjeri Corporation the legal right to provide authoritative advice on
aboriginal culture and heritage in Manningham.

2.4 At this meeting it was recommended to Council to not support the request to
include Reconciliation Manningham as a formal Committee member representing
Aboriginal matters. This is based on the advice above regarding the Wurundjeri
Corporation rights.

2.5 Inadvertently, a copy of the ToR containing provisions relating to the HAC being
able to formally consider matters of aboriginal heritage were incorrectly attached to
the Council Report, and subsequently endorsed.
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3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1 To correct this oversight, this report now recommends that the ToR that were
adopted by Council on 28 April 2020 be superseded by an amended ToR
(Attachment 1).

3.2 The following four corrections are proposed in the amended ToR :

e In Purpose (clause 1) — delete the words “or a place of Aboriginal
Heritage”;

¢ In Roles and Tasks (clause 2) — delete dot point five, “Aboriginal
heritage”;

¢ In Membership (clause 6) — under the heading ‘The Committee will
comprise’. replace dot point five which read as “Three community
representatives appointed by Council, where one representative provides
Aboriginal representation” to now read as: “Two community
representatives appointed by Council.”; and

¢ In Membership Criteria (clause 7) — delete dot point three “One
community representative to have Aboriginal representation.”

3.3 The proposed corrections are considered to uphold Council’s responsibilities under
relevant legislation relating to aboriginal cultural heritage, and respect the objectives
of the draft Manningham Reconciliation Action Plan.

3.4 The proposed changes to the ToR do not prevent aboriginal cultural heritage
matters being raised and discussed by the Committee, however, formal advice
regarding such matters must be sought from the Wurundjeri Woi Wurrung Cultural

Heritage Aboriginal Corporation as the sole Registered Aboriginal Party for
Manningham.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY
4.1 This report relates to the Council Plan theme: Healthy Community.

Goal 1.2 — A connected and inclusive community that seeks to respect, support,
celebrate Aboriginal people, culture and heritage.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Amending the ToR reinforces the significant role that the Wurundjeri Woi Wurrung
Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation plays in maintaining and protecting

aboriginal culture in Manningham. It also helps to empower Traditional Owners to
promote respect for their aboriginal cultural heritage.

6. IMPLEMENTATION
6.1 Finance / Resource Implications

6.1.1 The recommendations of this report do not have any finance resource
implications.
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6.2 Communication and Engagement
6.2.1 The Heritage Advisory Committee will be advised of Council’s resolution,
noting that the Committee have since been advised of this proposed
change.

6.3 Timelines

6.3.1 The revised ToR will come into effect upon Council’s resolution. The life of the
ToR is four years from the adopted date of the ToR.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

7.1 No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect
conflict of interest in this matter.

Item 10.3 Page 29



COUNCIL AGENDA

15 SEPTEMBER 2020

Short Description:

Relevant to:

Responsible Officer:

Approved by Council:

Next Scheduled
Review Date:
Reference:

This Terms of Reference applies to Council's Heritage
Advisory Committee.

Councillors, Committee Members and Manningham
Council officers

Manager Integrated Planning

15 September 2020

15 September 2024

EF10/3804
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1. Purpose To provide advice to Council on the conservation, promotion of, and
education about heritage and heritage places within the municipality.

A heritage place is defined as a building, garden, landscape or landscape
element (e.g. a tree or row of frees). igh i that
has heritage significance to the municipality. This will include all heritage
places included on the Schedule to the Heritage Overlay. It may also
include other buildings, gardens, landscapes or landscape elements that
are not included on the Schedule, but are considered to be of potential
heritage value to the municipality
2. Roles and To provide advice and guidance to Council and staff on heritage matters in
Tasks Manningham, including:
« Amendments to the Manningham Planning Scheme;
« Criteria for appraising applications made under Council's Heritage
Restoration Fund:
« The exchange of ideas to assist with the ongoing management and
enhancement of heritage in Manningham;
s On heritage events and community education and programs .
s Aboriginal herilage “ F tted: Indent: Left: 0.82 cm, No bullets ar
3. Chairperson The position of Chairperson shall be reviewed annually when Council numbering
appeints Councillors to advisory committees >

The Chairperson will be supported in their role by the relevant officer who
will brief the Chairperson prior to the meeting to ensure ils efficient and
effect conduet.

In the event that the Chairperson is absent, the meeting will be chaired by
the Chairperson’s nominee or representative of Council.

4. Delegated Advisory committees act in an advisory capacity only and have no
Authority and | delegated authority to make decisions on behalf of Council.
Decision .
Making Advisory committees provide advice to Council and staff to assist them in
their decision making
In accordance with section 76E of the Local Government Act 1989, a
Councillor must not improperly direct or influence a member of Council
staff in the exercise of any power or in any performance of any duty or
function
5. Meeting Meetings will be held four imes each year.
Procedures

Additional meetings may be required on an as-needs basis, such as during
the development or review of a major strategy. Additional meetings will be
subject to approval by both the Chairperson and the Director of City
Planning and Community

Meetings are closed to the community outside endorsed members and
delegates. Guests or subject matter experts may be invited to attend
meetings as required.

Meetings will:

« Commence on time and conclude by the stated completion time;

+ Be scheduled and confirmed in advance with all relevant papers
distributed to each member,

« Encourage fair and respectful discussion;

« Focus on the relevant issues at hand,

« Provide advice to Council, as far as practicable, on a consensus basis.

=

1 Heritage Ad Commitize — Te f Referance .
eritage Advisary Committee — Terms of Referenc: MANNINGHAM
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€. Membership The Committee will comprise:

.

. s

One Councillor appointed annually by Council;
One representative from the Doncaster and Templestowe Historical
Society:

One representalive from the Warrandyte Historical Society,
One representative from the Wonga Park History Group
(subcommittee of Wonga Park Community Cottage Inc); and

representalive provides Aboriginal representation. Two community
representatives appointed by Council.

A quorum for an Advisory Committee meeting is 50% plus one including at
least:

One Councillor;

Two specialist or community representatives officers in attendance;
Manager Integrated Planning or representative;

Strategic Planner;

Council's Heritage Advisor.

With the exception of community representatives, members may nominate
a proxy to allend a Heritage Advisory Committee meeting on their behalf

Councillors not formally appointed as committee members may attend

7. Membership The following membership criteria will be used in making community
Criteria appeintments to the committee:

.
.

..

Live within the municipality;
Have a strong interest in and knowledge of local history, including
various aspects of local built history and landscape history. This could

include specialist knowledge or interest in local buildings, gardens and

landscapes. It could also include specialist knowledge in heritage
interpretation and education

. O PRIty Fepresantative to ha boriginalrepr

Have a strong interest or knewledge in differing time periods of
importance to the development of the municipality. For example, the
early orcharding years or the mid-twentieth suburban development;
Relevant experience in committees / or demonstrated ability to
participate in, and constructively contribute to a group, committee, or
arganisation;

Ability to regularly attend and participate in meetings as scheduled
A mix of skills and attributes to complement other members of the
committee;

Diversity in terms of gender, age and culture;

Linking continuing tenure to performance and contribution;
Performance and contribution of members seeking re-nomination;
Consideration of staggered appointments to ensure a membership
that preserves the balance between old and new;

Community representatives are to be appointed for a period of three
years (3) years and for a maximum of three terms (9 years)

2 | Heritage Advisory Committee — Terms of Referance

=

MANNINGHAM

-
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8. Nomination

Process

The most appropriate mix of membership will be determined by Council

Communily representatives are appointed by Council through an
expressions of interest and selection process

Expressions of interest will be sought by public notice in the local media
and on the Manningham Council's website or by letter to relevant local or
peak agencies or community organisations.

Every effort should be made to ensure a representative cross section of
people from the municipality and elected to serve on the committee.

Membership criteria should consider:

s The appropriate mix of competencies required to fulfil roles onthe
committee;

«  Diversity in terms of gender, age and culture; and

« Linking continuing tenure to performance and contribution.

Officers will undertake an initial assessment of the applicants to determine
compliance with the membership criteria and provide this list to the
Chairperson. The recruitment process should consider the implementation
of staggered membership appointments to ensure a membership that
preserves the balance between old and new

A Councillor committee supported by an officer and comprising the Mayor,
committee Chairperson and one other Councillor will rank the applicants
and make a recommendation regarding the preferred applicants which will
be noted in the officer’s report

Council is not bound by the recommendation of the Councillor committee
in appointing community representatives

Communily representative(s) appointed on behalf of an
agency/organisation may be replaced or substituted at any time at the
agency/organisation's discretion by notifying the chairperson and
responsible officer in writing. Due consideration should be given to
ensuring the appointee has the appropriate mix of competencies to
undertake the role and refreshing membership on a regular basis.

Nominees shall nominate on the appropriate form to Council within the
advertised period

Membership will be for a three year period to ensure that the
representation is continuously refreshed and that opportunity is provided
for new community members to participate

Members can re-nominate after their term ends in accordance with the
nomination process and membership criteria.

Heritage Advisory Committze — Terms of Referance
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9. Resignation

10. Conflicts of
Interest

A member of the Committee may resign at any time

Notice of resignation is to be provided in writing to the Chairperson and the
officer responsible for managing the Committee,

If a committee member fails to attend 3 consecutive meetings without prior
notice, membership is deemed to have lapsed

Casual vacancies that occur due to a community representative resigning
or membership lapsing may be filled by co-opling suitable candidates
identified from the most recent selection process for the remainder of the
previous incumbent's term

Officers, in consultation with the Councillor committee, will make a
recommendation to the Chief Executive Officer to appoint a suitable
candidate for the reminder of the previous incumbent's term.

‘Where there are no suitable candidates identified, a formal expression of
interest and selection process as set out in the nomination process is
required. The outcome of a formal expression of interest process will be
presented to Council for determination in accordance with the procedures
outlines above.

Where a vacancy occurs within 6 months of the current membership
expiring and providing that a quorum is maintained, the vacancy will not be
filled for the remainder of the term

Meetings of an Advisory Committee may form an Assembly of Councillors.
When this occurs, Councillors and officers are required to comply with the
conflict of interest provisions as set down in the Local Government Act

1989

Where a Councillor or officer declares a conflict of interest in relation to a
matter in which the committee is concerned, they must disclose the
interest to the committee before the matter is considered or discussed at
the meeting

Disclosure must include the nature of the interest and be recorded in the
minutes of the meeting. The Councillor or officer must leave the room
while the matler is being cansidered and may return only after
consideration of the matter and all votes on the matter.

Where a community member has a Conflict of Interest (as defined in the
Local Government Act) in relation to a matter in which the committee is
concerned, or Is likely to be considered or discussed, the community
member must disclose the matter to the group before the matter is
considered or discussed.

Disclosure must include the nature of the relevant interest or conflict of
interest and be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. It will be at the
discretion of the Chairperson if the community member remains or leaves
the room whilst the matter is discussed, and this must also be recorded in
the minutes of the meeting. A community member who has declared a
conflict of interest on a matter must abstain from voting on the matter if
they remain in the meeting.

4 Heritage Advisory Committee — Terms of Referance
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11. Code of
Conduct

As a minimum, to ensure advisory committees are conducted in a

respectful and efficient manner, committee members must

o Act with integrity;

+ Impartially exercise their responsibiliies in the interests of the local
community;

« Notimproperly seek to confer an advantage or disadvantage on any
person, including themselves,

s Treal all persons with respect and have due regard to the opinions,
beliefs, rights and responsibiliies of Councillors, committee members
and Council officers;

«  Commitlo providing a safe, inclusive and productive environment free
from discrimination, harassment and bullying by not engaging in
behaviour that is intimidating or that may constitute discrimination,
harassment or bullying;

»  Take reasonable care of their own health and safety and that of
others;

« Commit to regular altendance at meetings

Committee representatives appointed to advisory commitiees are
expecled to abide by the Code of Conduct.

Any breach of this Code of Conduct by a community representative may
result in termination of membership.

Councillors are bound by the Councillor Code of Conduct.

Council officers are bound by the Employee Code of Conduct.

12. Media

Contact with the media by committee members will be conducted in
accordance with the Manningham City Council Media Policy

Committee members should defer any media enquiries to the Chairperson
in the first instance and should take care notto respond as a
representative of the committee

13. Confidential
Information

Committee members must not disclose information that they know, or
should reasonably have known is confidential information

Committee members have an obligation to not disclose any materials or
information that is not publicly available unless approved by the
Chairperson or a representative of Council.

Committee members should be mindful of their obligations under the
Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 regarding the use and disclosure of
information.

5 |Heritage Advisory Committze — Terms of Referance
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14. Sunset Clause
and Review

The term of the Heritage Advisory Committee is four years

Council may, by exception, establish an advisory committee for a period of
less than four years

If an advisory committee has a relevant function at the end of the standard
four year term, a report must be presented to Council prier to that period
ending that includes a review of the committee’s Terms of Reference and
seeking endorsement from Council to continue to act in an advisory
capacity for a further period.

Areview of the terms of reference and the role, function, membership, and
preductivity of the committee will be conducted at least once every four
years from the date of their adoption by Council to ensure currency and
effecliveness

These terms of reference may be revoked at any time by Council.

15. Support

The Council will provide the necessary support to assist the committee to
function effectively including:

»  Maintaining contact details of members

Preparing and distributing agendas and prior reading material;
Preparing and distributing meeting minutes;

Circulating other material to committee members as necessary,
Preparation of an Assembly of Councillors record as required under
the Local Government Act 1989,

s s .
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16. Committee

7

Management

Heritage Advisory Committze — Terms of Referance

Agendas and minutes must be prepared for each meeting of an advisory
committee by the supporting officer in consultation with the Chairperson.

The agenda will be supported by accurate and timely information to inform
discussion of the issues.

The agenda must be provided to members of the committee not less than
T days before the time fixed for the holding of the meeting

The Chairperson must arrange for minutes of each meeling of the
committee to be kept in consultation with the supporting officer.

The minutes of a meeting of an Advisory Committee must:

« Contain details of the proceedings and outcomes for action;

+ Be clearly expressed;

« Be self-explanatory; and

« Incorporate any relevant reports or a summary of the relevant
information considered in forming any recommendations.

Draft minutes of the committee meeting will be circulated to members
within two weeks of the meeting and be listed on the agenda for the next
meeting for endorsement

The supporting officer will ensure timely completion of any actions arising
from the meeting and provide an update on the status of any outstanding
actions at the next meeting

From time to time, the Commiltee may raise matters of strategic
significance relevant to the Terms of Reference for the Committee. Such
matters will be referred to the relevant Executive Management Team
(EMT) member for consideration to determine an appropriate course of
action.

The supperting officer will, in consultation with the Chairperson, prepare a
briefing memorandum of the Committee’s discussion and request to refer
the matter, for the benefit of the EMT member.

The relevant EMT member may exercise their discretion as to how to
respond to the Committee's request. This may include:
« Responding to the Committee in writing (to be included on the agenda
of the next meeting), cutlining:
= steps being taken to implement the matter (or part of the
relevant matter); or
o reasons why the matter is not supported;
+ Where appropriate, referring the matter to a Strategic Briefing Session
for discussion by Councillors.

The relevant EMT member or their delegate may be invited or choose to
attend the next Committee meeting to discuss their response to the matter.

Agendas and minutes are to be made available on the Councillor Hub.

The Council may determine through the ToR whether minutes are to be
made available to the public. As a general rule, advisory committees are
encouraged to provide this information to the public. with the exception of
reports and h that are confidential in nature.

Where it is determined that minutes will be made available to the public, a
copy should be placed on Manningham Council's website following

endersement by the advisory committee.
,/-‘.//
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Administrative suppert and advice will be provided by the directorate
whoese functions are most aligned to the commiltee’s objectives.

Al the beginning of each committee term or where there is a change in
committee membership, the supporting officer in consultation with the
Chairperson will provide a thorough induction program which outlines the
various roles and responsibilities of the committee and its members with
the new committee or any new members of the committee.

Advisory Committees are required to prepare a report on an annual basis
which should directly reflect the Terms of Reference and be in line with
their stated objectives. The report may include a self-evaluation of the
Commitlee's operalions against the objectives and the performance
measures of the committee as set out in the Terms of Reference. The
report will be presented to Council for noting under the relevant directorate
heading. The committee’s Terms of Reference may stipulate more
fraquent reporting.

17. Administrative

Updates

From time to time, circ es may change leading to the need for
minor administrative changes to this policy. \Where an update does not
materially alter this policy, such a change may be made administratively.
Examples of miner administrative changes include changes to names of
Manningham Council departments or a minor amendment to legislation
thal does not have material impact. Where any change or update may
materially change the intent of this policy, it must be considered by
Council.

E

Heritage Advisory Committze — Terms of Referance

=

MANNINGHAM

Item 10.3

Attachment 1

Page 38



COUNCIL AGENDA 15 SEPTEMBER 2020

11 CITY SERVICES

There are no City Services reports.
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12 SHARED SERVICES

12.1 2019/20 Financial Report and Performance Statement: Approval in

Principle

File Number: IN20/563

Responsible Director:  Director Shared Services
Attachments: 1 2019/20 Financial Report §

2  2019/20 Performance Statement §
3 2019/20 Governance and Management Checklist

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Financial Report and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020 are
presented for consideration and approval in principle.

These have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The Financial Report and Performance Statement were reviewed by Council’s Audit
and Risk Committee on Friday 4 September 2020. The Audit and Risk Committee is
satisfied that an appropriate external audit process has been undertaken and that the
Committee’s review did not identify any issues that would prevent Council from
approving the Financial Report and Performance Statement “in principle” for
submission to the Auditor-General.

A detailed audit of the Financial Report and Performance Statement was undertaken
by the Auditor-General during August 2020. The “Draft Closing Report — Manningham
City Council for the year ended 30 June 2020” prepared by the Auditor-General and his
agent HLB Mann Judd concluded that the 2019/20 Financial Report (Attachment 1) and
2019/20 Performance Statement (Attachment 2) “present fairly”.

The Financial Report, Performance Statement and Governance and Management
checklist will be reproduced in full in Council’s 2019/20 Annual Report.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

A. Notes that the Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that an appropriate
external audit process has been undertaken on the 2019/20 Financial
Report and 2019/20 Performance Statement.

B. Authorises Councillor Paul McLeish and Councillor Mike Zafiropoulos to
certify the 2019/20 Financial Report and 2019/20 Performance Statement in
their final form. In the event that either Councillor McLeish or Zafiropoulos
is not available, then any other Manningham Councillor is authorised to
certify the Financial Report and Performance Statement.
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Endorses in principle the 2019/20 Financial Report and 2019/20
Performance Statement.

Notes the 2019/20 Governance and Management Checklist and authorises
Councillor Paul McLeish to certify the 2019/20 Governance and
Management Checklist. In the event that Councillor McLeish is not
available, then any other Manningham Councillor is authorised to certify
the checklist.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The Auditor-General’s agent (HLB Mann Judd) has completed a review of the
attached Financial Report and Performance Statement and all supporting
information. It is anticipated that a clear (or unmodified) audit opinion will be
issued for the Financial Report and Performance Statement. However, the
Financial Report and Performance Statement remain provisional until final
signing by the Auditor-General.

The Financial Report, Performance Statement and the Auditor-General’s draft
closing report of the 2019/20 Audit was presented to the Audit and Risk
Committee (the Committee) on 4 September 2020, and the Committee resolved:

a) That it is satisfied that an appropriate external audit process has taken place
on the proposed financial report and performance statement and is not
aware of any issues that would prevent the Council from approving the
financial report and performance statement; and

b) To recommend that Council approve the 2019/20 Financial Report and
2019/20 Performance Statement in principle for lodging with the Auditor
General.

The “Approved in Principle” Financial Report and Performance Statement are
required to be presented to the Auditor-General following the Council Meeting.
The Auditor-General is then expected to issue the final signed audit closing report
prior to 30 September 2020.

The Financial Statements and Performance Statement will then be incorporated
into Council’s Annual Report, which is normally due for lodging with the Minister
for Local Government by 30 September, however, due to COVID-19, Councils
are permitted to lodge their Annual Report up until 30 November 2020. The
Annual Report will then be formally presented to Council as soon as possible
after lodgement in accordance with the Local Government Act.

The Financial Report provides comprehensive reporting of the revenue and
expenditure of Council for the 2019/20 financial year and the financial position of
Council as at 30 June 2020. The notes accompanying the Financial Statements
provide information relevant to Council’s accountability obligations and additional
information to assist users of the report to form an opinion on the financial
performance of Council.

The Performance Statement details a range of service and financial performance
indicators.
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3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

The Financial Report of Council is a general purpose financial report that consists
of the financial statements which include a comprehensive income statement,
balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement, statement of
capital works and notes accompanying these financial statements. This general
purpose financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB), the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Financial Summary

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Council continued to be in a strong financial position at the end of 2019/20
despite the impact of COVID-19. These results demonstrate our commitment to
maintaining long-term financial sustainability while providing cost-effective
services and delivering infrastructure projects to meet the needs of our
community.

The financial statements present Council in a sound financial position with a low
financial sustainability risk.

COVID-19 had a significant financial impact on Council in 2019/20. In response
to a decrease in demand and government directives amidst the COVID-19
outbreak, a number of Council services were reduced or closed, including our
recreation, leisure and community facilities such as Aquarena, stadiums,
pavilions, libraries, community centres, the function centre, the Civic Centre and
MC2. These closures resulted in a decrease in Council revenue and other
unbudgeted costs. The overall net financial impact on council services of COVID-
19 in 2019/20 was $2.45 million.

In 2019/20 Council also provided a range of COVID-19 community financial relief
measures including:

Fourth quarter rate instalment payment — extension of due date to 30 June
2020, without incurring any penalty interest and the continued ability for
ratepayers to apply for special rate repayment arrangements for those
qualifying on financial hardship grounds.

Introduction of a COVID-19 Community Relief Fund to provide funding to
sectors of the community in need.

Rent and lease relief, and utility subsidies, for sporting clubs and community
groups who use Council facilities.

The relief measures above amounted to $0.49 million in 2019/20.
Council continues to closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and
work with the community through these challenging times with over $3.0 million of

COVID-19 community financial relief being provided to the community in 2020/21.

Key finance facts:

$26.33 million surplus (before asset revaluation decrement)
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e $7.67 million adjusted underlying surplus (after adjusting for open space
contributions, developer contributions, capital grant income and other capital
contributions income — which are all to be used for specific purposes)

e $2.14 billion net assets, a decrease of $35.29 million on 2018/19 values
e $61.22 million net asset revaluation decrement in 2019/20
e $86.52 million cash and term deposits

Operating position

3.8 An operating surplus of $26.33 million was achieved in 2019/20, $9.53 million
greater than the adopted budget surplus of $16.80 million.

3.9 This was mainly due to greater than budgeted income relating to contributed
assets (the value of land and other infrastructure assets transferred to
Manningham by developers totalling $8.25 million) and the early receipt of 50% of
the 2020/21 VGC Financial Assistance Grant ($1.83 million).

3.10 Itis important to note that the adjusted underlying surplus, which removes
income that is tied to specific purposes, was $7.67 million for the year. The
adjusted underlying surplus excludes open space contributions, developer
contributions, capital grant income and other capital contributions income — which
are all to be used for specific purposes.

Income

3.11 We derived our income from various sources including rates, user fees and
charges, grants, interest and other contributions.

3.12 Our total income for 2019/20 was $153.45 million, compared to a budget of
$143.15 million. The increased revenue is mainly due to monetary contributions
from developers ($2.17 million greater than budget), non-monetary contributions
from developers ($7.32 million greater than budget), and operating grants being
$2.49 million greater than budget.

Expenditure

3.13 Our total expenditure for 2019/20 was $127.12 million, compared to a budget of
$126.35 million. The main variances related to materials, services and contracts
being $1.0 million greater than budget due to the financial impact of COVID-19
and costs associated with a significant hail storm in January 2020 and a net loss
on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment being $1.69 million
greater than budgeted. This primarily related to the demolition of some buildings
on Council owned land.

Net worth

3.14 Our financial strength can be assessed by net assets (what we own less what we
owe). As at 30 June 2020, Council’s net assets were $2.14 billion.

Assets

3.15 Manningham has total assets of $2.19 billion. The major components of our

assets include infrastructure, property, plant and equipment valued at $2.08
billion and cash and investments of $86.52 million.
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Liabilities

3.16 Our liabilities primarily include amounts owed to suppliers and amounts owed to
employees for leave entitlements. Total liabilities at 30 June 2020 were $54.81
million, an increase of $7.74 million over the previous year.

3.17 At 30 June 2020 Council was debt free having repaid in full $7.28 million of loan
borrowings during the year.

Capital Works

3.18 Council aims to maintain its infrastructure assets at expected levels while
continuing to deliver services needed by our community. During 2019/20, we
invested $48.44 million in an extensive Capital Works Program to renew and
upgrade community assets throughout the municipality. This program was funded
primarily through rates, with additional funds provided through grants and
contributions.

3.19 The major categories of capital works included:
e roads, drainage, footpaths and cycleways $25.8 million
e community and council building refurbishment and upgrades $11.8 million
e parks, open space and streetscapes $4.3 million.
Liquidity
3.20 Cash and investments at 30 June 2020 were $86.52 million, a decrease of $1.52

million from the previous year.

3.21 The working capital ratio, which assesses our ability to meet current
commitments, is calculated by measuring our current assets as a percentage of
current liabilities. Our ratio of 198.3% indicates that for every dollar of short-term
liabilities, we have $1.98 worth of current assets. This is a strong result.

Rate cap

3.22 This was the fourth year of the Victorian Government’s ‘Fair Go Rates’ legislation.
Manningham complied the 2.50% rate cap for 2019/20. We continued to follow
the strategies we set last year to ensure our long-term financial sustainability in a
rate capping environment.

Performance Statement

3.23 The Performance Statement details a range of service and financial performance
indicators. This is also audited by the Victorian Auditor-General. Highlights from
the Performance Statement include:

Financial Indicators:

o Working capital ratio of 198.3% in 2020 and averaging 180% in the forward
four year forecasts, highlighting a strong liquidity capacity of Council;
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The adjusted underlying result ratio was 5.69% in 2019/20. This is a
healthy result despite the financial impact on Council of the COVID-19
pandemic. The forecast levels are expected to remain in a healthy range
despite the anticipated ongoing financial impact on Council of the COVID-
19 pandemic in 2020/21; and

The Asset renewal and upgrade ratio was a very strong 161.28% in
2019/20. The 2019/20 result and forecasts from 2020/21 onwards
demonstrates Manningham's ongoing commitment to invest in the renewal
and upgrade of its existing community infrastructure.

Service Performance Indicators:

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted on a number of indicators in 2019/20:

Aquatic Facilities — With the facility closed between March and June due to
COVID-19, utilisation of the Aquatic facility was 3.97 visits per resident
which was significantly lower than 2018-19. There was a restricted re-
opening for a small portion of May/June, however, utilisation during this
time was minimal.

Libraries - Library participation was 14.30% and was impacted by COVID-
19 restrictions, with libraries closed from March and reopened with reduced
services from mid-June.

Maternal and Child Health participation was at 76.42% - Council continues
to have strong participation in first home visits, however since March,
participation rates have decreased due to COVID-19 with limited
appointments/staggering for social distancing and appointment delays due
to changes in service delivery.

Waste diversion from landfill continues to be strong with 56.4% diverted.
Manningham has seen an increase in tonnages when compared to
2018/19. Garden waste tonnages were significantly higher due to higher
than average rainfall resulting in increased foliage growth.

The 2019/20 Annual Report will detail service and financial highlights from the
2019/20 year and also reproduce the Financial Report and Performance
Statement in full.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY
4.1 The Financial Report and the Performance Statement are a historical reflection of
Council’s 2019/20 financial performance and performance against key initiatives
identified within the 2017-2021 Council Plan.
5. IMPLEMENTATION
5.1 Finance / Resource Implications
The outcomes contained in the Financial Report will form the starting basis for
the 2020/21 review of Council’s 10 Year Long Term Financial Plan.
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5.2 Communication and Engagement

The Financial Report, Performance Statement and Governance and
Management Checklist will be published in Council’s 2019/20 Annual Report.
Performance indicators from the Performance Statement will also be published
on the Know Your Council website.

5.3 Timelines

Following approval in principle by Council, the Financial Report and Performance
Statement will be submitted to the Auditor-General’'s Office for final audit
clearance, which should be received prior to 30 September 2020.

6. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
Financial Report
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1983, the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements.

Jon Gorst (BCom, CPA)
Principal Accounting Officer

16 September 2020
Doncaster

In our apinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of Manningham City Council for the year ended 30
June 2020 and the financial position of Council as at that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial statements to be misleading or
inaccurale

We have been authonsed by the Council and by the Local Govemment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify the financial
statements in their final form.

Paul McLeish Mike Zafiropoulos AM Andrew Day
Mayor Deputy Mayor Chief Executive Officer
15 September 2020 15 September 2020 15 September 2020
Doncaster Doncaster Doncaster
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
201%20 Financial Report
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
Note 2020 2018
$'000 §'000
Income
Rates and charges 3 105,953 101,979
Statutory fees and fines 32 3,389 3649
User fees and charges 33 8919 10,921
Grants - operating 34 (a) 12,257 12,129
Grants - capital 34(b) 1,661 2043
Contributions - manetary 35 10,152 7,037
Contributions - non-monetary 35 8324 7,585
Other income ar 2573 3,083
Share of gain/(loss) from investment in associate 62 221 78
Total income 153,449 148,504
Expenses
Employee costs 41 54,120 53,326
Materials, services and confracts 42 28469 23445
Depreciation 43 22175 20,598
Amortisation - Intangible assefs 44 1,243 1,042
Amortisation - Right of use assets 45 528 -
Bad and doubtful debts 46 190 407
Borrowing costs 47 109 309
Finance costs - Leases 48 73 -
Net (gain)loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 36 1,595 (96)
Dther expenses 49 18,619 20,320
Total expenses 127121 119,352
Surplus for the year 26,328 29,152
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation decrement 91 (a) (61,217) (80,187)
Total comprehensive result (34,889) (51,035)
The above comp 1sive income stat it should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes.
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL

201920 Financial Report
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2020
Note 2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 51 (a) 65,358 64 342
Trade and other receivables 511(e) 13,463 11,008
Other financial assets 5.1 (b) 21,163 23,700
Ofer assets 52(a) 1,410 2,803
Total current assets 101,394 101,943
Nen-current assets
Trade and other receivables 5.11(c) 55 kll
Investments in associates 6.2 2526 2,305
Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets 6.1 2,078,289 2,109,650
Right-of-use assels 58 2653 -
Intangible assets 5.2 (b) 4,947 3487
Total non-current assets 2,088,470 2115473
Total assets 2,189,864 2,217 M6
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5.3(a) 21,997 12,621
Trust funds and deposits 5.3(b) 13,385 12,574
Uneamed income 5.3 (c) 2,361 958
Provisions 55 12,974 12,279
Interest bearing liabilities 54 - 7,274
Lease lizbilities 58 403 R
Total current liabilities 51,120 4571
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 55 1,402 1,356
Lease lisbilities 5.8 2,283 -
Total non-current liabilities 3,685 1,356
Total liabilities 54,805 47,067
Net Assets 2,135,059 2,170,349
Equity
Accumulated surplus 759,511 738,643
Reserves 91 1,375,548 1431706
Total Equity 2,135,059 2,170,349

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Financial Report
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
Asset
A lated revaluati Other
surplus reserves reserves Total
2020 Note $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 738,643 1,422 479 9,227 2,170,349
Impact of change in acmuvting policy - AASE 15 10 ) )
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Impact of change in accounting policy - AASE 1058
Inoome o Not o Proft Entcs. 10 (697) - (697)
Impact of change in accounting policy - AASE 16 Leases 58
Adjusted opening balance 737 946 1422473 9,227 2,169,652
Surplus for the year 26,328 - - 26,328
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 91 (a) (61,217) - (61,217)
Transfer to accumulated surplus on realisation of assets 9.1 (a) 296 - 296
Transfers from other reserves 9.1 (b) 4511 - (4,511) -
Transfers to other reserves 9.1 (b) (9.570) - 9,570 -
Balance at end of the financial year 759,511 1,361,262 14,286 2,135,059
Asset
A lated revaluati Other
surplus reserves reserves Total
2019 Note $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 710,040 1,502 666 5,166 2217872
Surplus for the year 29,152 - - 29,152
Net asset revaluation increment/{decrement) 9.1 (a) - (80,187} (80,187)
Transfer to acoumulated surplus on realisation of assets 91 (a) 3512 - - 3512
Transfers from other reserves 9.1(b) 2,303 - (2,303) -
Transfers to other reserves 9.1(b) (6.364) - 6,364 -
Balance at end of the financial year 738,643 1,422,479 9,221 2,170,349

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
201920 Financial Report
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
Note 2020 2019
Inflows/(Qutflows) Inflows/(Qutflows)
$'000 §'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and waste charges 103,955 100,836
Statutory fees, fines and user charges 13,171 14,564
Grants - operating 12614 12173
Grants - capital 2142 2672
Contributions - monetary 10,152 6,387
Interest recaived 1,654 1,949
Met increase in trust funds and depesits 811 280
Qther receipts 1,120 1,138
Total cash inflows from operating activities 145,519 139,999
Met GST refundf{payment) (357) (130)
Materials, services and contracts (45,748) (46,749)
Short-term, low value and variable lease payments (379) -
Employee costs (52,861) (53,089)
Total cash cutflows from operating activities (99,345) (99,968)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 9.2 46,174 40,031
Cash flows from investing activities
Paymenls for property, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and ofher fixed assets (39.898) (24,664)
Proceeds from disposal of propery, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed 16 655 4584
assets
Receipts/(payments) for other financial assets 2537 (5,900)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (36.706) (25,980
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs (109) (309)
Repayment of borrowings (7.279) -
Interest paid - lease liability (73) -
Repayment of lease liabiliies (991) -
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (8.452) (309)
Met increasel(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,016 13,742
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 64,342 50,600
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5.1 (a) 65,358 64,342
Financing arrangements 586
Restrictions on cash assets 5.1

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes.
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL

2019/20 Financial Report
Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Property
Land under roads 212 166
Buildings 8,438 3,527
Total property 8,650 3,693
Plant, equipment and other assets
Plant, machinery and equipment 2078 1,763
Fixtures, fitings and fumiture 153 99
Computers and telecommunications 237 285
Artworks 13 -
Total plant, equipment and other assets 2481 2147
Infrastructure
Roads 15,641 9,091
Bridges 10 192
Footpaths and cycleways 5,506 3372
Cff strest car parks 78 98
Drainage 4652 2728
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 3,360 B76
Parks, open space and streetscapes 4317 1,573
Total infrastructure 33,564 17,930
Intangible assets
Software 3,748 3,199
Total intangible assets 3,748 3,199
Total capital works expenditure 48,443 26,969
Represented by:
Mew asset expenditure 11,583 4768
Assel renewal expenditure 31,502 18,016
Asset expansion expenditure 1,097 1,255
Asset upgrads expenditure 4 261 2,930
Total capital works expenditure 48, 443 26,969

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Notes to the Financial Report MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020 2019/20 Financial Report

Overview

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Introduction

The City of Manningham was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 15 December 1994 and is a body corporate. The
Council's main office is located at 899 Doncaster Road, Doncaster, Victoria,

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying these financial statements
The general purpose financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other authontative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations
2014,

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses are recognisad in the reperting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumplions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and lizbilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimales and associated judgements are based on professional judgement denved from historical
expenence and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the penod in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are affected by
the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial
statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.1);

- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.1);

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.5);

- the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific so as to determine whether an arrangement is within the scope
of AASE 15 Revenue from Gonfracts with Customers or AASS 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3)

- the determination, in accordance with AASE 16 Leases, of the lease ferm, the estimation of the discount rate when not implicit in the lease
and whether an arrangement is in substance short-term or low value (refer to Note 5 8)

- other areas requiring judgements.

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting pelicies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative figures
have been amended to accord with current presentation (except where fransitional requirements of AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, AASBE 16 Leases and AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities do not require restatement of comparatives under the modified
retrospective approach adopted by the Council)
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)

(b)  Impact of COVID-19 pandemic - significant ti lici

On 30 January 2020, COVID-12 was declared o be a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Since then, various measures have
been implementad by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19. This crisis and measurss taken to mitigate
it has impacted council operations in a number of areas during the financial year ended 30 June 2020,

In response to a decrease in demand and government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, a number of Council services were reduced
or temporarily closed. Council also provided a range of COVID-19 community financial relief measures (Mote 11).

In immediate response to the pandemic event Council provided relief for rate payers. The fourth gquarter rate instalment payment due date was
extended to 30 June 2020, without incurring any penalty interest. Council continued to offer the ability for rate payers to apply for special rale
repayment arrangements for those qualifying on financial hardship grounds. Deferral of the due date and the financial impact of COVID-19 on
rate payers has resulted in the rates debtor balance at 30 June 2020 being $2.07 million higher compared to last year (Note 5.1(c)).

Council suspended all debt follow up and recovery activiies after the Victorian Government declared a State of Emergency in March 2020.
Council has increased the provision for doubtful debts (Mote 5.1(c)).

Council has provided rent and lease relief for sporting clubs, community groups and commercial tenants whe use Council facilities. Council
also introduced a COVID-12 Community relief fund to provide funding to sectors of the community in need {MNote 11)

Council has maintained cash balances at a financially sustainable level duning this time, however is aware of the decreased rate of collection
for the fourth quarterly rates instalment {Note 5.1(a), (b) and (c)).

Suppliers continue to be paid within Council terms, with weekly accounts payable payment runs undertaken during this period to ensure that
Council is enabling timely cash flows to suppliers during this crises (Mote 5.3(a))

Council's property assets have been valued as at 30 June 2020. At the time of valuation, available market data, including any impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, were considered (Note 6.1).

Council's infrastructure assets have been valued as at 30 June 2020. The market that the infrastructure assets are transacted in is being
impacted by the uncertainty that the COVID-19 pandemic has caused (Note 6.1).

Management has reviewed budgets, cash-flows and forecasts inline with expectations about the future and believes the going concem
assumption remains appropriate

Council has not identified any subsequent events that may impact the organisations ability to confinue as a going concern and has determined
that the going concem assumption remains the appropriate basis to prepare Council's financial report (Note 8.5).
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Note 1 Performance against budget

The performance against budget notes compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The
Local Govemment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopted a
materiality threshold of lower of 10% or $500,000 to budget on a line item basis, or where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have
not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature,

These notes are prepared o meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government [Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 .

1.1 Income and expenditure

Budget Actual Variance Variance

2020 2020 2020 2020

§'000 $'000 $'000 % Ref
Income
Rates and charges 105,813 105,953 140 013
Statutory fees and fines 3783 3,389 (394) (10.42) 1
User fees and charges 10,145 8919 (1,226) (12.08) 2
Contributions - monetary 7982 10,152 2170 2719 3
Contributions - non-monetary 1,000 8,324 7324 73240 4
Grants - operaling 9,768 12,257 2489 25.48 5
Grants - capital 1,692 1,661 (231) (12.21) 6
Cther income 2762 2573 (189) (6.84) 7
Share of gain/{loss) from investment in associate - 221 221 - 8
Total income 143,145 153,449 10,304
Expenses
Employee costs 55,114 54,120 994 1.80 9
Materizls, services and contracts 27 470 28 469 (999) (3.64) 10
Depraciation 21,988 22175 (187) (0.85)
Amortisation - Intangible assets 1,604 1,243 451 2662 1
Amortisation - Right of use assets - 528 (528) - 12
Bad and Doubtful debts - 190 (190) -
Borrowing costs 129 109 20 15.50
Finance costs - Leases - 73 (73) -
:rsl.-ctl [é;;:rigilnu::ton disposal of property, infrastructure, plant (95) 1595 1,690) 177895 1
Other expenses 20,047 18,619 1428 712 14
Total expenses 126,347 127,121 (T74)
Surplus for the year 16,798 26,328 9,530 86.73
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Note 1 Performance against budget (cont.)

1.1 Income and expenditure (cont.)

(i} Explanation of material variations
Ref. Item

1 Statutory fees and fines

2 Userfees and charges

Explanation

Outcome: Less than budget $394,000 or 10.42 %

Statutory fees were lower than budget by $0.39 million mainly due to a reduction in planning
permit income (3027 million) as a result of the softening of the development market and a
decline in high value applications and lower than expected asset protection permit income
($0.1 million)

Qutcome: Less than budget $1,226,000 or 12.08 %

User fees and chargss were lower than budgst due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on a number of Council's services. The major contributors were:

* Hire income for Community Venues and the Function Cenire were unfavourable by $0.92
million due to the COVID-19 shutdown restrictions;

* A loss of $0.23 million of revenue from Council's Aquatic and Leisure faclity (Aquarena)
affected by the COVID-19 forced shutdown; and

* The Ar Sludics and Child Care Services income were also affected by the COVID-19
pandemic by $0.22 million

4 Contributions - non

Qut Greater than budget $2,170,000 or 27.19 %

Developers' cash contributions in lisu of public open space and infrastructure requirements
were $1.59 million higher than budget and relate o the level of development in Manningham.
These funds are placed info a cash backed reserve to be used to fund recreation and open
space improvements for the community.

5 Grants - operating

6 Grants - capital

7 Other income

8  Share of gain/(loss) from

investment in associate

Qut: than budget $7,324,000 or 732.40 %

The value of land under roads, land, building, drainage pipes and pits and other infrastructure
assels transferred to Manningham by developers was $7.25 million higher than onginally
budgeted. The major contributor relates to the Tullamore Estate residential development and
upgrade of the MannaCare accommedation {residential aged care in Manningham)

Outeome: Greater than budget $2,489,000 or 25.48 %
A change in the fiming of Financial Assistance Grants resulted in the bringing forward of $1.39
million of the 2020/21 grant revenue into the 2019/20 year. In addition, Council received $0.62
million of higher than budgeted grants during the year for Aged & Disability Support Services,
Immunisation and School Crossing Supervisor programs.

Outcome: Less than budget $231,000 or 12.21 %

Capital grants from State and Federal for the purpose of funding the Capital Works Program
were lower than budgeted by $1.0 million for works to be undertaken in 2019/20. This is partly
offset by earlier then budgeted receipt of half of the 2020/21 Financial Assistance Grant
allocation of $0.45 million and higher than budgeted Roads to Recovery grant of $0.13 million

Qutcome: Less than budget $189,000 or 6.84 %

Other income is less than budget mainly due to declining interest revenues resulting from
lower term deposit interest rates for Council's surplus funds. The Reserve Bank has lowerad
the official interest rate from 1.25% to the current histonical low rate of 0.25%, representing an
80% decline since the budget was adopted in June 2019

Outeome: Greater than budget $221,000 or 100.00 %

Council has a 32.61 per cent equity interest in the Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library
Corporation (WMRL). During the year Manningham's share of the WMRL increased in valus
by $0.22 million.
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Note 1 Performance against budget (cont.)

1.1 Income and expenditure (cont.)

Explanation of material variations
Ref. Item

9 Employee costs

10 Materials, services and contracts

11 Amortisation - Intangible assets

Explanation

Qutcome: Less than budget $394,000 or 1.80 %

Employee costs for 2019/20 were $0.99 million or 1.80 per cent less than budget. This relates
to staff salary savings and efficiencies resulting from vacancies and managing the services
within existing resources. In addition, higher than budgeted capitalised labour (supervision
costs undertaken by staff and charged to the capital works program) atfributed to the
favourable variance.

Outeome: Greater than budget $359,000 or 3.64 %

Materials, services and contracts were $1.0 million or 3.64 per cent greater than budget. This
is mainly attributable to:

* Contract variation expenditure relating to the management of Council's Aquatic facility
(Aquarena) and Indoor Stadiums due to the COVID-19 shutdown. The restrictions resulted in
the facilities being closed leading to unbudgeted contract variation costs of $0.62 million;

* Unbudgeted expenditure of $0.32 million towards dealing with the effects of COVID-19. This
includes cleaning, software, contractor and matenals (purchase of PPEs) and support funding
to community organisations funded by the COVID-19 Community Relief Fund; and

* Expenses associated with the response and recovery efforts of the January 2020 massive
storm event (including extensive hail storm damage) resulting in an unfavourabls variance of
$0.31 million.

Outeome: Less than budget $451,000 or 26.62 %

Amortisation is an accounting measure which attempts to allocate the value of an asset over
its useful life for Council's intangible assets (software). The expenses were lower than budget
predominately due to timing of projests.

12 Amortisation - Right of use assets Qutcome: Greater than budget $528,000 or 100.00 %

13 Net (gain)loss on disposal of
property, infrastructure, plant and

equipment

14 Other expenses

With the introduction of the new Accounting Standard (AASB 16 Leases) effective from July
2019, lease expense associated with IT equipment and buildings has now been classified as
finance costs (leases) and amortisation expense.

Qutcome: Less than budget $1,690,000 or 1778.95 %

Net loss on disposal of assets is mainly aftnbutable to the demaltioniwrite-cown of four
residential dwellings totalling §1.59 million as part of the proposed Hepburn Road project. This
Is partly offset by a net gain of $0.35 milion on disposalireplacement of existing assets as part
of the ongeing Plant Replacement Program

Outeome: Less than budget $1,428,000 or 7.12 %

Other expenses include a wide range of costs incurred in delivering Council services and
Include utilities, software licences, legal expenses, consultancy, insurance, postage, telephone
and general office expenses. The favourable variance is pnmarily due to

* Bavings in Transformation projects due to some delays and some components of projects
being reduced. As some projects wers delayed, licence costs were lower than anficipated as
the licence fee budget had been premised on a full 12 months;

* Expenditures associated with the Tikalara Project wers initially budgeted for in the operating
budget but were classified as capital expenditure;

* Favourable variances in leases and rental accounts were mainly due to the introduction of
the new Accounfing Standard (AASB 16 Leases) and the new recognition of Right of Use
Assats and the associated amortisabion expense. The new Accounting Standard has resulted
in savings in Other expenses which are offset by unbudgeted expenditure in amorfisation
expense (refer above); and

* Further savings are denved from a wide range of operational accounts (staff
training/conferencesitravel, catering and general office expenses) which assisted in partially
offsetting the financial impact of the COVID-12 pandemic on Council.

These savings are partly offset by:

* COVID-19 Community Relief funding of $0.21 million to community organisations fo assist
the local community during the COVID-19 pandemic; and

* Unbudgeted expenditure of $0.85 million that was originally budgeted in the Capital Works
Program but has been classified as non capital in nature and fransferred to Other expenses.

13 of 55

Item 12.1 Attachment 1

Page 61



COUNCIL AGENDA

15 SEPTEMBER 2020

Notes to the Financial Report MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020 201920 Financial Report
Note 1 Performance against budget (cont.)
12 Capital works
Budget Actual Variance  Variance
2020 2020 2020 2020
$'000 §'000 §'000 % Ref
Property
Land under roads - 212 (212) (100.00) 15
Buildings 6,540 8,438 (1,898) (29.02) 16
Total property 6,540 8,650 (2110)
Plant, equipment and other assets
Plant, machinery and equipment 2298 2078 220 9.57 17
Fixtures, fitings and furniture ] 183 (B84) (121.74) 18
Computers and telecommunications 895 237 658 7352 19
Artworks 20 13 7
Total plant, equipment and other assets 3282 2,481 801
Infrastructure
Roads 16,691 15,641 1,050 6.29 20
Bridges - 10 (10 (100.00)
Footpaths and cycleways 3,183 5,506 (2,323) (72.98) 21
Oft street car parks - 78 (78) (100.00)
Drainage 5,750 4,652 1,098 19.10 22
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 6,264 3,360 2904 46,36 23
Parks, open space and streefscapes 5428 4317 1111 2047 24
Drainage 37,318 33,564 3,752
Intangible assets
Software 3208 3748 (540) (1683) 25
Total intangible assets 3,208 3,748 (540)
Total capital works expenditure 50,346 48,443 1,825 362
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 13818 11,583 2,235 16.17
Asset renewal expenditure 28,040 31,502 (3,462) (12.35)
Asset expansion expenditure 2161 1.097 1,064 49.24
Asset upgrade expenditure 6,327 4,261 2,086 3265
Total capital works expenditure 50,348 48,443 1,903
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Note 1

Performance against budget (cont.)

12 Capital works (cont.)

i)

=

o

of material variati

P

Ref.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Item

Land under roads

Buildings

Plant, machinery and equipment

Explanation

Outeome: Greater than budget $212,000 or 100.00 %
Capital expenditure of $212,000 associated with land under roads was initially budgeted
under the roads asset category.

Outeeme: Greater than budget $1,898,000 or 29.02 %

Higher than budgeted expenditure on programmed building projects including waorks on the
Timber Reserve Pavilion, Bulleen Tennis Club and Lower Templastowe Community Centra
resulted in an unfavourable vanance. In addition to this some unanficipated hail damage
renewal work was required

Outeome: Less than budget $220,000 or .57 %
Overseas supply chain issues caused by the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in delays in
vehicle availability.

Fixtures, fittings and fi

Computers and
telecommunications

Roads

Out Greater than budget $84,000 or 121.74 %
A number of upgrades to fixiures and fittings were carried out to make office spaces more
COVID-19 friendly,

Outeome: Less than budget $658,000 or 73.52 %

A number of projects notably "Network Infrastructure”, 'Public Access Weave" were classified
as "Computer and Telecommunications" related when in actuality they had a very large
software  component. This caused an under-expenditure against "Computers and
Telecommunications” and a corresponding over-expenditure against "Software" {refer to over
expenditure in the Software category).

Outeome: Less than budget $1,050,000 or 6.29 %
A number of road projects were delayed, the most significant example being Jumping Cresk
Road for which funding will be carned forward fo 2020/21.

Drainage

Recreational, leisure and
community facilities

Parks, open space and
streetscapes

Software

Out Greater than budget $2,323,000 or 72.98 %

Additional funding was transferred to pnority footpath and cycleway projects at the mid-year
review when it became apparent expenditure in other areas was falling behind and urlikely to
recover by year's end.

Outcome: Less than budget $1,098,000 or 19.10 %
A number of drainags projects notably Valencia Terrace were delayed and will be completed
in 2020021,

Outcome: Less than budget $2,904,000 or 46.36 %

A number of major recreation and leisure projects including those at Pettys and Rieschiecks
reserves were unabls to be complated in 2019720 for varying reasons, and the funding for
these projects has been carned forward to 2020021

Outcome: Less than budget $1,111,000 or 20.47 %

A number of parks and open space projects including Lions Park in Warrandyte, the
extension of the Main Yarra Trail and Irenbark Reserve were delayed due to a range of
reasons including tendening difficulties, resourcing issues and the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic

Outcome: Greater than budget $540,000 or 16.83 %

A number of projects including Network Infrastructure and Public Access Weave were
classified as "Computers and Telecommunications® related when in actuality they had a very
large software component. This caused an under-expenditure against "Computers and
Telecommunications” and a corresponding over-expendifure against "Software” (refer fo
under-expenditure in Computers and Telecommunications category).
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program

(a)

(b}

Council delivers its functions and activities through the fellowing programs.

CEO Office

CEO Office is responsible for providing a range of strategic and operational services including elected representatives, legal. governance
and risk, people and communications services.

City Services

City Services is responsible for delivering services to the community centred arcund sport and recreation, accommodation, drainage amenity,
clearliness, waste management, traffic management and emergency response. It is also responsible for protecting, maintaining and
enhancing Manningham's assels and natural envirenment, including its buildings, roads, car parks, drains, footpaths, parks, bushlands,
streetscapes and other infrastructure.

City Planning and Community

The City Planning and Community area includes services relating to strategic land use planning, social planning, transport planning, strategic
drainage planning, urban design and open space planning, development approvals and compliance, environmental health, local laws, school
crossings, econoemic development, community development, community and cultural events, community venues, aged and disability support,
maternal and child health, kindergartens and libraries

Shared Services

Shared Services provide a range of support services across council to enable the delivery of council services. The provision of these services
includes financial and procurement services, customer service (citizen connect), information technology, and transformation.

Corporate Activities

Corporate activities relates to services to ratepayers, council and executives which are not allocated fo individual directorates. This includes
general rates revenue, interest on investments, Financial Assistance Grants, asset sales, depreciation and capital grants. The value of
Council land and buildings is also retained in the Corporate activifies service area.

E y of i { assets and capital expenses by program
Grants
Surplus/ included Total capital
2020 Income Expenses (Deficit) in income expenses Total assets
§'000 §$'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
CEOC Cffice 11 7072 (7,061} - - -
City Services 519 30,338 (29,819) 228 35,542 635,666
City Planning and Community 26,559 39459 (12,900) 9,195 174 52,480
Shared Services 19,574 51,289 (31,715) 389 3,985 6,419
Corporate Activities 108,786 (1,037) 107,823 4,106 8642 1,495,299
153,449 127,121 26,328 13,918 48,443 2,189,864
Grants
Surplus/ included Total capital
2019 Income Expenses (Deficit) in income expenses Total assets
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
CEO Office 10 6,819 (6,809) - - -
City Services 20,518 58,607 (38,089) 628 19,693 609,763
City Planning and Gommunity 24013 41,081 (17,068) 8,887 61 52,466
Shared Services 112 14,653 (14,541} - 3484 9,408
Corporate Activities 103,947 (1.712) 105,659 4,657 373 1,545,779
148,600 119,448 29,152 14,172 26,969 2217416
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2020 2018
$'000 §'000

Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

31 Rates and charges

The Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all

properties within the municipal district. The CIV of a property is its land value and the

value of improvements such as buildings and other improvements

The CIV used to calculate general rates for 201920 was $52 492 million (201819,

$59.710 million). The 201920 rate in the CIV dollar was 0.00173238 (201819,

0.00146783)

General rates 90,826 87 567

Supplementary rates 842 750

Recreational land 29 29

Interest on rates and charges 519 507
92216 88,853

Waste charges 13,737 13,126
13737 13,126

Total rates and charges 105,953 101,979

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the

municipal district was 1 January 2020, and the valuation will be first applied in the rating

year commencing 1 July 2020,

Annual rates and charges ars recognised as revenues when Council issues annual

rates nofices. Supplementary rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment

is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.

32 Statutory fees and fines

Infringements and costs 1,081 1,395

Town planning fees 1,396 1.543

Land and property information certificates 403 400

Asset protection and other permits 509 kih]

Total statutory fees and fines 3,389 3649

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue
when the service has been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has
been applied, whichaver first occurs.
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2020 2018
$'000 §'000

Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (cont.)

33 Userfees and charges
Hall hire and function cenfre charges 1073 1,683
Social and community services charges 453 617
Town planning fees (non-statutory) 797 606
Aged services fees 798 839
Registration fees 1310 1,229
Advertising fees 215 794
Culture and recreation fees 157 364
Chargeable works foes 1,044 1
Rent and lease charges 1,956 1,880
Other fees and charges 1,116 1,738
Total user fees and charges 8,919 10,921
User fees and charges by timing of revenue recognition
User fees and charges recognised over time - -
User fees and charges recognised at a point in time 8919 10,821
Total user fees and charges 8919 10,921
User fees are recognised as revenus at a point in ime, or over time, when (or as) the
performance obligation is satisfied. Recognition is based on the underlying contractual
ferms.

3.4  Grants (Funding from other levels of government)
Grants were received in respect of the following
Summary of grants
Commeonwealth funded grants 10,648 10,084
State funded grants 3,270 4,088
Total grants received 13918 14,172

(a)  Operating grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants 2673 2613
Aged senvices 6,276 6,087
Recurrent - State Government
Aged services 262 791
Economic and environment 48 -
Immunisation 96 92
Maternal and child health ™ T
School crossing supervisors 303 -
Social and community 7 853
Community safety - 20
Other 302 a1
Total recurrent operating grants 11,568 11,674
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Aged senvices 109 -
Non-recurrent - State Government
Economic and environment 5 3
Community safety - 9
Social and community 34 30
Other 541 382
Total non-recurrent operating grants 689 455
Total operating grants 12,257 12,129
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2020 2019
$'000 §'000

Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (cont.)

34 Grants (Funding from cther levels of government) (cont.)

b} Capital grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants - local roads 869 831
Roads to Recovery 536 368
Recurrent - State Governent
Recreation - 489
Total recurrent capital grants 1405 1,668
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Other 185 185
Non-recurrent - State Government
Recreation 28 56
Roads to Recovery - 26
Other 43 108
Total non-recurrent capital grants 256 375
Total capital grants 1661 2043

(¢} Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

Operating

Balance at start of year 1,589 1,643
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 1,858 1.613
Receivad in prior years and spent during the financial year (1,588) (1,867)
Balance at year end 1,859 1,589
Capital

Balance at start of year 1323 1,026
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 1,157 1,120
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (855) (823)
Balance at year end 15625 1,323

Grant income is recognised at the point in time when the council satisfies its
performance chbligations as specified in the underlying agreement.

35  Contributions

Manetary 10,152 7,037
MNon-monstary 8324 7.585
Total contributions 18476 14,622

Contributions of monetary assets comprised of:

Resort and recreation Contributions (Public Open Space confributions) 8615 6,364
Doncaster Hill activity centre Developers Contributions 955 -
Operating contributions 70 a4
Capital contrbutions 512 629
Total monetary contributions 10,162 7,037
Non-monetary contributions were received in relation to the following categories

Land 1,198 -
Land under roads 3313 -
Buildings 242 5998
Infrastructure 3493 1,587
Volunteer Services 78 -
Total non-monetary contributions 8324 7.985

Monetary and non-monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council
obtains control over the contnbuted asset.
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2020 2019
$'000 §'000

Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (cont.)

36  Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equig it
Proceeds from disposal 655 4,584
Written down value of assets disposed (276) (3,663)
Written down value of assets scrapped (1974) (825)
Total net gaini(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (1,595) 96
The profit or loss on disposal of an asset is determined when control of the asset has
passed to the buyer
37  Otherincome
Interest on investments 1469 1.981
Other 1,104 1.102
Total other income 2573 3,083
Interest is recognised progressively as it is earned.
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and is recognised when Council gains control over the right to receive the income,
Note 4 The cost of delivering services
41  Employee costs
(a)  Wages and salaries 42102 41,738
Casual staff 4962 4,288
Salary oncest* 6,665 6,673
Other employee costs 3N 627
Total employee costs 54120 53,326
Engineering design work and capital project supervision completed by employees to the
value of §2.805 million ($2.704 million 2018/19) is reported in the Statement of Capital
Works, and is not included in employee costs.
Salary oncost includes annual leave and long service leave provision, Workcover and
superannuation costs.
(b)  Superannuation
Manningham City Council made contributions to the following funds:
Defined benefit fund
Employer confributions - Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 279 304
279 304
Employer confributions payable as at 30 June - -
Accumulation funds
Employer confributions - Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 2,265 2,305
Employer confributions - other funds 1528 1.455
3,893 3,760

Employer confributions payable as at 30 June

Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations
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Note 4 The cost of delivering services (cont)

42  Materials, services and contracts
Materials, services and general maintenance 5446 431
Plant and equipment maintenance 544 601
Contracts and services - community building repairs and maintenance 1,638 14385
Contracts and services - parks, gardens, sporfing reserves and street frees 7130 4,092
Contracts and services - drains, roads and footpaths 25929 2677
Contracts and services - waste collection and disposal services 10,882 10,330
Total materials, services and contracts 28469 23 446
43  Depreciation
Property 3931 3878
Plant, machinery and other assets 1,909 1,677
Infrastructure 16,335 15,046
Total depreciation 22175 20,558
Refer to note 5.2{b), 5.8 and 6.1 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and
amortisation charges and accounting policy.
44  Amortisation - Intangible assets
Software 1.243 1,042
Total amortisation - intangible assets 1,243 1,042
4.5  Amortisation - Right of use assets
Property 305
Equipment 223
Total amortisation - right of use assets 528 -
46  Bad and doubtful debts
Parking fine debtors 144 344
Other debtors 46 63
Total bad and doubtful debts 190 407
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,201 839
New provisions recognised during the year 190 407
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year (14) (45)
Balance at end of year 1377 1,201

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This
model considers both historic and forward locking information in determining the level of

impairment.
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Note 4 The cost of delivering services (cont)

47  Borrowing costs
Interest - borrowings 109 309
Total borrowing costs 109 309
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the penod in which they are incurred,
except where they are capitalised as part of a qualifying asset consiructed by Council

48  Finance costs - Leases
Interest - Lease liabilities 73 -
Total finance costs 73 -

49  Other expenses
Community grants and contributions
Community grants 1,237 1.880
Library contributions 3,754 3,695
Total community grants and contributions 4,991 5575
Utilities
Utilities, rent, and cleaning 1,508 2,005
Streat lighting B35 7T
Total utilities 2,343 2,782
Other miscellaneous expenses
Auditor's remuneration - VAGO - annual financial statement and grant acquittals 63 83
Auditor's remuneration - other parties 21 25
Auditor's remuneration - Internal audit 112 4
Councillors' allowances 316 310
Fire sarvice levy 126 124
Insurance T84 655
Leases 379 590
Consultants - engineering 292 241
Consultants - human resources 37 100
Consultants - economic and environmental 621 429
Consultants - other 356 281
Bank charges 266 280
Catering (including function cenlre) a2 592
Legal 1445 117
Software licences 2398 2,032
Telephone 649 479
Postage 406 246
Printing 270 336
Training 344 254
Design fees and maintenance - non capital 848 2419
Volunteer Services 78 -
Other 1,153 1,349
Total other miscellaneous expenses 11,285 11,963
Total other expenses 18619 20,320
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$'000 §'000

Note 5 Our financial position

51  Financial assets

(a)  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 8 8
Cash at bank 850 1,334
Term deposits (with term up to 3 months) and at-call with banks 64,500 63,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 65,358 64,342

()  Other financial assets
Term deposits - current 20,663 23,200
Term deposit - refundable Manningham Centre Association bond 500 500
Total other financial assets 21,163 23,700
Total financial assets 86,521 88042
Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit
amounts available for discrefionary use. These include:
- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3(b)) 13,385 12,574
- Reserve funds (note 9.1(b)) 14,286 9227
- Waste initiative fund* 9592 10,624
Total resiricted funds 37 263 32425
Total unrestncted cash and cash equivalents 28,095 31,917
* The Waste initiative fund is the value of waste charges collected under 5162 of the
Local Government Act 1989, and is to be applied to fund fulure waste collection and
disposal activities.
Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific
future purposes by Council:
- Cash held fo fund carried forward capital works 5,762 11,886
- Loan repayment - 3640
- Superannuation defined benefit potential future call 6,500 5000
- Asset sales to fund future capital works program 4510 5,006
- Grants received in advance 3484 3837
- Other intended allocation 724 781
Total funds subject to intended allocations 20,980 29 850

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call and other highly liquid
investments with maturities of 90 days or less from the date of acquisition, nat of
cutstanding bank overdrafts

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are
measured at original cost. Any unrealised gains and losses on heldings at balance date
are recognised as either a revenue or expense.
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Note 5 Qur financial pesition (cont.)

51  Financial assets (cont.)
(e}  Trade and other receivables
Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors 9,107 7.040
Infringement debtors 870 847
Special rate schemes 119 129
MNet GST receivable 1440 1,083
Non statutory receivables
Other debtors 2022 2082
Provision for doubtful debis - other debtors (95) (63)
Total current trade and other receivables 13,463 11,098
Non-current
Statutory receivables
Infringement court 1,282 1,138
Provision for doubtful debts - infingement court (1.282) (1,138)
Non stafutory receivables
Other receivables 55 A
Total non-current trade and other receivables 55 A
Total trade and other receivables 13518 11,129
Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debls is
recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long
term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
(d)  Ageing of receivables
At balance date other debfors representing financial assets were past due but not
impaired. The ageing of the Council's frade and other receivables (excluding statutory
receivables) was:
Current {not yet dua) 1122 1,300
Past due between 31 and 60 days 121 105
Past due between &1 and 90 days 237 197
Past due by more then 91 days 542 480
Total trade and other receivables 2022 2082
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Note 5 Qur financial position (cont.)

52  Non-Financial assets

a)  Other assets
Accrued income - interest ) 124
Accrued income - other 115 1,160
Prepayments 1,034 1,386
Inventories 162 123
Total other assets 1410 2803

(b) Intangible assets
Software 4.947 3.487
Total intangible assets 4947 3,487
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 12,905 11,562
Additions from internal developments 1,184 530
Transfer from work in progress 1519 823
Balance at 30 June 15,608 12,905
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 July (9,418) (8,376)
Amortisation expense (1,243) (1,042
Balance at 30 June (10,661) (9.418)
Met book value at 30 June 4 947 3,487
Intangible assets with finte lives are amortised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the asset's useful life. Amortisation is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at arate
that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful
life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at least
annually, and adjustments made where appropriate.

53 Payables

(a)  Trade and other payables
Trade payables 4,086 552
Employee benefits and related costs 2,069 1,553
Agcrued expenses 15,842 10,516
Total trade and other payables 21,997 12,521

(b)  Trust funds and deposits
Contract retention 1,295 1,136
Landscape bonds 6,125 5,870
Miscellaneous works deposits 406 208
Asset protection bonds 4,558 4 416
Subdivider deposits 163 163
Refundable Manningham Centre Asscciation bond 500 500
Fira services lavy a7 3
Other refundable depasils 251 250
Total trust funds and deposits 13,385 12,574
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Note 5 Qur financial position (cont.)

(e}  Unearned income

Grants received in advance - operating 357 -
Grants received in advance - capital 1,178 -
Income received in advance - rent 237 428
Income received in advance - rates 589 530
Total unearned income 2361 958

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised
as trust funds until they are returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the
receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining control of the
funds, are to be recognised as revenus at the time of forfeit.

Purpose and nature of ifems
Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by council as a form of surety in a number of
circumstances, including in relation to building works, tender deposits, contract deposits
and the use of civic facilifies.

Fire Service Levy - Counail is the collecton agent for fire services levy on behalf of the
State Government. Council remits amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts
disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in line with that process.

Retention ameounts - Council has a contractual nght to retain certain amounts until a
contractor has met certain requirements or a related warrant or defect period has elapsed.
Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of
time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual
obligations,

54  Interest bearing liabilities

Current
Borrowings - secured - 7.279
- 7.279

Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings - 7.279

The matunity profile for Council's borrowings is

Mot later than one year - 7,279
- 7,279

Aggregate carrying amount of interest-bearing loans and borrowings:

Current - 7,279
- 7,279

Borrowings were inifially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing
liabilities, net of transaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent to initial
recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-bearing liabilities
as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial
liabilities at amortised cost, Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the
redemplion value is recognised in net result over the period of the borrowing using the
effective interest method

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilties. The
Council determines the classification of its interest beanng liabilities at initial recognition
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5.5

Our financial pesition (cont.)

Provisions
Annual leave  Long service leave Total
2020 §'000 §'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 4342 9,293 13,635
Amounts used (3,002) (1,518) (4,520)
Additional provisions 3616 1,645 5,261
Balance at the end of the financial year 4956 9.420 14,376
2019
Balance at beginning of the financial year 4437 8,922 13,359
Amounts used (3,650) (2.134) (5,784)
Additional provisions 3,555 2,505 6,060
Balance at the end of the financial year 4342 9293 13,635
2020 2019
§'000 $'000
Employee provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 menths
Annual leave 3,304 2,956
Long service leave 719 675
4023 3831
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 1,652 1,386
Long service leave 7,299 7,262
8,951 8,648
Total current employee provisions 12,974 12,279
Non-current
Long service leave 1402 1,356
Total non-current employee provisions 1,402 1,356
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current 12,974 12,279
MNon-current 1402 1,356
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions 14,376 13,635

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are
calculated as follows at reporting date.

Wages and safaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monefary benefits, annual leave and
accumulated sick leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporfing
date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services
up to the reporting date, classified as current liabiliies and measured at their nominal
values.

Liahilities that are not expected to be wholly setfled within 12 months of the reporting date
are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the
present value of the amounts expected fo be paid when the liabilities are settled using the
remunerafion rate expected to apply at the time of settlement
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Note 5 Qur financial position (cont.)

§5 Provisions (cont.)
Long service leave
Liahility for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
LSL is measured at present value, Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability.
Conditional LSL that has been accrued where an employes is yet to reach a qualifying
term of employment, is disclosed as a non - current liability.
Key assumptions:
- discount rate 0.60% 1.17%
- index rate 2.25% 3.00%
56  Finaneing arrangements
The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June.
Bank overdraft 1,000 1,000
Credit card facilities 250 250
Total facilties 1,250 1,250
Used facilties 17 41
Unused faciliies 1,233 1,209
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Note §

5.7

Our financial pesition (cont.)

Commitments

The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are
disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable

2020

Operating

Garbage collection

Meals for delivery

Hard and green waste collection
Total

Capital

Roads & Footpaths

Drainage

Other - recreation and open space
Buildings

Plant and equipment

Total

2019

Operating

Garbage collection

Meals for delivery

Hard and green waste collection
Total

Capital

Roads

Drainage

Other - recreation & open space
Buildings

Plant and equipment

Total

Later than 1 Later than 2
year and not  years and not
Not later than 1 later than 2 later than 5 Later than 5
year years years years Total
§'000 §'000 §$'000 $'000 $'000
5,501 5,758 18,934 - 30,193
248 253 a7 - 1,298
869 936 3,258 - 5,063
6,618 6,947 22 989 - 36,654
1,951 - - - 1,951
1477 - - - 1477
5,693 - - - 5,693
1,644 - - - 1,644
1,206 - - - 1,206
11,971 - - - 11,971
Later than 1 Later than 2
yearand not  years and not
Not later than 1 later than 2 later than § Later than 5
year years years years Total
$'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
5323 5,570 18,318 - 2921
272 278 875 - 1425
905 978 3407 - 5,294
6,504 6,826 22,600 - 35,930
4,489 - - 4,489
] - - - 770
828 - - - 828
2,659 - - - 2,659
770 - - - 770
9,516 - - - 9,516
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Leases

Policy applicable before 1 July 2019

As a lessee, council classifies leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease fransferred significantly
all of the nsks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to council

Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, were recognised as an expense in the comprehensive income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits
derived from the use of the leased asset The leased asset was not recognised in the balance sheet.

All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an infegral part of the net consideration agreed for
the use of the leased asset, imespective of the incentive's nature or form or the timing of payments.

In the event that lease incenfives were received to enter into operating lsases, the aggregate cost of incentives are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-ine basis, unless another systematic basis was more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset were consumed.

Policy applicable after 1 July 2018

Council has applied AASB 16 Leases using a modified retrospective approach with the cumulative effect of initial application recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated surplus at 1 July 2019, with no restatement of comparative information. The council
applied the approach consistently to all leases in which it is a lessee.

On fransition to AASE 16 Leases , Council elected to apply the practical expedient to ‘grandfather’ the assessment of which transactions are
leases. The council has applied this practical expedient to all of its contracts and therefore applied AASE 16 Leases only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases

A inceplion of a contract, all entities would assess whether a confract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease iIf the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an idenfified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To identify whether a
confract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, it is necessary to assess whether:

- The contract involves the use of an identified asset;

- The customer has the right fo obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- The customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.

This palicy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019

As a lessee, Council recognises a night-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost which comprises the inifial amount of the lease liability adjusted for:

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incenfives received; plus

- any initial direct costs incurred; and

- an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underying asset or the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the skraight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the night-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of properly, plant and equipment, In addition, the rght-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannct be readily determined, an appropriate incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
Council uses an appropriate incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability compnise the following:
Fixed payments

- Vanable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantes; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that Council is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if
Council is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless Council is reasonably
certain not to terminate early

When the lzase liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the night-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero

Peppercorn Leases - Council has one peppercom lease arrangement and has opted not to recognise this as per the moratorium allowed to
non-for-profit entities during the 2019/20 financial year under AASB 16,
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58 Leases (cont.)
Plant and
Right-of-Use Assets Property equipment Total
§'000 §'000 $'000
Balance af 1 July 2019 2,830 351 3,181
Additions - - -
Amortisation charge (303) (223) (928)
Balance at 30 June 2020 2525 128 2653
Lease Liabilities 2020
Maturity analysis - confractual undiscounted cash flows $'000
Less than one year 464
One to five years 1,263
More than five years 1,262
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 June 2,989
Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet at 30 June
Current 403
MNon-current 2,283
Total lease liabilities 2,686

Short-term and low value leases

Council has elected not to recognise nght-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of plant and equipment that have a lease

term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assels (individual assets worth less than exisiting capitalisafion thresholds for a like asset
up to a maximum of $10,000), including some IT equipment. Council recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Expenses relating to:
Short-term leases

Leases of low value assets
Total

anable lease payments (not included in r tof lease

Nen-cancellable lease commitments - Short-term and low-value leases

Commitments for minimum lease payments for short-term and low-value leases are payable as follows:

Payable:

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years
Total lease commitments

Leases classified as operating leases under AASB 117 Leases

At transition, lease lisbilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at Council's incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019, Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or acerued lease payments. Council applied this approach to all applicable leases

2020

$000
90
289
a9

248
27
275

Council used the following practical expedients when applying AASE 16 Leases to leases previously classified as operating leases under

AASB 117 Leases

- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
- Adjusted the nght-of-use assets by the amount of AASE 137 Prowisions, Contingent Liabilities and Confingent Assefs onerous contract

provision immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative to an impairment review.

- hpplied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to exfend or terminate the lease
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5.8 Leases (cont.)

Impact on financial statement
On fransition to A4SB 16 Leases , Council recognised an additional $3.181m of nght-of-use assets and $3.181m of lease liabilities.

When measuning lease liabilities, Council discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019, The weighted-
average rate applied is 2.26%.

2019
§'000
Operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019 as disclosed in Council's financial statements 4,682
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019 3,850
- Recognition exemption for:
leases of short-term andfor low-value assets (689)
- Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019 3,181
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6.1  Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets
Summary of property, infrastructure, plant, equi t and other fixed assets
At Fair Value At Fair Value
1July 2019 Acguisitions  Confributions  Revaluation  Depreciation Disposal Transfars Write Offs 30 June 2020
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
Land 1,264,513 212 451 (65,702) - (1) 8 - 1,203,531
Buildings 224,543 8,194 242 (5,440) (3,931) (1,588) 267 - 222,287
Plant, equipment and other fixed assets 11,279 2,285 - (1,909) (265) 892 - 12 282
Infrastructurs 601,493 28,183 3,493 10,221 (16,335) (3886) 1,271 - 527,940
Wark in progress 7,822 8,385 - - - (3,954) () 12,249
2,109,650 47,259 8,245 (60,921} (22,175} (2,250) (1,518 4) 2,078,289
Summary of work in progress
Opening WIP Closing WIP
1 July 2019 Additions Transfers Write Offs 30 June 2020
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Property 1737 244 (267) - 1714
Plant, eguipment and other fixed assets 5,081 2760 (2,406) - 5435
Infrastructure 1,004 5,381 (1,281) (4) 5,100
7,822 8,385 (3,954) (4} 12,249
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6.1  Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets (cont.)
(a}  Property land-  Land-non-  Land under Building - Building - nan- Total Total Work in
specialised specialised roads Total Land specialised specialised Buildings Property Progress
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
At fair value 1 July 2019 1,253,345 8,591 2,577 1,264,513 372,082 4921 377,003 1,641,516 1737
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019 - - - - (150,614) (1,846) (152,460) (152,460) -
1,253,345 8,591 2577 1,264 513 221,468 3,075 224 543 1,489,056 1,737
Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value - 212 212 8,194 - 6,194 8,406 244
Contributed assets 1198 - 3,313 4,51 242 - 242 4,753 -
Revaluation increments/decrements (65,254) (448) - (65,702) 9,110 100 9,210 (56,492) -
Fair value of assets disposed (11) - - (11} - (2,158) (2,158) (2,169) -
Transfers - - 8 8 267 - 267 275 (267)
(64,067) (448) 3,533 (60,982) 17,813 (2,058) 16,755 (45,227) (23)
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation - - - - (3,684) (47) (3,931) (3,931) -
Accumulated depreciation of disposals - - 570 570 570 -
Revaluation increments/decrements - - - - (14,558) (92) (14,650) (14,650) -
(18,442) 431 (18,011) (18,011) -
At fair value 30 June 2020 1,189,278 8,143 6,110 1,203,531 389,895 2,863 392,758 1,596,289 1,714
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020 - - - - (169,056) (1,415) (170,471) (170,471) -
1,189,278 8,143 6,110 1,203,531 220,839 1,448 222,287 1,425,818 1,714
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Note 6 Assets we manage (cont.)

6.1  Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets (cont.)

Total plant,
{b)  Plant, equipment and other fixed assets Plant, Fixtures, Computers and equipment
machinery and fittings and telecom- and other Work in
equipment furniture  munications Artworks assets Progress
$'000 000 000 $'000 $'000 §'000
At fair value 1 July 2019 14,160 9,464 3,841 1,945 29,410 5,081
Acoumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019 (6,894) (8,236) (3,001) - (18,131) -
7,266 1,228 840 1,945 11,279 5,081

Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value 1,300 153 218 14 2,285 2,760
Contributed assets - -

Revaluation incrementsidecrements - - .
Fair value of assets dispesed (1,433) (4) - - (1,437) -
Transfers 77 4 a1 - 892 (2,406)
544 153 1,029 14 1,740 354
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (1,252) {260) (397) - (1,908)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals 1.168 4 - - 1172
Revaluation increments/decrements - - - - .
(84) {256) (387 - (737)
At fair value 30 June 2020 14,704 9817 4,870 1,959 31,150 5435
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020 (6,978) (8.492) (3,398) - (18,868) -
1726 1125 1472 1,959 12,282 5435
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Note 6 Assets we manage (cont.)

6.1  Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets (cont.)

Recreaftional,  Parks open

(e} Infrastructure Foolpaths and  Off street car leisure and  spaces and Waste Total Work in
Roads Bridges cycleways parks Drainage community  sitrestscapes  Management Infrastructure Progress
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 §'000 $'000
At fair value 1 July 2019 397,697 22758 119,741 20,278 400,653 25,309 35535 5415 1,027,286 1,004
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019 (199,133) (7.347) (53,488) (8,619) (132,747) (9.181) (14,477) (301) (425,893) -
198 564 15411 66,253 11,659 267,906 16,128 21,058 4514 601,493 1.004
Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value 15,190 10 5,249 9 3941 1,529 2,185 - 28,183 5,381
Contributed assets 473 - 178 - 2842 - - - 3,493 -
Revaluation increments/decrements 12 844 2,297 4,651 (755) 6,221 - - - 25,258
Fair value of assets disposed (599) - (315) - - (21) (40) - (975) -
Impairment losses recognised in operating result - - - - - - - - 4)
Transfers 653 - 174 - 256 39 149 - 1,211 (1,281)
28,561 2,307 9,937 (676) 13,260 1,547 22594 - 57,230 4,095
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (7,947) (379) (1,308) (291) (3,331) (1,197) (1,521) (361) (16,335)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals 359 - 189 - - 10 3 - 588
Revaluation increments/decrements (7,202 (277} (4,536) 297 (3,319) - - - (15,037) -
(14,790) (656) (5,659) 5 (6,650) (1,187) (1.490) (361) (30,783) -
At fair value 30 June 2020 426,258 25,065 129,678 19,602 413,913 26,856 37,829 5415 1,084,616 5,100
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020 (213,923) (8,003) (59,143) (8,613) (139,3597) (10,368) (15,967) (1,262) (456,678) -
212,335 17,062 70,535 10,989 274,516 16,486 21,862 4153 627,940 5,100
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Note 6

6.1

Assets we manage (cont.)

Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets (cont.)

Acquisition

The purchass method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the
date of acquisition plus any incidental costs affributable to the acquisiion. Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset

(or paid fo transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during
construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable vanable and fixed overheads,

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset class and

unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods

Asset class

Property

Land

Land under roads
Buildings

Buildings on leased land

Plant, equipment and other assets
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and telecommunications
Artworks

Infrastructure

Road - pavement

Road - sub-pavement

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways

Carparks

Drainage

Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes

Waste garbage bins

Intangible assets
Software

Land under roads

Depreciation Period Threshold limit
$'000
Infinite life 0
Infinite life 0
75-100 years 5
Term of lease or 75 years

5-25 years 1
4-20 years 1

4 -10 years 1
Infinite life 1

30 years 10

120 years 10

60 - 100 years 10

60 - 100 years 10

60 - 100 years 10

120 ysars 10

20 years 10

20 years 10

20 years 0

5 years 1

Land under roads acguired after 30 June 2008 is brought fo account at cost adjusted for englobo characteristics, access rights and
private interests of other parties and enfitlements of infrastructure assets and services. Council does not recognise land under roads that

itcontrolled prior to that penod in its financial report,

Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, infrastructure, plant , equipment, intangible assets, and other assets having limited useful lives are systematically depreciated
over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets.
Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually.

Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject fo regular replacement, these components are assigned distinct
useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.

Depreciation penods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
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Note 6 Assets we manage (cont.)

6.1  Property, infrastructure, plant, equip t and other fixed assets (cont.)

Repairs and maintenance

Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates to the replacement of a
component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of
the replaced asset is expensed

Artworks
Artworks are not depreciated,

Valuation of land and buildings

Valuations were completed as at 30 June 2020 for Council. Valuations for 30 June 2020 are at fair value.

Non -specialised land and non-specialised buildings

MNon-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market based direct comparison methed. Under this valuation
method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assats which are considered to have nominal or no
added improvement value.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, a valuation was performed by Council's Managsr Property Services, Mr Graham
Brewer FAPI, Certified Practicing Valuer (Registration Number 61918) to determine the fair value using the market based direct
compansen method. Valuation of the assets was determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography,
location and other relevant factors specific to the asset being valued. From the sales analysed, an appropriate rate per square metre has
been applied fo the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2020.

To the extent that non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings do not contain significant, uncbservable adjustments, these assets
are classified as Level 2 under the market based direc! comparison approach,

o ial

o ised land and specialised buildings

The market based direct comparison method is also used for specialised land but adjusted to reflect the specialised nature of the assets
being valued. For Council specialised buildings, the depreciated replacement cost method is used, adjusting for the associated
depreciation. Specialised assets confain significant, unobservable adjustments, therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 fair value
measurements

An adjustment is made to reflect a restriction on the sale or use of an asset by Council. The adjustment is an allowance made to reflect
the difference in value between unrestricted assets and those held by the Council which are impacted by external restraints on their use

The valuation of Council's specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by Council's Manager Property Services, Mr
Graham Brewer FAPI, Certified Practicing Valuer (Registration Number 61916). The valuation was performed using either the market
based direct comparison method or depreciated replacement cost, adjusted for restrictions in use. The effective date of the valuation is
30 June 2020.

Details of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of Valuation

$000 000 $000

Land - B.143 1,189,278 Jun 2020

Land under roads - - 6,110 Jun 2020

Buildings - 1,448 220,838 Jun 2020
Total - 9,591 1,416,226
2020 2019
R iliation of specialised land £000 $000
Land under roads 6,110 2,577
Parks, reserves and other 1,189,278 1,253 345
Total specialised land 1,195,368 1,255,922
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Note 6 Assets we manage (cont.)

6.1

Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other fixed assets (cont.)

Valuation of infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets (roads, bridges, foolpaths and cycleways, off street car parks and drainage) are valued using the written down
replacement cost of each asset  The written down replacement cost is calculated based on the remaining life of the asset, which in fum
is determined based on the condition of the asset

Infrastructure assels contain significant unobservable adjustments, therefore these assets are classified as Level 3

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost  Significant unobservable inputs include the current
replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the
basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 20 years to 120 years. Replacement cost is sensifive to changes in market
conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive fo changes
in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets

A valuation of Council's infrastructure assets was performed by Council's Manager, Infrastructure Services, Mr James Paterson B.Eng
(Ciwvil) . The valuation was performed based on the depreciated replacement cost of the assets. The effective date of the valuation 1s 30
June 2020.

There were no changes in valuation technigues throughout the period to 30 June 2020 .
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use

Details of the Council's infrastructure information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2020 are as follows

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of Valuation

$1000 $1000 $1000
Roads - - 212,335 Jun 2020
Bridges R - 17,062 Jun 2020
Foofpaths and cycleways - - 70,535 Jun 2020
Off street car parks - - 10 989 Jun 2020
Drainage - - 274 516 Jun 2020
Total - - 585,437
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2020 2019
£'000 §'000

Note 6 Assets we manage (cont.)

6.2  Investments in associates

Whitah Manningham Regional Library Corporati

Background

Manningham City Council has a 32.61% equity interest in the Whitehorse Manningham

Regional Library Corporation (WMRLC) that was incorperated on 21 Decamber 1995

Council has reported its interest in the WMRLC on the basis of equity accounting

principles. Manningham City Council's share of the movement in net assets as at 30

June 2020, per draft WMRLC financial statements, has been taken up as profit of

§221,324 duning the year ended 30 June 2020 (profit of $77,955 in 2018/19). As

neither council has a controlling interest, the participating councils show their

contnbutions towards the operating expenditure of the library as an expense

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2872 2324

Trade and other receivables 48 56

Other assets B7 101
3,007 2491

Non-current assets

Property & equipment 7311 6,850
7311 6,850

Total assets 10,318 9,351

Current liabilities

Payablss 246 498

Provisions 1446 1,382
2392 1.880

Nen-current liabilities

Provisions 181 230

181 230

Total liabilities 2573 2,110

Net assets 7,745 7241

Movement in carrying value of investment

Carrying value of investment at start of year 2,305 2227

Share of surplus/(deficit) for year 221 78

Carrying value of investment at end of year 2526 2,305

Associates are all entities over which Council has significant influence but not control or
joint confrol. Council's investment in an associate is accounted for by the equity method
as the Council has the ability to influence rather than control the operations of the entity.
The investment is inifially recorded at the cost of acquisition and adjusted thersafter for
post-acquisition changes in the Council's share of the net assets of the entity. The
Council's share of the financial result of the entity is recognised in the Comprehensive
Income Statement,
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Note 7

7.1

(a)

(b)

People and relationships
Council and key management remuneration

Related party
Subsidiaries and Associates

Interest in associate - Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation (WMRLC) (Ref Mote 6.2)

Key Management Personnel

Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during the year are

Councillors
Anna Chen Councillor
Andrew Conlon Councillor
Sophy Galbally Counillor
Geoff Gough Councillor
Dot Haynes Coungillor
Michelle Kleinert Counillor
Paul McLeish Councillor
Mayor
Paula Piccinini Mayor
Councillor

Mike Zafiropoulos AM Gounillor

Chief Executive Officer
Andrew Day Chief Executive Officer

Other Key Management Personnel

Leigh Harrison Director City Services

Grant Jack Acting Director City Services

Rachelle Quattrocchi Director City Services

Angelo Kourambas Director Gity Planning and Cemmunity

Philip Lee Director Shared Services

Andrew McMaster Corporate Counsel and Group Manager
Governance and Risk

Kerryn Paterson Group Manager People and Communications

Total number of Councillors

Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel
Total Key Management Personnel

R tion of Key Manag tP |

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term benefits

Long-term benefits

Termination benefits

Post employment benefits

Total
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{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

(1 July 2019 - 7 November 2019)
{ 8 November 2019 - 30 June 2020)
(1 July 2019 - 7 November 2019)
(8 November 2019 - 30 June 2020)

{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

(1 July 2019 - 7 March 2020)

{10 March 2020 - 29 March 2020)
(30 March 2020 - 30 June 2020)

{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)
{1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020)

2020 2019
No. No.

9 9

8 9

17 18
2020 209
$'000 $'000
1.790 1817
K 22

- 87

136 143
1,957 2,069
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7.1

(]

(d)

People and relationships (cont.)
Council and key management remuneration (cont.)

R tion of Key M

The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any
related entifies, fall within the following bands:

Less than $10,000 *
$20,000 - $29,999
$40,000 - $49,999
$50,000 - $59,999
$60,000 - $69,999
$70,000 - $79,999
$90,000 - $99,999
$190,000 - $199,999
$200,000 - $209,999
$220,000 - $229,9%9
$230,000 - $239,999
$240,000 - $249,999
$260,000 - $269,999
$270,000 - $279,999
$280,000 - $289,999
$290,000 - $299,999
$330,000 - $339,9%9

* Relates to higher duties payment for acting arrangement

Senior Officer Remuneration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000.

MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Financial Report
2020 2019
No. No.

1 .

7 8

1 R

- 2

1 .

1 1

- 1

1

- 1

2 R

1 .

1

- 1

- 2

1 -

1

1 -

17 18

The number of Senior Officers other than Key Management Personnel, are shown below in their relevant income bands and includes Senior

Officers who commenced or retired during the year.

Income Range:

less than $151,000
$151,000 - $159,999
$160,000 - $169,999
$170,000 - $179.999
$180,000 - $189,9%9
$190,000 - $199,999
$200,000 - $209,999
$210,000 - $219.999

Total Remuneration, excluding resignation benefits, for the reporting year for Senior Officers
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2020 2019
No. Neo.
5 10

6 3

3 4

4 4

5 1

2 3

3 3

2 R

30 28
§'000 §'000
4939 4,308
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Note 7 People and relationships (cont.)
7.2 Related party disclosure

(a)  Transaetions with related parties
During the year Manningham City Council provided confributions to Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation (WMRLC) with
the fotal value of $3.74m towards running costs as per the agreement Council also provides accommodation to house libraries within
Manningham.

No transactions other than remuneration payments, or the reimbursement of expenses as approved by Council were made with Related
Parties during the reporting year (2018/19, nil).

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
No balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties (2018119, nil)

(e) Loans to/from related parties

There were no aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance dale that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a
responsible person of the Council, or a related party of a responsible person (2018112, nil).

(d) Commitments to/from related parties
Mo commitments have been made by the Council to Related Parties during the reporting year 2019/20 (2018/19, nil).
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties
81 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are nat recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if quantifiable, are measured at
nominal value, Contingent assets and liabilites are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable, respectively,

(a) Contingent assets

Developer contribuled assefs
Developer contributions o be received in respact of futurs subdivisions total $2.179m (2018/19, $4.728m).

Operating lease receivables
Atthe reporting date, Council had the following operating leases for the lease of Council owned land and buildings:

These properties held under operating lease have remaining non cancellable lzase term of between 1 and 35 years annual rental reviews,
either by fixed percentage or CPI annually.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating lease as the end of year are as follow

2020 2019

§'000 §'000

Not later than one year 1,433 1,671
Later than one year and not later than five years 6877 707
Later than five years 7620 8012
15,939 17.610

(b)  Contingent liabilities

General

Councll controls large areas of public open space, provides general and personal services o residents, visitors and ratepayers, has
responsibilities and regulatory authorities including the issue of permits and approvals, and controls significant buildings and infrastructure
assets. Councilis involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for damages
relating o its services

Council's Risk Management Plan includes securing insurance to cover insurable risks to limit exposure to liabilities arising from actions of
the Council or its Officers where it is appropriate to do so.

Bank guarantees issues
Council is responsible for the following bank guarantee:
Department of Primary Industries for $150,000 in connection with Extractive Industry Licence No. 54-1.

Building cladding
The impact on Council for building cladding rectification works on Council's own buildings is being assessad.

Liability mutual insurance
Council is a participant of the MAY Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public liability and professional
indemnity insurance cover. The LMI's Deed of Establishment allows for a call on each member should there be an insufficiency of capital
for an insurance year which has an overall financial deficit. The deficit amount can be collected through this call and each member's
ligbility for the amount is in direct proportion to their contribution for that year against the overall contribution pool. At reporting date Council
had not been advised of call

Superannuation contribution

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined in Note
9.3, As a result of the volatility in financlal markets, the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists. At this peint in
time, it is not known if additional contributions will be required, their timing or potential amount
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties (cont.)

8.2

a3

(b)

Change in accounting standards

The following new A ian Accounting dards (AAS's) have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting
period. Council has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential impacts will flow from the application of
these standards in future reporting periods

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors (AASB 1059) (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)

AASB 1058 addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement by a grantor that is a public sector entity by prescribing the
accounting for the arrangement from the grantor's perspective. It requires the grantor to:

- recognise a Satvice concassion asset constructad, developed or acquired from a third party by the operator, including an upgrade to an
existing asset of the grantor, when the grantor controls the asset;

- reclassify an existing asset (including recognising previously unrecognised identifiable intangible assets and land under roads) as a
service concession assel when it meets the critena for recognition as a service concassion assat,

- initially measure a service concession asset constructed, developed or acquired by the operator or reclassified by the grantor at current
replacement cost in accordance with the cost approach to fair value in AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. Subsequent to the initial
recognition or reclassification of the assel, the service concession asset is accounted for in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant
and Equipment or AASE 138 Intangible Assets, as appropriate, except as specified AASE 1059,

recognise a cortesponding liability measured Initially at the fair value {current replacement cost) of the service concession asset, adjusted
for any other consideration between the grantor and the operator, and

- disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of assets,
liabilities, revenus and cash flows arising from service concession arrangements.

Based on the Council's current assessment, there is expected to be no impact on the transactions and balances recognised in the financial
statements as the Council is not a grantor in a service concession amrangement

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)

The Standard principally amends AASE 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASE 108 Accounting Policles, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The amendments refine the definition of material in AASE 101, The amendments clarify the definition of
material and its application by improving the wording and aligning the definition across AASE Standards and other publications. The
impacts on the local government sector are expected to be minimal.

AASB 2019-1 Amendments to Australian A ing St - References to the Conceptual Fi k (applies 2020:21 for LG
Sector)

This Standard sets out amendments to Australian Accounting Standards, Interpretations and other pronouncements to reflect the issuance
of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting {Conceptual Framework) by the AASB. The impacts on the local govemment sector
are expected 1o be minimal.

Financial instruments

Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory receivables), payables
(excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the notes of the financial statements, Risk management is carnad out
by senior management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to
Council and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.

Market risk

Market rik is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
The Council's exposures to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with insignificant exposure to other price risks and no
exposure to foreign currency risk

Interest rate risk

Interast rale risk refers 10 the nsk that the value of a financial instrument or cash llows associaled with the instrument will fluctuate due o
changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk anses from interest bearing financial assets and liabilities. Interest bearing assets are
pradominantly short term liquid assets. As at 30 June 2020 Council had no long term loans or borrowings and is therefore not exposed to
interest tate risk on these classes of financial liabilities.

Interest rate risk on financial assets are managed through Council's investment policy which requires the investment of surplus funds only
with financial institutions approved under the section 143 of the Local Government Act 1889, The Council’'s investment policy provides for
Investment restrictions such as investment placement with authorised deposit taking institutions (ADIs), placement according to Standard
and Poors credit ratings for investment institwtions, staging of investment duration, and for the regular monitoring of investment
performance and investment institution credit ratings.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties (cont.)
8.3 Financial instruments (cont.)
(b)  Market risk (cont.)
There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing interest rate nsk ar
the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period
Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end result
(c)  Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a
financial loss.  Council has exposure to cradit fisk on all financial assets included in the balance sheet. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at balance date in refation to each class of recognised financial asset is represented by the carrying amount of that financial asset.
Council manages credit risk exposure through the application of debtor management policies that include arangement for the timely
collection of debts, escalation of recovery actions, and itoring of debt ion p ice. Council also managed credit risk
exposure through the application of security bonds and provisions of the Local Govemment Act 1989 that permit the classification of
certain debts as charges against property.
Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors. Credit risk
associated with the council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable property.
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.
Councll may also be subject to cradit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when council provide a
guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Mote 8.1(h)
The maximum exposure o credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for
impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.
(d)  Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of council's op liquidity req. it will not have sufficient funds to settle a
transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to seftle or recover a financial asset.
To mitigate liquidity risk the entity has developed long term financial manag strategies containing liquidity and cash flow targets, and
reqularly monitors budget performance and cash flows against forecasts. The entity has established access to overdraft facilities
Council's maximum exposure to liquidity rik is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet
and tha amounts related to any financial guarantees disclosed in Note 8.1(b), and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and
current assessment of risk.
There has been no significant change in Counci's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity nisk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting penod.
\With the exceplion of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expectad to be settled within normal terms of trade. Details of the maturity
profile for borrowings are disclosed at Mote 5.4
Unless otharwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflact their falr value
Council's exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data, cash flow and liquidity forecasts, and current
assassment of risk.
(e)  Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the
financial markets, Council believes a parallel shift of +0.25% and -0.25% in market interest rates from year-end rates of 0.25% are
‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12 months

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will they have a matenial
impact on the results of Council's operations.
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84

Fair value measurement
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amaount of financial instruments reflect their fair value.

Fair value hierarchy
Council's financial assats and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Council's financial assets and liabilities
are measured at amortised cost

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair
valug measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of fair
valug and disclosure reg its for use across A Accounting

AASH 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable, and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurament is unobsarvable

Far the purpose of falr value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabillties on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and nsks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assels, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at their fair
valug, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets
measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from
the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will enly occur if an
external change in the restrictions or limitations of use on an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of
the assetl. Further details regarding the fair value hierarchy are disclosed at Note 6.1, Property, infrastructure, plant, equipment and other
fixed assets

In addition, Council undartakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 1 to 3
years. The valuation is performed either by expenenced Council officers or independent experts

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that
an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment
is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior
increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the
extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of lts assels to determine whether there is any Indication that these assels
have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use, is compared o the assels carrying value. Value in use is the depreciated replacement cost. Any excess of the
assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is exy d to the comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at the
revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of
asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties (cont.)

85  Events occurring after balance date
The COVID-19 pandemic has created unprecedented economic uncertainty. Actual economic events and conditions in the future may be
matenally different from those estimated by Manningham City Council at the reporting date. As responses by government continue to
evolve, management recognises that it is difficult to reliably estimate with any degree of certainty the potential impact of the pandemic after
the reporting date on Manningham City Council, its operations, its future results and financial position.

The Viclorian Government announced a State of Disaster on 2 August 2020 and “Stage 4" restrictions were applied to Metropolitan
Melbourne, which includes the City of Manningham. This event does not affect amounts recognisad in the 2018-20 financial statements,

The introduction of Stage 4 restrictions has had further implications for Council services and facilities beyond those already affected by the
previous Stage 3 restrictions, Several of Councils services have now been or continued to be closed including Council's recreation, leisure
and community facilities including Aquarena, stadiums, pavilions, libraries, community centres, the function centre, the Civic Centre and
MC2.

Council’s 2020-21 Adopted Budget includes estimated impacts on revenus and expenditure streams under Stage 2 restrictions for the first
quarter of 2020-21. The budgeted financial impact on Council Services is $2.4 million in 2020-21. The impact is primarily in User Fees and
Statutory Fees and Charges and cost increases mainly due to the temporary closure of Council facilities.

As part of Stage 3 restrictions Council developed a targeted COVID-18 Community financial relief package in April 2020 which has effect
over both the 2019-20 and 2020-21 financial years. The relief package in 2020-21 is $3.0 million and is reflected in the 2020-21 budget
The package includes a range of initiatives designed to ease the financial burden on  local ¢ and c and
sporting groups

Council continues to closely monitor and review the financial impacts of COVID-18 on Council's operating budget.
Ho other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which have significantly affected or may affect the

operatians of Manningham City Council, the results of the aperations or the state of affairs of Manningham City Council in future financial
years.
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9.1  Reserves
{a)  Asset revaluation reserves
Balance at Realised Balance at
2020 beginning of I t/ Revaluati end of reporting
reporting year (decrement) Reserve year
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
Property
Land 1,052 469 (65,702) 40 986,807
Buildings 52,847 (5.440) (336) 47,071
1,105,316 (71.142) (296) 1,033,878
Plant, equipment and other fixed assets
Plant, machinery and equipment 19 - - 19
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 1,006 - - 1,006
Computers and telecommunications 75 - - 75
Artworks 887 - - 887
1,987 - - 1,987
Infrastructure
Roads 10,473 5,642 - 116,115
Bridges 3419 2,020 - 5,439
Footpaths and cycleways 28728 115 - 28,843
Off street car parks 6,312 (458) - 5,854
Drainage 166,039 2,902 - 168,941
Parks, open space and streetscapes 205 - - 205
315,176 10,221 - 325,397
Total 1,422,479 (60,921) (296) 1,361,262
Balance at Realised Balance at
2019 beginning of I t Revaluati end of reporting
reporting year (decrement) Reserve year
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
Property
Land 1,163,966 (107,985) (3.512) 1,052,489
Buildings 50,331 2,516 - 52,847
1,214,297 (105,469) (3.512) 1,108,316
Plant, equipment and other fixed assets
Plant, machinery and equipment 19 - - 19
Fixlures, fittings and fumniture 1,006 - - 1,006
Computers and telecommunications 75 - - 75
Artworks 887 - - 887
1,987 - - 1.987
Infrastructure
Roads 99,959 10,514 - 110473
Bridges 2,034 1,385 - 3419
Footpaths and cycleways 27,944 784 - 28,728
Off street car parks 5291 1,021 - 6,312
Drainage 150,949 15,090 - 166,039
Parks, open space and streetscapes 205 - - 205
286,382 28,794 - 315,176
Total 1,502,666 (76.675) (3.512) 1,422,479

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over fime.
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Note 8 Other matters (cont.)
9.1 Reserves (cont.)

(b)  Other reserves

Balance at Transfer from Transfer to Balance at
beginning of accumulated accumulated end of reporting
2020 reporting year surplus surplus year
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
Resort and recrealion reserve (a) 9227 (4,353) BE15 13,489
Doncaster Hill activity centre reserve (b) - (158) 955 797
Family day care workcover levy reserve (c) - - - -
Total 9,221 (4,511) 9,570 14,288
Balance at Transfer from Transfer to Balance at
beginning of lated lated end of reporting
2019 reporting year surplus surplus year
$'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
Resort and recreation reserve (a) 4,970 (2,107) 6,364 9.227
Doncaster Hill activity centre reserve (b) - - . :
Family day care workcover levy reserve (g) 196 (1396) - -
Total 5,166 (2,303) 6,364 8,227

(a) The Resert and recreation reserve was established to control contnbutions received from developers that will, upon completion of
developments be ufilised to develop recreation and other facilities for residents in the respective development areas.

(b) The Doncaster Hill activity centre reserve was established to control contributions levied on developers under the Doncaster Hill
Development Contributions Plan Overlay (DCPO) and funds will be utilised to develop social and community infrastructure in accordance
with the conditions contained in the DCPO.

(c) The Family day care Workcover levy reserve was established to control funds collected from family day care user charges fo assist in
defraying the cost of potential claims for Workcover by family day care providers. Council discontinued this service in 2009110, No claims
have been received since the discontinuance of this service in 2009/10. The reserve has been closed
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2020 2019
§'000 §'000
Note 9 Other matters (cont.)
8.2  Reconciliation of cash flows
Surplus for the year 26,328 29152
Depreciation/amortisation 23546 21640
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure 1,595 (96)
Contributed assels (8,324) (7,585)
Share of gain from associate (221) (78)
Adjustment for work in progress write-off to ofher expenses 5 997
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase)idecrease in trade and other receivables (2,279) (613)
(Increase)idecrease in other assets 2,194 (993)
Increasel(decrease) in income received in advance 1403 (47)
Increase/(decrease) in frade and other payables 832 (2,931)
(Decrease)increase in other assets and liabilities 182 309
(Increase)idecrease in provisions 741 276
Adjustment for grant received in prior year spent in current year (228) -
et cash provided by operating activities 46,174 40,031
9.3 Superannuation

Manningham City Council makes the majonty of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local
Authorities Superannuafion Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two calegories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of
which is funded differently. Obligations for confributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in Comprehensive Income Statement
when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper/\Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee confributions on a
progressive basis. Employer contribulions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee eamings (for the year ended 30 June
2020 this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation) (SG)

Defined Benefit
Manningham City Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit
category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assats or costs betwesn the participating employers as the defined benefit
aobligation is a floating obligation between the parficipating employers and the only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific
employers is when a call is made. As aresult, the level of participation of Manningham City Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a
percentage compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Actuary is unable fo allocate benefit liabilties, assets and costs
between employers for the purposes of AASB 119,

Funding arrangements
Manningham City Council makes employer contributions to the defined benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on
the advice of the Fund's Actuary

A triennial actuarial review is currently underway for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 and is expected to be completed by
31 December 2020

As at 30 June 2019, an interim actuanal invesfigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category. The
vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Manningham City Council is 2 confributing employer was 107.1%. The
financial assumptions used to calculated the VBl were:

MNet investment returns 6.0% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI1) 20% pa

Vision Super has advised that the actual VBI as at 30 June 2020 was 104.6%,
The VBl is to be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the actuarial investigation determined the

defined benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was necessary to the defined benefit category's funding
arrangements from prior years
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9.3 Superannuation (cont.)
Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2018 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund's Actuary, Manningham City Council makes
employer contributions fo the Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee, For the year ended 30 June
2020, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2018/19). This rate will increase in line with any increase to the Superannuation
Guarantee (SG) confribution rate,

In addition, Manningham City Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment
above the funded resignation or refirement benefit

Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the Defined Benefit category's VB is
below its shortfall limit at any tme other than the date of the actuanal investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the
purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required fo put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall
occurring. The Fund monitors its VB on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shorifall based on the above requirement, Manningham City Council are
required to make an employer contnibution to cover the shortfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and
post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund's Defined Benefit category, together with the employer's payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the
date the shortfall has been calculated

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes lifetime
pensicners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the parficipating employers

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be fransferred to that employer's
SUCCEES0T.

The 2019 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts

An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Manningham City Council is a contributing
employer. Generally, a full actuanal investigation conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are conducted for each
intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2019 and a full actuarial investigation was conducted as at 30 June
2017.

The Fund's actuarial investigations identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Manningham City Council is a
contributing employer:

2019 2017

$m $m

= AVEl surplus 1513 69.8
- Atotal service liability surplus 2334 1935
« A discounted accrued benefits surplus 266.7 2288

The VB surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporfing the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested benefits that
the defined benefit members would have been entifled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2019

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus expected future
contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2018,

The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category exceeds the
value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2019.

Manningham City Council was notified of the 30 June 2019 VBI during August 2019 (2018 August 2018)
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Note 9 Other matters (cont.)

9.3 Superannuation (cont.)

The 2020 triennial actuarial investigati
A triennial actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2020. It is anticipated that this actuarial
investigation will be completed by 31 December 2020.

Contribufions by Councll (excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans for the financial year ended 30
June 2020 are detailed below

2020 2019

Scheme Type of Scheme Rate §'000 §'000
ision super Defined benefit 9.50% 279 304
ision super Accumulation fund 9.50% 2,265 2,305
Other Funds Accumulation fund 9.50% 1628 1,455

In addition to the above contributions, Manningham City Council has paid unfunded liability payments to Vision Super totalling $0 during the
2015/20 year (201819 $0)

There were $0 contributions cutstanding and $0 loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2020.

The expected contribufions fo be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2021 is $254,000
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Note 10 Change in aceounting pelicy

Council has adopted AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 16 Leases and AASBE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities,
from 1 July 2019 This has resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial
stalements

Due to the transition methods chosen by Council in applying these standards, comparative information throughout these financial statements
has not been restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards except in relation to contracts that were not complete at 1 July 2019,

The transition impact of these are detailed below.

a)AASB 15R from C with € s - Impact of Adoption

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers applies to revenue transactions where Council provides services or goods under
contractual arrangements

Council adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers using the medified (cumulative calch up) methed. Revenue for 2019 as
reported under AASE 118 Revenue is not adjusted, because the new standard is only applied from the date of initial application

AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires revenue from contracts with customers to be recognised as Council satisfies the
perfarmance obligations under the contract

b) AASB 16 Leases

ARSE 16 Leases requires right of use assets and related liabilities for all lease agreements to be recognised on the balance sheet. The
Staternent of Comprehensive Income is to separately recognise the amortisation of the right of use asset, and the finance costs relating to
the lease, Council has elected to adopt the modified (cumulative catch up) method under the standard and as such has not adjusted 2019
disclosures, The transition impact of these are detailed below

c) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

ARSE 1058 Income of Nof-for-Profit Entities applies to income received where no confract is in place. This includes statutory charges (such
as rates) as well as most grant agreements.

Council adopted AASE 1058 Income of Mot-for-Profit Entities using the modified (cumulative catch up) methed. Income for 2019 is not
adjusted, because the new standard is only applied from the date of initial application,

AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities requires income to be recognised as Council satisfies the performance obligations under the
contract

d) Transition impacts

The following table summanses the impact of transition to the new standards on retained earnings at 1 July 2019

2019

§'000
Refained earnings at 30 June 2019 738,643
Revenue adjustment - impact of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers -
Income Adjustment - impact of AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (697)
Refained earnings at 1 July 2019 737945

Council adopted the practical expedient of deeming the lease asset to be equal in value fo the lease liability at 1 July 2019, As such there
was no impact on retained earnings on the adoption of AASB 16 Leases .

The following fable summanses the impacts of transition to the new standards on Council's balance sheet for the year ending 30 June 2019

As reported 30
June 2019 Adjustments Post adoption
$'000 $'000 §'000
Assets
Right of use assets - 3181 3181
Grants receivable - - -
- 3181 3,181
Liabilities
Unearned income - operating grants - - -
Unearned income - capital grants - 697 697
Lease liability - current - 495 495
Lease liability - non-current - 2,686 2 686
- 3,878 3,878

54 of 55

Iltem 12.1 Attachment 1 Page 102



COUNCIL AGENDA 15 SEPTEMBER 2020

Motes to the Financial Report MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020 2019/20 Financial Report

Note 11 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on Council operations and the 2019/20 Financial Report

On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared to be a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Since then, various measures
have been implemented by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19. This crisis and measures taken to
mitigate it has impacted council operations in a number of areas during the financial year ended 30 June 2020,

In response to a decrease in demand and government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, a number of Council services were
reduced or closed including our recreation, leisure and community facilities including Aquarena, stadiums, pavilions, libranes, community
centres, the function centre, the Civic Centre and MC2. These closures resulted in a decrease in Council revenue and other unbudgeted
costs. The overall net financial impact on council services of COVID-19 in 201920 was $2.45 million.

In 2019/20 Council also provided a range of COVID-19 community financial relief measures including:

= Fourth quarter rate instalment payment - extension of due date to 30 June 2020, without incurring any penalty interest and the continued
ability for rate payers to apply for special rate repayment arrangements for those qualifying on financial hardship grounds. Deferral of the due
date and the financial impact of COVID-19 on rate payers has resulted in the rates debtor balance at 30 June 2020 being $2.07 million
higher compared fo last year.

« Introduction of a COVID-19 Community Relief Fund to provide funding to sectors of the community in need

« Rent and lease relief, and utility subsidies, for sporting clubs and community groups who use Council facilities. The relief measures above
amounted lo §0.49 million in 2019/20

Council's property assets have been valued as at 30 June 2020. The state of the property market within the review period is most influenced
by the recent COVID-19 pandemic and resulting declaration of a State of Emergency.

Council's certified valuers have placed more weight on the sales that ccourred in the most recent months from February fo June 2020, when
setling the values per square metre for this year as at 30 June 2020. Council's certified valuers have determined that the sales evidence in
this period has provided reliable obsarvations on how the property market has performed during the COVID-19 pandemic period.

Council's infrastructure assets have been valued as at 30 June 2020. The market that the infrastructure assets are transacted in is being
impacted by the uncertainty that the COVID-19 pandemic has caused.

Council continues fo closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and work with the community through these challenging times.
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Description of municipality

Manningham City Council is located in Melbourne’s north-eastern suburbs, commencing with its western
boundary in Bulleen, 12 kilometres from the Melbourne CBD and extending to Wonga Park at its eastern
extremity, 32 kilometres from the CBD. The City is bounded by the Yarra River, Banyule City and Nillumbik Shire
in the north, Yarra Ranges Shire in the east, Koonung Creek, Maroondah City and the Cities of Whitehorse and
Boroondara in the south and Banyule City and the Yarra River in the west,

The City encompasses a total land area of 114 square kilometres, including a substantial 17% green open
spaces. The nonurban areas include a large tract of the Green Wedge, and are used mainly for rural residential
living, conservation and small scale agriculture.

As at 30 June 2020, our estimated population was 127,573 people across the City, including the suburbs of
Bulleen, Doncaster, Doncaster East, Donvale, Nunawading (part), Park Orchards, Ringwood North (part),
Templestowe, Templestowe Lower, Warrandyte, Warrandyte South and Wonga Park (part).
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Performance Statement

Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the
Local Government {Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014

Jon Gorst (BCom, CPA)
Principal Accounting Officer

15 September 2020
Doncaster

In our opinion, the accompanying performance stat it of the Manningham City Council for the year ended 30 June 2020 presents fairly the
results of Council's performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 .

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in relation to service performance, financial
performance and sustainable capacity.

il

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the perf e it to be

or inaccurate.

fing

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Govemnment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify this performance
statement in its final form.

Paul McLeish Mike Zafiropoulos AM Andrew Day
Mayor Deputy Mayor Chief Executive Officer
15 September 2020 15 September 2020 15 September 2020
Doncaster Doncaster Doncaster
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Performance Statement

Other Information
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The performance statement
includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial performance indicators and
measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This
statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with
those reported in the financial statements. The other results are based on information drawn from Council information
systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial performance
indicators and measures, the results forecast by the Council's strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained in the
performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and
explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to
be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council in its strategic resource plan on
28 July 2020 and which forms part of the council plan. The strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key
assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the
long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the general purpose financial statements.
The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting Council.

2. Impact of COVID-19 on Council operations

On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared to be a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Since then,
various measures have been implemented by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-
19. This crisis and measures taken to mitigate it has impacted council operations in a number of areas during the
financial year ended 30 June 2020,

In response to a decrease in demand and government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, a number of Council
services were reduced or closed including our recreation, leisure and community facilities including Aquarena, stadiums,
pavilions, libraries, community centres, the function centre, the Civic Centre and MC2. These closures resulted in a
decrease in Council revenue and other unbudgeted costs. The overall net financial impact on council services of COVID-
19 in 2019/20 was $2.45 million.

In 2019/20 Council also provided a range of COVID-19 community financial relief measures including:

+ Fourth quarter rate instalment payment - extension of due date to 30 June 2020, without incurring any penalty interest
and the continued ability for rate payers to apply for special rate repayment arrangements for those qualifying on financial
hardship grounds.

» Intreduction of a COVID-19 Community Relief Fund to provide funding to sectors of the community in need.

*» Rent and lease relief, and utility subsidies, for sporting clubs and community groups who use Council facilities.

The relief measures above amounted to $0.49 million in 2019/20.

Council continues to closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and work with the community through these
challenging times. Refer to the Annual Financial Report for further information.
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Independent Auditor's Report to come

ltem 12.1 Attachment 2 Page 107



COUNCIL AGENDA 15 SEPTEMBER 2020

MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Performance Statement

Independent Auditor's Report to come

4 of 10

ltem 12.1 Attachment 2 Page 108



COUNCIL AGENDA 15 SEPTEMBER 2020

MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Performance S

Sustainable Capacity Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Indicator { measure

[formula] 2017 2018 2019 2020 Comments - Material Variations
Fopulation
c1 Expenses per head of municipal §920.18  §913.67  5951.72 $996.46 Over the period, Council manages to deliver high-guality
population services within a responsible budget at an average of 3945
[Total expenses / Municipal per head of municipal population. This demonstrates that
population] Council is committed to provide core services and
community facilities in a cost effective way
c2 Infrastructure per head of municipal ~ $6,398.78 $6,450.99 $6,802.18 $6,856,92 Manningham is ¢ itted to maintain, renew and upgrade
population infrastructure assets and each year allocates a minimum of
[Value of infrastructure / Municipal 33% of rate revenue in addition to other funding sources fo
population] fund the capital works program.
C3 Population density per length of 201.87 205.81 20583 209.14 Manningham has a lower population density per km of road
road than similar councils. The maintenance and upgrade of local
[Municipal population / Kilometres road network is funded by an ongoing capital works program
of local roads) and maintenance funds
Own-source revenue
C4 Own-source revenue per head of $918.71  $910.10 395457  $948.91 The result reflects Manningham's continual ability to
municipal populafion generate revenue from new and different sources to ensure
[Own-source revenue / Municipal ongeing financial sustainability.
population]
Recurrent grants
c5 Recurrent grants per head of $117.47  $109.33  $106.30  $101.69 Over the course of 4 years there is a decrease in average
municipal population government grants per head of municipal population leaving
[Recurrent grants / Municipal Council to heavily rely on rates revenue to fund community
population] services and infrastructure needs
Disadvantage
C6 Relative Socio-Economic 10.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 Manningham has a low level of socic-economic
Disadvantage disadvantage relative to many councils. Data released from
[Index of Relative Socio-Economic the most recent census (2016) indicates that the level of
Disadvantage by decile] disadvantage has increased in a few areas leading to a
reduction in this indicator by 1 decile compared to the last
census publication.
Workforce turnover
C7 Fercentage of staff turnover 11.77% 9.92% 9.62% 11.61% Workforce tumover of 11.61% represents a small increase
[Number of permanent staff on the previous year but is still similar to the longer term
resignations and terminations / average.

Average number of permanent staff
for the financial year] x100

Definitions
"adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:
(a) non-recumrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

{b) non y asset ibuficns; and
{c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources ofher than those referred to above “infrastructure™ means non-current property, plant and equipment
excluding land

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004

"population”" means the resident pepulation estimated by council

"own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the contrel of council {including government grants)

"relative socio-economic disadvantage”, in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio- ic di ge, exp d as a decile for the relevant
financial year, of the area in which the icipality is located ing to the Index of Relative Socie-E D (c Mumber 2033.0.55.001)
of SEIFA "SEIFA" means the Socie-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Intemet website

"unrestricted cash™ means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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MANNINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
2019/20 Performance S

Service Performance Indicators

Servicelindicator/measure

2018 2019

2020

Comments

Aguatic Facilities

Utilisation

Utilisation of aquatic facilities
[Number of visits to aguatic facilities
{ Municipal population]

AF6

Animal Management

Health and safety

Animal management prosecutions
[Number of successiul animal
management prosecutions]

AMT

Food Safety

Health and safety

Critical and major non-compliance
outcome notifications

[Number of critical non-compliance
outcome notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a
food premises followed up { Number
of critical non-compliance outcome
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a
food premises] x100

Fs4

Governance
Satisfaction

G5 Satisfaction with council decisions
[Community satisfaction rating out of
100 with how council has performed
in making decisions in the interest of
the community]

Libraries

Participation

Active library borrowers in
municipality

[Number of acfive library borrowers
in the last three years / The sum of
the population for the last three
years] x100

LB4

Maternal and Child Health (MCH)
Participation

Participation in the MCH service
[Number of children who attend the
MCH service at least once (in the
year)/ Number of children enrclled
in the MCH service] x100

MC4

Participation

Farticipation in the MCH service by
Aboriginal children

[Number of Aboriginal children who
attend the MCH service at least
once (in the year) / Number of
Aboriginal children enrolled in the
MCH service] x100

MCS

Roads
Satisfaction

R5 Satisfaction with sealed local roads
[Community satisfaction rating out of
100 with how council has performed
on the condition of sealed local
roads]

4.56 5.68 527
New in New in New in
2020 2020 2020
100.00%  99.03%  98.40%
58.00 57.00 57.00
15.79%  14.89%  14.74%
T6.39% T4.36% T9.67%
94.59%  8511%  T0.97%
66.00 64.00 66.00
& af 10

3.97 Utilisation of the Agquatic facility significantly decreased
compared to 2018-19 with the facility closed between Mid-
March to June due to COVID-18. There was a restricted re-
opening for a small portion of May/June however utilisation
during this time was minimal.

100% Manningham Council pursues prosecufions to ensure
responsible pet ownership and community safety. This is a
new indicator for 2019-20

97.48% Manningham is wigilant in ensuring food premises are
followed up after a major or critical non-compliance is
observed. Seven premises were followed up oulside of the
reporting period. This is a slight decline from last year where
five premises were followed up outside of the reporting
period.

57.00 This indicator result is collected through a Community

Satisfaction Survey ged by the Victorian Government.
Community satisfaction with council decisions was
maintained.

14.30% Library participation was impacted by COVID-19 restrictions,
with the libraries closed from late March and reopened with
reduced services from mid-June. The method of calculation
has changed from previous years including the range of
electronic collections counted.

T6.42% Manningham Council continues to have strong participation
in first home visits. While every effort is taken to engage
new families, being a voluntary service, a very small
percentage of families request not to have a home visit or
do not to enrol in our service at all. Since March 2020,
participation rates have decreased due to COVID-19 with
limited appointments / staggering for social distancing and
delays with appointments due fo changes in service
delivery.

82.14% Manningham Council has experienced an increase in
participation based on the previous year. This indicator has
a very low number of participants so a small increase in
participation will significantly increase the participation
result,

66.00 Manningham Council has maintained a consistent rate of
community satisfaction with sealed roads across the last 2
years. This data is collected annually in a Community
Satisfaction Survey by an independent research company
on behalf of the State Govemment.
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SP4

WCh

Servicefindicator/measure 2017 2018 2019

Statutory Planning

Decision making

Council planning decisions upheld
at VCAT

[Number of VCAT decisions that did
not set aside council's decision in
relation to a planning application /
Number of VCAT decisions in
relation to planning applications]
x*100

T0.97%  6471%  52.46%

Waste Collection

Waste diversion

Kerbside collection waste diverted
from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside
bins / Weight of garbage,
recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins] x100

53.96% 54.12% 53.24%

Definitions
"Abaoriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person
"Aboriginal person” has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

"active library borrower” means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library

51.35% Manningham Council has had a decrease in the number of

decisions upheld at the Victorian Civil and Administrative
Tribunal (VCAT) from the previous year. In 2019-20, 12 of
18 decisions set aside were successfully negotiated at
compulsory conference or through outside negotiations with
the permit applicant.

56.40% Manningham has seen an increase in tonnages when

compared to 2018/19. Garden waste tonnages were
significantly higher due to higher than average rainfall
resulting in increased foliage growth.

"annual report’ means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act
"CALD" means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons bomn outside Australia in a country whose naticnal language is not English
“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C of

that Act

“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 | that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of

that Act
"eritical n

means a

ificati d by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984 | or advice given to council

oy an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004

"major non-compliance cutcome notification” means a notification received by a council under section 19M(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council
by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial acticn is taken
"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a eouncil to support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until

school age
"population” means the resident pepulation estimated by council

"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident’ means an incident relating to a council aguatic Tacility that is required to be notified to the Vietorian WerkGover

Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004

7 af 10
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E4

L1

L2

0z

Financial Performance Indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Dimension/indicator/measure
Efficiency
Expenditure level
Expenses per property assessment
[Total expenses / Number of property
assessments]

Revenue level

Average rate per property assessment
[General rates and Municipal charges /
Number of property assessments]

Liquidity

Working capital

Current assels compared lo current
liabilities

[Current assets / Current liabilities] x100

Unrestricted cash

Unrestricted cash compared to current
liabilities

[Unrestricted cash / Current liabilities] x100

Obligations

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings compared fo rates
[Interest bearing loans and borrowings /
Rate revenue] x100

$230224  $2.30823

New in
2020

199.23%

63.04%

7.83%

Results

2018

New in
2020

21524%

63.67%

7.53%

2019

$237249 $2479.25 $257596 $254760 %$2,597.15

New in
2020

223.02%

37.57%

T14%

2020

$1,787.81 5184766 5187156 5190650 $1,951.39

198.35%

36.87%

0.00%

2021

186.15%

39.68%

0.00%

& of 10

Forecast

2022

177.61%

45.93%

0.00%

2023

172.81%

54.82%

0.00%

Material Variations

$2,671.19 Manningham is continuing to deliver quality services in

181.44% M

accordance with its long term plan. The focus continues to be on
responsible budgeting while providing cost-effective services
and delivering infrastructure projects to meet the needs of our
community. The increase in 2019/20 is mainly driven by the
increased costs to Council due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
costs associated with recovery efforts relating to a significant
storm event in January 2020.

Manningham's average general rate increase was 2.5 per cent
in 2019/20 in line with the Victorian Government's rate cap.
Council's forecast future average general rate increases are in
line with forecast CPIl / rate caps. Rate revenue is a source of
funding for a range of Council services and assists in providing
funding to maintain and renew over 52 billion of community
assels such as local roads, community buildings, drains,
footpaths, playgrounds and sporting facilities.

ingham can comfortably meet all short term financial
commitments as and when they arise and is in a sound financial
posiion. The forward year forecasts also indicate that
Manningham is expecting to maintain a strong working capital
rafio.

63.89% Manningham has a strong liquidity position and is able to meet

0.00%

its short and long term commitments as they fall due. The
reduction in the unrestricted cash ratio is mainly due to
Manningham investing in term deposits with a maturity of
greater than 90 days to improve interest revenue. Only term
deposits with a maturity of 90 days or less are included in the
calculation of cash for this ratio. Without this change the ratio
would be similar to previous years. The forward year forecasts
assume that all term deposits will have a maturity of 90 days or
less.

Manningham is debt free. $7.28 million of loan borrowings were
repaid in full during 2019/20. No future loan borrowings are
proposed in the forecast period.
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03

04

05

OP1

$1

82

Dimension/indicator/measure
Loans and borrowings repayments
compared to rates
[Interest and principal repayments on
interest bearing loans and borrowings /
Rate revenue] x100

Indebtedness

Nan-current liabilities compared to own
S0urce revenue

[Non-current liabilities / Own source
revenue] x100

Asset renewal and upgrade

Asset renewal and upgrade compared to
depreciation

[Asset renewal and asset upgrade expense
I Asset depreciation] x100

Operating position

Adjusted underlying result

Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)
[Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit)/
Adjusted underlying revenue] x100

Stability

Rates concentration

Rates compared to adjusted underlying
revenue

[Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying
revenue] x100

Rates effort

Rates compared to property values

[Rate revenue / Capital improved value of
rateable properties in the municipality]
x100

2017
0.33%

7.19%

New in
2020

11.35%

74.24%

0.20%

2018
0.32%

7.19%

New in
2020

10.49%

76.06%

0.20%

Results

2019
0.30%

1.13%

New in
2020

10.62%

76.30%

0.17%

2020

161.28%

Forecast
2022 2023
0.00% 0.00%

2021
0.00%

2024
0.00%

6.97%

$7.28 million of loan borrowings were repaid in full during
2019/20. No future loan borrowings are proposed in the forecast
period.

3.04% 2.65% 231% 1.99% 1.76%  Manningham confinues to have a low level of non-current

liabilities compared to revenue.

147 66% 120.99% 141.35% 126.45% The 201920 result and forecasts from 2020/21 onwards

demonstrates Manningham's ongoing commitment to invest in
the renewal and upgrade of its existing community
infrastructure.

5.69% 2.52% 5.87% 6.41% 7.10% The 2019/20 result is a strong result despite the financial impact

en Council of the COVID-19 pandemic. The surplus assists in
funding the annual capital works program, which brings major
community benefit. The forecast levels are expected to remain
in a healthy range despite the anticipated ongoing financial
impact on Council of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020/21.

78.61% 80.19% 80.13% 80.39% 80.43% Manningham receives a low level of grants allocation and hence

heavily relying on rate revenue for the delivery of high-guality
services and infrastructure to the community.

0.20% 0.19% 0.20% 0.20% 0.21% The ratio highlights Manningham's relative low rate burden on its

community when compared to property value.
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Al4

E1

o1

ator / measure
Animal Management
Health and safety
Animal management prosecutions 17
[Number of successful animal management
prosecutions]

Efficiency

Revenue level

Average residential rate per residential 51,869
property assessment

[Residential rate revenue [ Number of

residential property assessments]

Obligations

Asset renewal

Asset renewal compared to depreciation 123.60%
[Asset renewal expense | Asset

depreciation] x100

Results
2018 2019

6 7 Retired in

$1.911 51961  Retired in

96.53% 87 46%  Retired in
2020

10 of 10

This measure was replaced by AMT from 1 July 2019.

This measure was replaced by E4 from 1 July 2019.

This measure was replaced by O5 from 1 July 2019,
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Governance Management Checklist

2019-20
Governance and Management YES or NO |Dateif YES [Date if YES (multiple items/dates) Reason(s) if
Item (single answer is No
item/date)
GC1 Community engagement policy YES 4/06/2019|Date of operatian for policy: 4 lune 2019
GC2  |Community engagement guidelines [YES 4/06/2019|Date of operation for guidelines: 4 June 2013
GC3  |Strategic Resource Plan YES 25/06/2013[plan adopted in accordance with section 126 of the Act. Date of
Adoption: 25 June 2019
GC4  |Annual budget YES 25/06/2019 [Budget adopted in accordance with section 130 of the Act, Date of
Adoption: 25 June 2019
GC5 Asset management plans YES Drainage Management Plan 31/07/2007, Roads Management
28/08/2012, Building Management Plan 28/08/2012, Parks
M nt Plan 28/08/2012
GCe Rating strategy YES 25/06/2019|Date of operation of current strategy: 25 June 2019
GC7 Risk policy YES 25/07/2017 |Date of operation of policy: 25 July 2017
GC3 Fraud policy YES 10/12/2019|Date of operation of current policy: 10 December 2019
GCs Municipal emergency management [YES 15/03/2016|Prepared and maintained in accordance with Section 20 (1) of the
plan Emergency Management Act 1986. Date of preparation: 15 March 2016
GC10  |Procurement policy YES 28/07/2020(prepared and approved in accordance with section 1864 of the Local
Government Act. Date of approval: 28 July 2020
GC1l |Business continuity plan YES 13/03/2020|Date of operation of current plan 13 March 2020
GC12 |Disaster recavery plan YES 16/03/2020|Date of operation of current plan 16 March 2020
GC13 |Risk management framework YES 25/07/2017|Date of operation of current framework 25 July 2017
GC14  |Audit Committes YES 15/01/1998|Established in accordance with 139 of the Act. Date of establishment 13
January 1998
GC15 |Internal audit YES 20/09/2019|Internal Audit date of engagement of current provider: 20 Septamber
2019
GC16 |Performance reporting framework  |YES 27/086/2017|Date of operation of current framework 27 June 2017
GC17  |Council Plan reporting YES 13/03/2020|Current report provided 13 March 2020
GC18 |Financial reporting YES Quarterly statements presented to Council in accordance with section
138(1) of the Act
al 26 November 2019
a2 25 February 2020
Qa3 26 May 2020
a4 25 August 2020
GC19 |Risk reporting YES Report prepared and presented on the 26 November 2019 and the 13
March 2020.
GC20 |Performance reporting YES Reports prepared and presented on the 13 March 2020 and 4
September 2020
CQuarter 2 Report 13/03/2020, Quarter 4 Report 4/09/2020
GC21  |Annual report YES 17/09/2019 [Annual report considered at a meeting of Council in accordance with
section 134 of the Act, Date of consideration 17/09/2019
GC22  |Councillor Code of Conduct YES 21/02/2017 |Reviewed in accordance with section 76C of the Act. Date reviewed:
21/02/2017
GC23  |Delegations YES Reviewed in accordance with section 98 (6) of the Act on the 8 April, 17
September 2019 and 24 March 2020
CEO delegations to staff: 8 April 2018
Council delegations to staff : 17 September 2019
Council delegations to CEQ: 24 March 2020
GC24  |Meeting procedures YES 12/12/2017|Meeting procedures local law made in accerdance with section 91(1) of
the Act
Date local law made: 12 December 2017
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12.2 COVID-19 Community Financial Relief Status and Extended Relief

File Number: IN20/565
Responsible Director:  Director Shared Services
Attachments: Nil

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

COVID-19 has highlighted the important role Council plays in our community, to keep
people connected, support local businesses, deliver health and wellbeing programs
and to protect our local environment and natural resources.

On 28 April 2020, Council approved an extensive $3.80 million COVID-19 Community
financial relief package over two financial years (2019/20 and 2020/21).

In addition to the above, Council also provided $250,000 of commercial lease relief for
Council’s commercial tenants for a six month period (March to August 2020).

Since then, Victoria has continued to be impacted by COVID-19 with a recent
resurgence in COVID-19 cases. In August 2020, the Victorian Premier announced
Stage 4 restrictions for metropolitan Melbourne which includes increased restrictions
on movement within the community. In September 2020, the Victorian Premier
announced a continuation of Stage 4 restrictions.

To provide continued support to our community during restrictions, officers are
recommending extending some of the existing relief measures at an estimated
additional cost to Council of $570,000. The aim is to continue assisting those most in
need while maintaining Council’s financial sustainability.

With the proposed extended relief measures, Council’s total commitment to COVID-19
targeted Community financial relief is $4.62 million. This equates to approximately 5%
of Council’s general rate revenue for the year.

The proposed extended relief measures would cover:

e A continuation of rent / outgoings relief to community groups and rent / lease /
licence relief for sporting clubs — up to $250,000 for six months;

e A continuation of rent / lease relief for commercial tenants — up to $45,000 per
month (for up to six months); and

e A continuation of offering rate repayment arrangements (and a hold on interest
charges) for ratepayers that have formally applied for and been approved on
financial hardship grounds up until 31 May 2021 (estimated to be $50,000).

This report also provides an update on the current endorsed relief measures along with
an update on the financial impacts on Council Services that have been impacted by the
COVID-19 outbreak.
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1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council;

A.

B.

Notes the current COVID-19 community financial relief measures and the
financial impact of COVID-19 on Council’s services.

Endorses the extension of the following relief measures:

e rent/outgoings relief to community groups for a further six months
(September 2020 to February 2021);

e rent/lease/licence relief to sporting clubs for a further six months
(September 2020 to February 2021); and

e rent/lease relief to commercial tenants on a month to month basis
while restrictions are in place (September 2020 up until February
2021).

Delegate to the Chief Executive Officer the power to negotiate and vary
leases and licences with Council tenants in accordance with the financial
relief measures endorsed by Council, or federal or state legislation as
applicable.

Notes that Council Officers will continue to offer rate repayment
arrangements (and a hold on interest charges) for ratepayers that formally
apply for and are approved on financial hardship grounds for a further six
months to 31 May 2021.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The coronavirus pandemic was confirmed to have reached Australia in January
2020. On 15 March 2020, the Victorian Premier declared a State of Emergency in
Victoria in response to the COVID-19 outbreak.

The closure of many non-essential businesses in Australia was estimated to result
in one million people losing their jobs.

In March 2020, Councillors requested that Officers present a range of options to
support and assist the Manningham community during this challenging time.

On 28 April 2020, Council approved an extensive $3.80 million COVID-19
Community financial relief package over two financial years (2019/20 and
2020/21).

In addition to the above, Council also provided $250,000 of commercial lease relief
for Council’s commercial tenants for a six month period (March to August 2020).

With the resurgence of COVID-19 cases in Melbourne, on 2 August 2020, the
Victorian Premier announced Stage 4 restrictions for metropolitan Melbourne
placing increased restrictions on movement within the community. In September
2020, the Victorian Premier announced a continuation of these restrictions.
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2.7 It is estimated that the Stage 4 restrictions in Melbourne will cost the economy

billions with a significant increase in unemployment.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1 Each level of Australia’s government are providing financial assistance to the

individuals and businesses impacted by this outbreak.

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

In March and April 2020, The Federal Government released various relief
measures totalling $320 billion to keep Australians in work and businesses in
business.

In July 2020, the Commonwealth Government has acted in the national interest
to extend the support measures for households and businesses and to address
the significant economic consequences of the Coronavirus.

On 21 July 2020, the Commonwealth Government announced the extension of
the JobKeeper Payment for a further six months until 28 March 2021. The
support is targeted to assist the businesses and not-for-profits who continue to be
significantly impacted by the current pandemic.

To support economic recovery, the Government is extending and further tailoring
temporary economic measures to support sectors, regions and communities that
will continue to face challenges.

VICTORIAN GOVERNMENT

3.6 Similar to the Commonwealth Government, the Victorian Government announced
further relief measures in July 2020. This is in addition to the initial
announcement of $1.7 billion economic survival and jobs package to help
Victorians business and workers survive the devastating impacts of the
coronavirus pandemic.

3.7 The highlights of the additional Victorian Government measures include:

e The Business Support Fund — Expansion program providing a $10,000
grant to employing businesses in metropolitan Melbourne and Mitchell
Shire and $5,000 grant to employing businesses in regional Victoria
(except Mitchell Shire);

e $30 million dedicated fund for Victoria’s night time economy to support
the hardest hit businesses in hospitality;

e $26 million in mental health support to ensure Victorians dealing with the
compounding challenges of running a small business can get the
support they need as they navigate their way through the crisis;

e $10 million business mentoring program, pairing small business owners
with experienced professionals who can help them navigate their way
through the crisis;

e $40 million capped fund for regional tourism businesses to cover the
costs of refunds;
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e $20 million fund to support small businesses in Melbourne’s CBD that
are faced with a large and sustained shock to their trading
environments; and

e Businesses will also benefit from an extended and expanded payroll tax
deferral. Eligible businesses with payrolls up to $10 million can defer
their liabilities for the first half of the 2020/21 financial year.

COUNCIL’S RESPONSE
A. Current COVID-19 Community Financial Relief Measures

3.8 On 28 April 2020, Council approved an extensive $3.80 million COVID-19
Community Financial Relief Package (the Package) over two financial years
(2019/20 and 2020/21). The package was based on the following high level
principles:

o Targeted relief with a focus on assisting those most in need,;

e Balance short term relief with longer term revenue stability; and

e Maintain Council’s financial sustainability.

3.9 The $3.80 million package endorsed by Council in April 2020 included financial
relief/support for the following segments of the community:

o Ratepayers (residential and commercial) — up to $1.60 million relief:
= No increase in the Waste Service charge;
= Fourth quarter rates instalment extension; and
= Repayment arrangements (interest charges relief);

e COVID-19 Community Relief Fund — up to $1.00 million;

e Local businesses — up to $330,000:
= $100,000 Business development fund;

= $230,000 for 50% discounts on Food/Health Registrations,
Footpath Trading Permits and Trader Parking Permits; and

e Sporting clubs and community groups — up to $450,000:
= Rent/Lease/outgoings waivers for six months; and
e Support for older residents — up to $380,000.
3.10 Council has also provided $250,000 of commercial lease relief for Council’s

commercial tenants for a six month period (March to August 2020). This was in
addition to the $3.80 million of COVID-19 community relief measures.

B. Current Financial Impact on Council’s Services
3.11 Like other businesses, COVID-19 has impacted Council services and the

operating budget. At this stage, the financial impact is an estimated $5.0 million
over 2019/20 and 2020/21.
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3.12 The major contributors to the financial impacts on Council include:

3.13

3.14

3.15

Contract variation payments and loss of revenue from Council’'s Aquatic
and Leisure facilities (Aquarena and indoor stadiums) - assuming the
facilities will remain closed until November 2020;

Loss of function centre/community venues revenue as a result of
COVID-19 restrictions - assuming the Function Centre remains closed
until February 2021;

Decreased volume of other fees and fines resulting in lower revenue —
assuming that the lower volume continues until December 2020; and

Additional cleaning costs, personal protective equipment and other
COVID-19 related costs.

Proposed Council Extended Relief Measures

With the resurgence of COVID-19 cases in Melbourne and the announcement of
a State of Disaster and Stage 4 restrictions in August 2020, it is anticipated that
the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to have an impact on the community.

To assist the community during this period, officers are recommending to extend
some of the existing relief measures:

Rent / outgoings relief to community groups for a further six months
(September 2020 to February 2021). Rent / lease / licence fee relief for
sporting clubs for a further six months (September 2020 to February
2021). The cost of these measures is $250,000 for the six month period,;
Rent/lease relief to commercial tenants on a month to month basis while
restrictions are in place — from September 2020 up to February 2021
(cost of $45,000 per month); and

Offer a rate repayment arrangement (and a hold on interest charges) to
ratepayers who formally apply for and are approved on financial
hardship grounds up to 31 May 2021 (estimated to be $50,000).

The loss of revenue to Council from the proposed continuation of the rent / lease
/ outgoings relief and the rate repayment arrangements referred to above, will be
managed within the existing adopted 2020/21 budget footprint through
reprioritising other expenditure and delaying the timing of some other operational
projects where possible.

COMMUNITY GROUPS AND SPORTING CLUBS

3.16 Community agencies and sporting clubs will continue to be impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic and ongoing restrictions. It is proposed to extend their relief
arrangements for a further six months (September 2020 to February 2021).

3.17 The relief will cover waiving of:

e rent for community groups and sporting clubs; and

e rent and outgoings for MC2 community group tenants.

The proposal is estimated to cost about $250,000.
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COMMERCIAL TENANTS

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

Commercial tenants including MannaCare, Benevolence Australia, Women'’s
Health East, Montessori Early Education Centre and MC2 Café were provided
rent / lease relief for a six month period (March 2020 to August 2020) at a cost of
$250,000.

To provide further support during the ongoing restrictions, it is recommended to
extend the current relief measures from September 2020 on a month to month
basis depending on the extent of restrictions in place at the time (up until
February 2021).

This is subject to the commercial tenant providing supporting documentary
evidence to Council to satisfy that the business has been significantly financially
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

The extended rent relief for MannaCare, Benevolence Australia, Women’s Health
East, Montessori Early Education Centre and extended rent and outgoings relief
for the MC2 Café is projected to cost approximately $45,000 per month.

RATEPAYERS

3.22

It is recommended that Council continues to offer rate repayment arrangements
(and a hold on interest charges) for ratepayers that formally apply for and are
approved on financial hardship grounds for a further six months up until 31 May
2021. The current repayment arrangements offered on the grounds of financial
hardship expires at the end of November 2020. This proposal is anticipated to
cost $50,000 and will be funded within the existing 2020/21 adopted budget by
reprioritising other expenditure and delaying the timing of delivery of some other
operational projects where possible.

4. IMPLEMENTATION

Finance / Resource Implications

4.1 The extended relief measures proposed in this report will be funded within the

4.2

4.3

existing 2020/21 adopted budget footprint by reprioritising other expenditure and
delaying the timing of delivery of some other operational projects where possible.

Due to the financial impact of COVID-19 on Council, Council’s current 2020/21
adopted budget shows that two of the seven Victorian Auditor-General Office
(VAGO) financial sustainability risk indicators are anticipated to move from the
“Low Risk” category to the “Medium Risk” category.

Council Officers are continuously monitoring and managing the financial impact of
COVID-19 on the organisation in this extremely dynamic environment. Any further
financial impacts on Council’s adopted 2020/21 budget may potentially move one
of the VAGO financial sustainability risk indicators into the “High Risk” category.
These indicators are an important measure of ongoing financial sustainability.

5. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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13 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

13.1 Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation

File Number: IN20/557
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer
Attachments: 1 Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation §

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Act 1989 empowers Council to appoint a person, other than a
Councillor, to be an authorised officer for the purposes of the administration and
enforcement of any Act, regulations or local laws which relate to the functions and
powers of the Council.

A person who is appointed to a position has the powers of that position under the
legislation which they have been appointed. Authorisations are necessary to facilitate
the efficient and effective function of councils as they enable authorised officers to
carry out compliance or enforcement under legislation related to the functions and
powers of the Council.

Authorised officers will continue to be appointed under s224 of the Local Government
Act 1989, as there are no provisions for appointing authorised officers under the new
Local Government Act 2020.

All Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation have been updated to incorporate
and reflect the administration and enforcement of the Local Government Act 2020.

1. RECOMMENDATION

In the exercise of the powers conferred by section 224 of the Local Government
Act 1989 and the other legislation referred to in the attached instrument of
appointment and authorisation, Manningham City Council (Council) resolves
that:

1. the members of Council staff set out in the attached Instruments of
Appointment and Authorisation shown at Attachmentl be appointed as
authorised officers; and

2. thelnstruments will come into force immediately upon execution and will
remain in force until Council determines to vary or revoke the Instrument or
the officer ceases their employment with Council.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Authorisations are necessary to facilitate the efficient and effective function of
councils as they enable authorised officers to carry out compliance or
enforcement under legislation related to the functions and powers of the Council.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

Section 224 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides that a Council may
appoint any person other than a Councillor to be an authorised officer for the
purposes of the administration and enforcement of any Act, regulations or local
laws which relate to the functions and powers of the Council.

A Council must maintain a register that shows the names of all people appointed
by it to be authorised officers.

This report presents revised Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation to
members of Council staff for consideration.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

The Planning and Environment Act 1987 (the Act) regulates enforcement of the
Act and is reliant on authorised officers acting on behalf of the Responsible
Authority which is Council.

The Act, unlike the Local Government Act 1989, does not permit appointments to
be made by the Chief Executive Officer and therefore in order for the officer to
legally undertake the duties of their position under the Act, it is necessary for
Council to make appointments by formal resolution.

The Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation shown at Attachment 1 have
been prepared based on advice from Council’s lawyers and empower the
relevant officer to exercise those powers granted in the Instrument.

The appointment will come into force immediately upon its execution under the
Seal of Council and will remain in force until varied or revoked by Council or the
officer ceases employment with Council.

In undertaking this review, affected departments have also reviewed the
Council’s Authorised Officers Register prior to referral to Council to ensure the
accuracy and appropriateness of the authorised officers’ appointments.

Authorised officers will continue to be appointed under s224 of the Local
Government Act 1989, as there are no provisions for appointing authorised
officers under the new Local Government Act 2020.

All Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation have been updated to
incorporate and reflect the administration and enforcement of the Local
Government Act 2020.

COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

Authorisations support the facilitation of the efficient administration of Council’s
functions under the Theme — Well Governed Council.

5. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer” means -

Paul Bonnici
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1. under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor ...

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: .. ...
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Simone Boyd
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Jonathan Caruso
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Jack Chiodo

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Jeff Gower

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Mark Huntersmith
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Raylene Kalatzis
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Rowan La'Brooy
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Emma Lawrance
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Stewart Mala

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Julie Mikklesen

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Scott Morone
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..

Iltem 13.1 Attachment 1 Page 135



COUNCIL AGENDA 15 SEPTEMBER 2020

Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Dean Neofitou
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Matthew O'Meara

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Dylan Pederson
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Justin Richardson
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Glenda Ruggeri
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Niall Sheehy

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Lauren Shelton
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Andrea Theoharakos
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Sujendran Thevasagayam
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Jessica Thomas
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Fiona Troise
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..

Iltem 13.1 Attachment 1 Page 146



COUNCIL AGENDA 15 SEPTEMBER 2020

Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Emily Vile
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Jacob Vittorio
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Suchita Vyas
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Alicia Wallace
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer ............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Robert Wallis

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Michelle West

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Greg Whitehouse
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)

In this instrument "officer" means -

Daniel Yu
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Manningham City Council -

1 under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be
an authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally
or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument

It is declared that this instrument comes into force immediately upon its execution and remains in
force until varied or revoked

This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Manningham City Council on 15 September 2020.

The Common Seal of
Manningham City Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:

Mayor .

Chief Executive Officer .............................

Date: ..
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13.2 Record of Assembly of Councillors

File Number: IN20/545
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 Special Strategic Briefing Session - 18 August 2020 §
2 Healthy City Advisory Committee - 19 August 2020
3 Arts Advisory Committee - 25 August 2020 3
4  Strategic Briefing Session - 1 September 2020 §

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989 requires a record of each meeting that
constitutes an Assembly of Councillors to be reported to an ordinary meeting of Council
and those records are to be incorporated into the minutes of the Council Meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the Records of Assemblies for the following meetings and that
the records be incorporated into the minutes of this Council Meeting:

e Special Strategic Briefing Session — 18 August 2020
¢ Healthy City Advisory Committee — 19 August 2020
o Arts Advisory Committee — 25 August 2020

e Strategic Briefing Session — 1 September 2020

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 An Assembly of Councillors is defined in the Local Government Act 1989 as a
meeting of an advisory committee of the Council, if at least one Councillor is
present, or a planned or scheduled meeting of at least half of the Councillors and
one member of the Council staff which considers matters that are intended or likely
to be:-

2.1.1 The subject of a decision of the Council; or

2.1.2 Subject to the exercise of a function, duty or power of the Council that has
been delegated to a person or committee but does not include a meeting
of the Council, a special committee of the Council, an audit committee
established under section 139, a club, association, peak body, political
party or other organisation.

2.2 An advisory committee can be any committee or group appointed by council and
does not necessarily have to have the term ‘advisory committee’ in its title.

2.3 Written records of Assemblies are to include the names of all Councillors and
members of Council staff attending, a list of matters considered, any conflict of
interest disclosures made by a Councillor and whether a Councillor who has
disclosed a conflict of interest leaves the meeting.
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3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1 The Assembly records are submitted to Council, in accordance with the
requirements of Section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989. The details of
the following Assemblies are attached to this report.

Special Strategic Briefing Session — 18 August 2020
Healthy City Advisory Committee — 19 August 2020
Arts Advisory Committee — 25 August 2020
Strategic Briefing Session — 1 September 2020

4. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Special Strateqgic Briefing Session

Meeting Date: 18 August 2020
Venue: via Zoom video conferencing
Starting Time: 6:30pm

1. Councillors Present:
Cr Paul McLeish (Mayor), Cr Mike Zafiropoulos (Deputy Mayor), Cr Anna Chen, Cr
Andrew Conlon, Cr Sophy Galbally, Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Dot Haynes, Cr Michelle
Kleinert and Cr Paula Piccinini

Apologies from Councillors:
Nil

Executive Officers Present:

Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer

Niall Sheehy, Acting Director City Planning & Community

Philip Lee, Director Shared Services

Rachelle Quattrocchi, Director City Services

Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk

Other Officers in Attendance:

Carrie Bruce, Senior Governance Advisor

Ben Middleton, Management Consultant (Emergency Management)
Helen Napier, Manager City Amenity

Justin Hanrahan, Acting Group Manager Community Programs
Michelle Zemancheff, Acting Manager Economic and Community Wellbeing
Bronwyn Morphett, Coordinator Social Planning and Community
Ben Harnwell, Coordinator Business and Events

Kerryn Paterson, Group Manager People and Communications
Jude Whelan, Manager Communications

Lee Robson, Manager Community Resilience

2. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Nil

3. Items Discussed
3.1 Garden Waste Disposal Options for Bushfire Prone Area Residents 2020/21
3.2 Carols by Candlelight 2020
3.3 Reconciliation Action Plan Draft 2021-23
3.4 Manningham Matters and the Annual Calendar
3.5 Revised Instruments of Delegation to the Chief Executive Officer and Members of
Council Staff
3.6 Healthy City Action Plan 2020-2021
3.7 Establishment of Audit and Risk Committee - Local Government Act 2020

The meeting ended at 9:31pm

FEk kT HEITH AT
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Healthy City Advisory Committee

Meeting Date: 19 August 2020
Venue: Online via zoom
Starting Time: 3pm
1. Councillors Present:

Cr Paul McLeish (Mayor)

Officers Present:

Justin Hanrahan, Group Manager, Community Programs

Niall Sheehy, Group Manager, Approvals and Compliance

Bronwyn Morphett, Coordinator Social Planning and Community Development
Barb Ryan, Community Planner

James Papadopoulos, Landscape Architect

Georgina Snaddon, Senior Corporate Planning and Performance Advisor
Nina Stephen, Senior Social Planner

Hilary Murchison, Community Development Officer (Social Isolation)

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Nil

Items Considered

Acknowledgement of Country

Apologies

Confirmation of previous minutes and actions arising
Member Wellbeing

Macedon Square Consultation

Healthy City Strategy 2017 — 2021 Update
Development of the Healthy City Strategy 2021-2025
Committee Members Update

N WN =

Finishing time
The meeting ended at 5:00pm
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Arts Advisory Committee

Meeting Date: Tuesday 25 August 2020
Venue: via Zoom

Starting Time: 4pm

1. Councillors Present:

Councillor Paula Piccinini — Heide Ward

Officers Present:

Justin Hanrahan, Acting Group Manager Community Programs
Michelle Zemancheff, Acting Manager Economic & Community Wellbeing

2. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
No conflicts of interest declared.

3. Items Considered

3.1.
3.2.

3.3.
3.4.
3.5.
3.6.

Minutes of the previous meeting

Business arising

3.2.1. Advisory Committee Annual Review report to Council
3.2.2. Art Collection Policy and Public Art Policy report to Council
COVID-19 impact on creative industry

Arts & Culture creative Industry support program

Arts & Culture 2019/20 annual statistics

Council election and process for committee membership renewal

Finishing time
The meeting ended at 5.10pm
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Record of an Assembly of Councillors Manningham City Council

Strateqgic Briefing Session

Meeting Date: 1 September 2020
Venue: via Zoom video conferencing
Starting Time: 6:30pm

1.

Councillors Present:

Cr Paul McLeish (Mayor), Cr Mike Zafiropoulos (Deputy Mayor), Cr Anna Chen, Cr
Andrew Conlon, Cr Sophy Galbally, Cr Geoff Gough, Cr Dot Haynes, Cr Michelle
Kleinert and Cr Paula Piccinini

Apologies from Councillors:
Nil

Executive Officers Present:

Andrew Day, Chief Executive Officer

Angelo Kourambas, Director City Planning & Community

Andrew McMaster, Corporate Counsel and Group Manager Governance & Risk

Other Officers in Attendance:

Kim Tran, Governance Support Officer

Niall Sheehy, Group Manager Approvals and Compliance
Paul Bonnici, Coordinator of City Compliance

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Nil

Items Discussed

3.1 Local Law Review

3.2 Warrandyte River Reserve — change to off leash area

3.3 Heritage Advisory Committee Terms of Reference - Minor rectification
3.4 Climate Emergency Resolution

3.5 Macedon Square concept design

The meeting ended at 8:45pm
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13.3 Documents for Sealing

File Number: IN20/550
Responsible Director:  Chief Executive Officer
Attachments: Nil

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The following documents are submitted for signing and sealing by Council.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That the following documents be signed and sealed:

Deed of Renewal and Variation of Lease
Council and Friends of Manningham Dogs and Cats Inc.
Part 53-55 Aranga Crescent, Donvale

Licence

Council and The Secretary to the Department of Transport for the State of
Victoria

Part Kim Reserve, 7A Kim Close, Bulleen

2. BACKGROUND

The Council’'s common seal must only be used on the authority of the Council or the
Chief Executive Officer under delegation from the Council. An authorising Council
resolution is required in relation to the documents listed in the recommendation section
of this report.

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any direct or indirect conflict
of interest in this matter.
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14 URGENT BUSINESS

15 COUNCILLORS’ QUESTION TIME

16 CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS
16.1 CEO Performance Review 2019/20

This information has been designated in writing as confidential information by the Chief
Executive Officer pursuant to S77(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1989. The
relevant ground applying is S3(1)f of the Local Government Act 2020 concerning
personal information, being information which if released would result in the
unreasonable disclosure of information about any person or their personal affairs.
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